
S
T

A
T

E
 O

F
 IL

L
IN

O
IS

 
B
O
O
N
E
A
V
~
B
A
G
O
C
O
U
N
T
f
f
i
S
 

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 O

F
F

IC
E

 O
F

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 N
O

.4
 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 A

U
D

IT
 

(In A
ccordance w

ith the Single A
udit A

ct an
d

 O
M

B
 C

ircular A
-133) 

F
O

R
 T

H
E

 Y
E

A
R

 E
N

D
E

D
 JU

N
E

 30, 2009 

P
erform

ed as S
pecial A

ssistant A
uditors 

F
or the A

uditor G
eneral, S

tate o
f Illinois 

E
.C

 O
R

T
IZ

 &
 C

O
., LLP

 
C

E
R

T
IF

IE
D

 
P

U
B

L
IC

 A
C

C
Q

U
N

T
M

H
S

 

STATE OF ILLINOIS 
BOONEAV~BAGOCOUNTmS 

REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 

FINANCIAL AUDIT 
(In Accordance witb tbe Single Audit Act Dnd OMB Circular A-133) 

FOR TIm YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Perfonned as Special Assistant Auditors 
For the Auditor General, State ofJ1linois 

E.C ORTIZ & CO, LLP 
CE:;;T1F1ED PUBUC ACCOUNTA\lTS 



B
O

O
N

E
lW

IN
N

E
B

A
G

O
 C

O
U

N
T

IE
S

 
R

E
G

IO
N

A
L

 O
F

F
IC

E
 O

F
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 N

O
.4

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 

P
A

G
E

 

O
F

F
IC

IA
L

S
 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 1 

C
O

M
P

L
IA

N
C

E
R

E
P

O
R

T
S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

 ______________________________________________________________________________________ 2 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 S

T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 ___________________________________________________________________ 4 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 

Independent A
uditors' R

eport _________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 5 

R
eport on Internal C

ontrol O
ver F

inancial R
eporting and 

on C
om

pliance and O
ther M

atters B
ased on 

an A
udit o

f F
inancial S

tatem
ents P

erform
ed in 

A
ccordance w

ith G
overnm

ent A
uditing Standards._. ___________________________________________________________________ 7 

R
eport on C

om
pliance w

ith R
equirem

ents 
A

pplicable to E
ach M

ajor P
rogram

 and on Internal C
ontrol 

O
ver C

om
pliance in A

ccordance w
ith O

M
B

 C
ircular A

-133 _______________________________________________________ 9 

S
chedule o

f F
indings and Q

uestioned C
osts _____________________________________________________________________________________ 11 

F
inancial S

tatem
ent F

indings _________________________________________________________________________________________________________ )
2

 

F
ederal A

w
ard F indings __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 12 

S
um

m
ary S

chedule o
f P

rior A
udit F

indings _____________________________________________________________________________________ 13 

M
anagem

ent's D
iscussion and A

nalysis. ________________________________________________________________________________________ .14 

E
X

H
IB

IT
 

B
A

S
IC

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 S

T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

S
 

G
overnm

ent-w
ide F

inancial S
tatem

ents 
S

tatem
ent o

f N
et A

ssets ___________________________________________________________________________________ A
 ______________________ 2

0
 

S
tatem

ent o
f A

ctivities ____________________________________________________________________________________ B
 ______________________ 21 

F
und F

inancial S
tatem

ents 
G

overnm
ental F

unds -
B

alance S
heet _______________________________________________________________ C

 ______________________ 22 
G

overnm
ental F

unds -
R

econciliation o
fth

e G
overnm

ental F
unds 

B
alance S

heet to the S
tatem

ent o
f N

et A
ssets _____________________________________________ D

 ______________________ 23 
G

overnm
ental F

unds -
S

tatem
ent o

f R
evenues, E

xpenditures, and 
C

hanges in F
und B

alances _________________________________________________________________________ E
 ______________________ 2

4
 

G
overnm

ental F
unds -

R
econciliation o

fth
e S

tatem
ent o

f R
evenues, 

E
xpenditures, and C

hanges in F
und B

alances to the S
tatem

ent o
f 

A
ctivities __________________________________________________________________________________________________ F _______________________ 25 

BOO~BAGOCOUNnES 

REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
PAGE 

OFFICIALS ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ _ 

COMPLIANCE REPORT SUMMARy ______________________________________________________________________________________ 2 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT REPORT SUMMARy ___________________________________________________________________ 4 

FINANCIAL SECTION 

Independent Auditors' Report _________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 5 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and 
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on 
an Audit of Financial Statements Perfonned in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards._. ___________________________________________________________________ 7 

Report on Compliance with Requirements 
Applicable to Each Major Program and on Internal Control 
Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 _______________________________________________________ 9 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs _____________________________________________________________________________________ 11 

Financial Statement Findings. __________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 12 

Federal Award Findings __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ .12 

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings _____________________________________________________________________________________ 13 

Management's Discussion and Analysis ________________________________________________________________________________________ .14 

EXHIBIT 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Government-wide Financial Statements 
Statement of Net Assets ___________________________________________________________________________________ A ______________________ 20 

Statement of Activities B 21 

Fund Financial Statements 
Governmental Funds - Balance Sheet _______________________________________________________________ C ______________________ 22 
Governmental Funds - Reconciliation ofthe Governmental Funds 

Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets _____________________________________________ D ______________________ 23 
Governmental Funds - Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balances _________________________________________________________________________ E ______________________ 24 

Governmental Funds - Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of 
Activities __________________________________________________________________________________________________ F _______________________ 25 



B
O
O
N
E
~
B
A
G
O
C
O
U
N
n
E
S
 

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 O

F
F

IC
E

 O
F

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 N
O

.4
 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 (C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) 

E
X

H
ffiIT

 
B

A
SIC

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 S

T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

S
 (C

ontinued) 

F
und F

inancial S
tatem

ents (C
ontinued) 

P
A

G
E

 

P
roprietary F

unds -
S

tatem
eut o

f N
et A

ssets ..................................................... G
 ...................... 2

6
 

P
roprietary F

unds -
S

tatem
ent o

f R
evenues, E

xpenses and 
C

hanges in F
und N

et A
ssets ...................................................................... H

 ...................... 2
7

 
P

roprietary F
unds -

S
tatem

ent o
f C

ash F
low

s ................................................... J. ....................... 2
8

 
F

iduciary F
unds -

S
tatem

ent o
f F

iduciary N
et A

ssets_ .......... _ ............................. J ....................... 2
9

 
N

otes to F
inancial S

tatem
ents 

30 

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 S

U
P

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

 IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 

Illinois M
unicipal R

etirem
ent F

und -
S

chedule o
f F

unding P
rogress _ .......................................... 5

0
 

S
U

P
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
 IN

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

 

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 
G

eneral F
und A

ccounts: 
C

om
bining S

chedule o
f A

ccounts ............................ _ ....................................... _1 ............. _ ......... 51 
C

om
bining S

chedule o
f R

evenues, E
xpenditures, and 

C
hanges in F

und B
alances .. __ .. __ ............................................. _ ........ _ ......... 2 ....................... 5

2
 

B
udgetary C

om
parison Schedule_._ .................................................................. 3 ....................... 5

3
 

S
pecial R

evenue F
unds: 

E
ducation F

und A
ccounts 

C
om

bining S
chedule o

f A
ccounts._ .. __ ........................................................ 4 ....................... 5

4
 

C
om

bining S
chedule o

f R
evenues, E

xpenditures, and 
C

hanges in F
und B

alances ................................... ___ ._ .......................... 5 ....................... 5
5

 
B

udgetary C
om

parison S
chedule ............................................................... 6 .................. _ .... 5

6
 

R
egional A

lternative School 
C

om
bining S

chedule o
f A

ccounts ........................ __ ........... _ ........................ 7 ................... __ .. 5
7

 
C

om
bining S

chedule o
f R

evenues, E
xpenditures, and 

C
hanges in F

und B
alances_ ................................ __ ................................ 8 ............. _ ......... 5

8
 

R
egional L

earning C
enter 

C
om

bining S
chedule o

f A
ccounts ..................................... _ ........................ 9 ....................... 5

9
 

C
om

bining S
chedule o

f R
evenues, E

xpenditures, and 
C

hanges in F
und B

alances ................................... _ .............................. _10 ...... _ .... _ ......... 6
0

 

BOONElWINNEBAGO COUNTIES 
REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 

TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONTINUED) 

EXlIIBIT 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

PAGE 

Proprietruy Funds - Statement of Net Assets _______________________ ''_ .. _'_ ...... _ ............... G' .. ' ........ ____ .... ,,26 
Proprietruy Funds - Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 

Changes in Fund Net Assets ...... , .. ", ______ """_ .. ________________________________ " ______ .. _H", ........ , .. ________ 27 
Proprietruy Funds -- Statement of Cash Flows ________ .... ________ " _______ .. " __ "",, __ ________ J,,""""""" "_",,,28 
Fiduciary Funds - Statement ofFiduciruy Net Assets _________________________________________ J ______________ .... ,, ___ ,29 
Notes to Financial Statements,, _____________________________________ .. ", ___________________ " ________ ,, .. ____ .... _, __ '"'' 30 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
Tllinois Municipal Retirement Fund Schedule of Funding Progress ___________ " ___ """""""_"""",,,,50 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE 
General Fund Accounts: 

Combining Schedule of Accounts"" ,, ________ """"""'" "_" .... ,, __ .. """ ______ ,,, ""'"'' 1 ____ "",, ___ , """",,51 
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balances :"" _, ,,_ .. _______ ''''' __ ,,_ .... __ ,,_''''''' ____ ''''' _____ '''' " ______ __ ~' __ "' __ ''''' ____ , ________ -'k 
B udgetruy Comparison Schedule, ________ .. ______ " , __ " , _________________________________ " _, ________ 3 _______________________ ,5 3 

Special Revenue Funds: 

Education Fund Accounts 
Combining Schedule of Accounts ______________________________________________________________ 4 _______________________ 54 

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances __________________ ""' _______________ " ___________________ "" ___ .5 _______________________ 5 5 

Budge truy Comparison Schedu Ie ____________________ " _________________________________________ 6 ________ " ______ " , ____ 56 

Regional Alternative School 
Combining Schedu Ie of Accounts" _______ ,, ___________________________________________________ 7_____ ______________ 57 

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances ____________________________ , _____ , ________________________________ .8 _______________________ 58 

Regional Learning Center 
Combining Schedule of Accounts _____________________________________________________________ ,9 _______________________ 59 

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances ______________________ .. ___ , , ___ ... ,_ .. ___________________ ......... i 0 _______ .... __________ 60 



B
O

O
N

E
lW

IN
N

E
B

A
G

O
 C

O
U

N
T

IE
S

 
R

E
G

IO
N

A
L

 O
F

F
IC

E
 O

F
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 N

O
.4

 

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S
 (C

O
N

T
IN

U
E

D
) S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
 

S
U

P
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
 IN

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

 (C
ontinued) 

Special R
evenue F

unds (C
ontinued): 

R
egional L

earning A
cadem

y 

P
A

G
E

 

C
om

bining S
chedule o

f A
ccounts ............................................................... 11 ..................... 61 

C
om

bining S
chedule o

f R
evenues, E

xpenditures, and 
C

hanges in F
und B

alances ................................................................... 12 ..................... 6
2

 
B

udgetary C
om

parison S
chedule ................................................................ 13 ..................... 63 

K
ID

S
 F

und 
C

om
bining S

chedule o
f A

ccounts ............................................................... 14 ..................... 6
4

 
C

om
bining S

chedule o
f R

evenues, E
xpenditures, and 

C
hanges in F

und B
alances .................................................................. .1 5 ..................... 6

5
 

B
udgetary C

om
parison S

chedule .............................................................. .1 6 ..................... 6
6

 

N
onm

ajor S
pecial R

evenue F
unds: 

C
om

bining B
alance Sheet. .............................................................................. .1 7 ..................... 6

8
 

C
om

bining S
tatem

ent o
f R

evenues, E
xpenditures, and 

C
hanges in F

und B
alances ......................................................................... 1

8
 ..................... 6

9
 

F
iduciary F

unds: 
C

om
bining S

tatem
ent o

f F
iduciary N

et A
ssets ................................................... 19 ..................... 70 

C
om

bining S
tatem

ent o
f C

hanges in A
ssets and L

iabilities -
A

ll A
gency F

unds ..................................................................................... 2
0

 .................... .71 

S
chedule o

f D
isbursem

ents to S
chool D

istrict T
reasurers 

and O
thers ...................................................................................................... 21 ..................... 72 

F
E

D
E

R
A

L
 C

O
M

P
L

IA
N

C
E

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

 

S
chedule o

f E
xpenditures o

f F
ederal A

w
ards .......................................................... 2

2
 ..................... 73 

N
otes to S

chedule o
f E

xpenditures o
f F

ederal A
w

ards ...................................................................... 74 

BOO~BAGOCOUNTIES 

REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 

TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONTINUED) 

SCHEDULE 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (Continued) 

Special Revenue Funds (Continued): 

Regional Learning Academy 

PAGE 

Combining Schedule of Accounts ............................................................... 11 ..................... 61 
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditores, and 

Changes in Fund Balances .................................................................... 12 .................... 62 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule ................................................................ 13 ..................... 63 

KIDS Fund 
Combining Schedule of Accounts ............................ . 
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balances ................................................................... 1_ ........................ __ 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule .............................................................. )6 ..................... 66 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds: 
Combining Balance Sheet ................................................................................ 17 ..................... 68 
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditores, and 

Changes in Fund Balances ........................................................................ 18 .................... 69 

Fiduciary Funds: 
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets ............................................... J 9 ..................... 70 
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 

All Agency Funds ...................................................................................... 20 ..................... 71 

Schedule of Disbursements to School District Treasurers 
and Others ....................................................................................................... 21 ..................... 72 

FEDERAL COMPLIANCE SECTION 

Schedule of Expend ito res of Federal Awards .......................................................... 22 ..................... 73 
Notes to Schedule of Expend ito res of Federal Awards ..................................................................... ..74 



B
O

O
N

E
lW

IN
N

E
B

A
G

O
 C

O
U

N
T

IE
S

 
R

E
G

IO
N

A
L

 O
F

F
IC

E
 O

F
 E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 N

O
.4

 
O

F
F

IC
IA

L
S

 

R
egional S

uperintendent 
(current and during the audit period) 

A
ssistant R

egional S
uperintendent 

(current and during the audit period) 

O
ffice is located at: 

300 H
em

i B
lvd. 

L
oves P

ark, IL
 61111 

D
r. R

ichard F
airgrieves 

D
r. L

ori F
anello 

1 

BOONElWINNEBAGO COUNTIES 
REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 

OFFICIALS 

Regional Superintendent 
(current and during the audit period) 

Assistant Regional Superintendent 
(coo'ent and during the audit period) 

Office is located at: 

300 Hemt Blvd. 
Loves Park, IL 61111 

Dr. Richard Fairgrieves 

Dr. Lori Fanello 

1 



B
O
O
~
B
A
G
O
C
O
U
N
n
E
S
 

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 O

F
F

IC
E

 O
F

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 N
O

.4
 

C
O
M
P
L
D
l
N
C
E
R
E
P
O
R
T
S
~
Y
 

T
he com

pliance audit testing perform
ed in this audit w

as conducted in accordance w
ith 

G
overnm

ent A
uditing Standards and in accordance w

ith the Illinois S
tate A

uditing A
ct. 

A
U

D
IT

O
R

S
' R

E
P

O
R

T
S

 

T
he auditors' reports on com

pliance and on internal controls do not contain scope lim
itations, 

disclaim
ers, o

r other significant non-standard language. 

S
~
Y
 O

F
 A

U
D

IT
 F

IN
D

IN
G

S
 

N
um

ber o
f 

A
udit findings 

R
epeated audit findings 

P
rior recom

m
endations im

plem
ented or not repeated 

T
his A

udit 
P

rior A
udit 

A
n additional m

atter w
hich is less than a significant deficiency or m

aterial w
eakness but 

m
ore than inconsequential, has been reported in a M

anagem
ent L

etter o
f C

om
m

ents to the 
R

egional S
uperintendent. 

In prior years, this issue m
ay have been included as an im

m
aterial 

finding in the auditors' reports. 

S
~
Y
 O

F
 F

IN
D

IN
G

S
 A

N
D

 Q
U

E
S

T
IO

N
E

D
 C

O
S

T
S

 

Item
 

N
o. 

P
age 

12 

12 

13 

13 

D
escription 

F
IN

D
IN

G
S

 (G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 A
U

D
IT

IN
G

 ST
A

N
D

A
R

D
S) 

N
one 

F
IN

D
IN

G
S

 A
N

D
 Q

U
E

S
T

IO
N

E
D

 C
O

S
T

S
 

(F
E

D
E

R
A

L
 C

O
M

P
L

IA
N

C
E

) 
N

one 

P
R

IO
R

 F
IN

D
IN

G
S

 N
O

T
 R

E
P

E
A

T
E

D
 

(G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 A
 U

D
IT

IN
G

 ST
A

N
D

A
R

D
S) 

N
one 

P
R

IO
R

 F
IN

D
IN

G
S

 N
O

T
 R

E
P

E
A

T
E

D
 

(F
E

D
E

R
A

L
 C

O
M

P
L

IA
N

C
E

) 
N

one 

2 

F
inding T

ype 

N
/A

 

N
/A

 

BOO~AGOCOUNnES 
REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 

COMPLIANCE REPORT SUMMARY 

The compliance audit testing performed in this audit was conducted in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards and in accordance with the Illinois State Auditing Act. 

AUDITORS' REPORTS 

The auditors' reports on compliance and on internal controls do not contain scope limitations, 
disclaimers, or other significant non-standard language. 

SUMMARY OF AUDIT FINDINGS 

Number of 

Audit findings 
Repeated audit findings 
Prior reeommendations implemented or not repeated 

This Audit Prior Audit 

An additional matter which is less than a significant deficiency or material weaklless but 
more than inconsequential, has been reported in a Management Letter of Comments to the 
Regional Superintendent. In prior years, this issue Ulily have been included as an immaterial 
finding in the auditors' reperts. 

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Item 
No. 

Page 

12 

12 

13 

13 

Description 

FINDINGS (GOVERNMENT A UDITING STANDARDS) 
None 

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
(FEDERAL COMPLIANCE) 

None 

PRIOR FINDINGS NOT REPEATED 
(GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS) 

None 

PRIOR FINDINGS NOT REPEATED 
(FEDERAL COIvlPLIANCE) 

None 

2 

Finding Type 

N/A 

NlA 
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exit conference during the financial audit for the year ended June 30, 2009. 
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BOONE~BAGOCOUNnES 

REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
COMFL~CEREPORTS~Y-CONTThrnED 

EXIT CONFERENCE 

The Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Oflice of Education No.4 opted not to have an 
exit conference during the financial audit for the year ended June 30, 2009. 
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4 

BOONElWINNEBAGO COUNTIES 
REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT REPORT SUMMARY 

The audit of the accompanying basic fmancial statements of the BooneIWinnebago Counties 
Regional Office of Education No.4 was performed by E. C. Ortiz & Co., LLP. 

Based on their audit, the auditors expressed an unqualified opinion on the BoonelWinnebago 
Counties Regional Office of Education No.4' s basic fmancial statements. 
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H
onorable W

illiam
 G

. H
olland 

A
uditor G

eneral 
State o

f Illinois 

A
s Special A

ssistant A
uditors for the A

uditor G
eneral, w

e have audited the accom
panying 

fm
ancial statem

ents o
f the governm

ental activities, the business-type activities, each m
ajor nm

d, 
and the aggregate rem

aining fund 
inforn1ation o

f the B
oonelW

innebago C
ounties R

egional 
O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o

.4
, as o

f and for the year ended June 30, 2009, w
hich collectively 

com
prise the B

oone/W
innebago C

ounties R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 4's basic fm

ancial 
statem

ents as listed in the table o
f contents. 

T
hese financial statem

ents are the responsibility o
f 

the B
oone/W

innebago C
ounties R

egional 
O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 

4's m
anagem

ent. 
O

ur 
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statem

ents based on our audit 

W
e condncted our audit in accordance w

ith auditing standards generally accepted in the 
U

nited S
tates 

o
f A

m
erica and the 

standards 
applicable 

to 
financial 

audits 
contained 

in 
G

overnm
ent A

uditing Standards issued by the C
om

ptroller G
eneral o

f the U
nited States. 

T
hose standards require that w

e plan and perform
 the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about w
hether the financial statem

ents are free o
f m

aterial m
isstatem

ent 
A

n audit includes 
exam

ining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the am
ounts and disclosures in the financial 

statem
ents. 

A
n 

audit 
also 

includes 
assessing 

the 
accounting 

principles 
used 

and 
the 

significant 
estim

ates 
m

ade 
by m

anagem
ent, 

as 
w

ell 
as 

evaluating the 
overall 

financial 
statem

ent presentation. 
W

e believe that our audit provides a reasonable 
basis for 

our 
opinions. 

h1 
our opinion, the financial 

statem
ents referred to above present fairly, 

in 
all 

m
aterial 

respects, the respective financial position o
f the governm

ental activities, the business-type 
activities, 

each 
m

ajor 
fund, 

and 
the 

aggregate 
rem

aining 
fund 

inforn1ation 
o

f 
the 

B
oonelW

innebago C
ounties R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o
.4

, as o
f June 30, 2009, and the 

respective changes in financial position and cash flow
s, w

here applicable, thereof for the year 
then ended in confonnity w

ith accounting principles generally accepted in the U
nited S

tates 
o

f A
nlerica. 

In accordance w
ith G

overnm
ent A

uditing Standards, w
e have also issued a report dated 

F
ebruary 12, 2010 on our consideration o

f the B
oonelW

illi1ebago C
ounties R

egional O
ffice o

f 
E

ducation N
o. 4

's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests o
f its com

pliance 
w

ith certain provisions 
o

f law
s, 

regulations, 
contracts, and 

grant agreem
ents 

and 
other 

m
atters. 

T
he purpose o

f that report is to describe the scope o
f our testing o

f internal control 
over financial reporting and com

pliance and the results o
f that testing, and not to provide an 
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RTIZ &. co., ILl) 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Honorable William G. Holland 
Auditor General 
State of Illinois 

As Special Assistant Auditors for the Auditor General, we have audited the accompanying 
financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the BoonefWinnebago Counties Regional 
Office of Education No.4, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which collectively 
comprise the Boone/WiJn1ebago Counties Regional Office of Education No.4's basic fmancial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of 
the BoonefWinnebago Counties Regional Office of Edncation No. 4's management. Our 
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Govcl'I1ment Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinions. 

111 our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund inforn1l1tion of the 
Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No.4, as of June 30, 2009, and the 
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year 
then ended in COnf0n11ity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated 
February 12, 2010 on our consideration of the Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of 
Education No.4' s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
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opinion on the intem
al control over financial repO

liing or on com
pliance. 

T
hat repO

li is an 
integral part o

f an audit perform
ed in accordance w

ith G
overnm

ent A
uditing Standards and 

should be considered in assessing the results o
f our audit. 

T
he M

anagem
ent's D

iscussion and A
nalysis and the Illinois M

unicipal 
R

etirem
ent F

und 
S

chedule o
f F

unding P
rogress on pages 14 through 19 and 50 are not a required part o

f the 
basic 

financial 
statem

ents 
but 

are 
supplem

entary 
inform

ation 
required 

by 
accounting 

principles generally accepted in the U
nited S

tates o
f A

m
erica. 

W
e have applied certain 

lim
ited procedures, w

hich consisted principally o
f inquiries o

f m
anagem

ent regarding the 
m

ethods 
o

f m
easurem

ent 
and 

presentation 
o

f the 
required 

supplem
entary 

inform
ation. 

H
ow

ever, w
e did not audit the infom

lation and express no opinion on it. 

O
ur audit w

as conducted for the purpose o
f fonning opinions on the financial statem

ents that 
collectively com

prise the B
oonefW

innebago C
ounties R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 4
's 

basic 
financial 

statem
ents. 

T
he 

com
bining 

and 
individual 

nonm
ajor 

fund 
financial 

statem
ents, 

budgetary com
parison schedules, 

and 
S

chedule 
o

f D
isbursem

ents to 
S

chool 
D

istrict T
reasurers and O

thers are presented for purposes o
f additional analysis and are not a 

required part o
f the basic financial statem

ents. 
T

he accom
panying S

chedule o
f E

xpenditures 
o

f F
ederal A

w
ards is presented for purposes o

f additional analysis as required by the U
.S

. 
O

ffice o
f M

anagem
ent and B

udget C
ircular A

-133, A
udits oIStates, L

ocal G
overnm

ents, and 
N

on-P
ro!it O

rganizations, and is also not a required part o
f the basic financial statem

ents. 
T

he com
bining and individual nonm

ajor fund financial statem
ents, budgetary com

parison 
schedules, S

chedule o
f D

isbursem
ents to 

S
chool D

istrict T
reasurers and O

thers, and the 
S

chedule o
f E

xpenditures o
f F

ederal A
w

ards have been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit o

f the basic financial statem
ents and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in 

all m
aterial respects in relation to the basic financial statem

ents taken as a w
hole. 

E. C. ~
 ~ 

C
o., 

LLP
 

C
hicago, Illinois 

F
ebruary 12, 2010 

6 

opinion on the intcmal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That repmi is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and 
should be considered in assessing tlle results of our audit. 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis and tlle Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 
Schedule of Funding Progress on pages 14 tluough 19 and 50 are not a required part of the 
basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain 
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the 
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. 
However, we did not audit the infommtion and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fonning opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No. 4'5 

basic financial statements. TIle combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements, budgetary comparison schedules, and Schedule of Disbursements to School 
District Treasurers and Others are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part orthe basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures 
of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the U.S. 
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Alldits a/States, Local Governments, and 
Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary comparison 
schedules, Schedule of Disbursements to School District Treasurers and Others, and the 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in 
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Chicago, Illinois 
February 12,2010 
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H
onorable W

illiam
 G

. H
olland 

A
nditor G

eneral 
S

tate o
f Illinois 

A
s 

S
pecial 

A
ssistant 

A
nditors 

for 
the 

A
uditor 

G
eneral, 

w
e 

have 
audited 

the 
financial 

statem
ents o

f the governm
ental activities, the business-type activities, each m

ajor fund, and 
the aggregate rem

aining fund infol111ation o
f the B

oonelW
innebago C

ounties R
egional O

ffice 
o

f E
ducation N

o, 4, as o
f and for the year ended June 30, 2009, w

hich collectively com
prise 

the 
B

oonelW
innebago 

C
ounties 

R
egional 

O
ffice 

o
f E

ducation 
N

o. 
4

's 
basic 

financial 
statem

ents and have issued our report thereon dated F
ebruary 12, 2010. W

e conducted our 
audit 

in accordance w
ith auditing standards 

generally 
accepted 

in the U
nited S

tates 
o

f 
A

m
erica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in G

overnm
ent A

uditing 
Standards, issued by the C

om
ptroller G

eneral o
f the U

nited States. 

In
tern

al C
o

n
tro

l O
v

er F
inancial R

ep
o

rtin
g

 

In 
planning 

and 
perform

ing 
our 

audit, 
w

e 
considered 

the 
B

oone/W
iIm

ebago 
C

m
m

ties 
R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o, 4
's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for 

designing our auditing procedures for the purpose o
f expressing our opinions on the financial 

statem
ents, but not for the purpose o

f expressing an opinion on the effectiveness o
f the 

B
oone/W

il1l1ebago 
C

ounties 
R

egional 
O

ffice 
o

f E
ducation N

o, 
4

's 
internal 

control 
over 

financial reporting, 
A

ccordingly, w
e do not express an opinion on the effectiveness o

f the 
B

oonelW
il1l1ebago 

C
ounties 

R
egional 

O
ffice 

o
f E

ducation 
N

o, 
4

's 
internal 

control 
over 

financial reporting. 

A
 deficiency in internal control exists w

hen the design or operation o
f a control does not allow

 
m

anagem
ent or em

ployees, in the nornlal course o
f perfol111ing their assigned fi.m

ctions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct m

isstatem
ents on a tim

ely basis. 

A
 m

aterial w
eakness is a deficiency, or com

bination o
f deficiencies, in internal control, such 

that there is 
a reasonable 

possibility that a m
aterial m

isstatem
ent o

f the entity's financial 
statem

ents w
ill not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a tim

ely basis, 

O
ur consideration o

f internal control over financial reporting w
as for the lim

ited purpose 
described 

in 
the 

first 
paragraph 

o
f this 

section 
and 

w
as 

not 
designed 

to 
identify 

all 
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I.e. ORTIZ & CO. ILl' 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEl\'IENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNllIENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Honorable William G. Holland 
Auditor General 
State of Illinois 

As Special Assistant Auditors for the Auditor General, we have audited the financial 
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fimd information of the Boone/Winnebago COlmties Regional Office 
of Education No.4, as of and for the year ended .Tune 30, 2009, which collectively comprise 
the BoonelWinnebago Counties Regional Oflice of Education No. 4's basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated February 12,2010. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the BooneiWiImebago Counties 
Regional Office of Education No. 4'5 internal control over financial reporting as a basis for 
desi gning our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No. 4's internal control over 
financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
BooneiWinnebago Counties Regional Oflice of Education No. 4's internal control over 
financial reporting. 

A deficiency ill internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the nonnal course of perfol1ning their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. 

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intel1lal control, such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's fmancial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a funely basis, 

Our eonsideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all 

ret; 312.tl ( •. 1<)00 (ax; 312.8711.1')11 
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deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that m
ight be deficiencies, significant 

deficiencies, or m
aterial w

eaknesses. 
W

e did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
over financial reporting that w

e consider to be m
aterial w

eaknesses, as defined above. 

C
om

pliance and O
th

er M
atters 

A
s part o

f obtaining reasonable assurance about w
hether the B

oonelW
innebago C

ounties 
R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 4
's financial statem

ents are free o
f m

aterial m
isstatem

ent, 
w

e perform
ed tests o

f its com
pliance w

ith certain provisions o
f law

s, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreem

ents, noncom
pliance w

ith w
hich could have a direct and m

aterial effect on 
the 

deternlination 
o

f financial 
statem

ent 
anlolm

ts. 
H

ow
ever, 

providing 
an 

opinion on 
com

pliance w
ith those provisions w

as not an objective o
f our audit, and accordingly, w

e do 
not 

express 
such 

an 
opinion. 

T
he 

results 
o

f 
our 

tests 
disclosed 

no 
instances 

o
f 

noncom
pliance or other m

atters that are required to be reported under G
overnm

ent A
uditing 

Standards. 

W
e noted a certain m

atter w
hich w

e have reported to m
anagem

ent o
f the B

oone/W
innebago 

C
ounties R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o
.4

 in a separate letter dated F
ebruary 12,2010. 

T
his report is intended solely for the infonnation and use o

f the A
uditor G

eneral, the G
eneral 

A
ssem

bly, the L
egislative A

udit C
om

m
ission, the G

overnor, agency m
anagem

ent, others 
w

ithin the entity, Illinois S
tate B

oard o
f E

ducation, federal 
aw

arding agencies and pass­
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

C
hicago, Illinois 

F
ebruary 1

2
,2

0
1

0
 

Co 
L

L
p

 
. , 

8 

deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant 
deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the BoonefWimlebago Counties 
Regional Office of Education No. 4's financial statements are free of material misstatement, 
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
311d grant agreements, noncompli311Cc with which could have a direct 311d material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amOtU1ts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Stal1dards. 

We noted a certain matter which we have reported to m311agement of the BoonefWinnebago 
Counties Regional Oftice of Education No. 4 in a separate letter dated February 12,2010. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Auditor General, the General 
Assembly, tlle Legislative Audit Commission, the Govemor, agency management, others 
within tlle entity, Illinois State Board of Education, federal awarding agencies and pass­
tlrrough entities and is not intended to be 311d should not be used by anyone other than these 
specificd parties. 

Chicago, Illinois 
February 12,2010 
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H
onorable W

illiam
 G

. H
olland 

A
uditor G

eneral 
S

tate o
f Illinois 

C
om

pliance 

W
e 

have 
audited the 

com
pliance 

o
f the 

B
oone/W

innebago 
C

ounties 
R

egional 
O

ffice o
f 

E
ducation N

o
.4

 w
ith the types o

f com
pliance requirem

ents described in the us. 
O

ffice o
f 

M
anagem

ent and B
udget (O

M
B

) C
ircular A

-i3
3

 C
om

pliance Supplem
ent that are applicable 

to 
each 

o
f 

its 
m

ajor 
federal 

program
s 

for 
the 

year 
ended 

June 
30, 

2009. 
T

he 
B

oone/W
innebago C

ounties R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 4

's m
ajor federal program

s are 
identified in the S

um
m

ary o
f A

uditors' R
esults section o

f the accom
panying S

chedule o
f 

F
indings and Q

uestioned C
osts. 

C
om

pliance w
ith the requirem

ents o
f law

s, regulations, 
contracts, and grants applicable to each o

f its m
ajor federal program

s is the responsibility o
f 

the B
oone/W

innebago C
ounties R

egional 
O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 4

's m
anagem

ent. 
O

ur 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the B

oone/w
innebago C

ounties R
egional O

ffice o
f 

E
ducation N

o. 4
's com

pliance based on our audit. 

W
e 

conducted our audit o
f com

pliance in accordance w
ith auditing standards generally 

accepted in the 
U

nited 
S

tates 
o

f A
m

erica; 
the 

standards 
applicable 

to 
financial 

audits 
contained in G

overnm
ent A

uditing Standards, 
issued by the C

om
ptroller G

eneral o
f the 

U
nited S

tates; and O
M

B
 C

ircular A
-l33, A

udits o
f States, 

L
ocal G

overnm
ents, 

and N
on­

P
rofit O

rganizations. 
T

hose standards and O
M

B
 C

ircular A
-133 require that w

e plan and 
perform

 the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about w
hether noncom

pliance w
ith the 

types o
f com

pliance requirem
ents referred to above that could have a direct and m

aterial 
effect on a m

ajor federal program
 occurred. 

A
n audit includes exam

ining, on a test basis, 
evidence 

about 
the 

B
oone/W

innebago 
C

ounties 
R

egional 
O

ffice 
o

f E
ducation 

N
o. 

4
's 

com
pliance w

ith those requirem
ents and perform

ing such other procedures as w
e considered 

necessary in the circum
stances. 

W
e believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 

opinion. 
O

ur audit does not provide a legal determ
ination o

f the B
oone/W

innebago C
O

lm
ties 

R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 4

's com
pliance w

ith those requirem
ents. 

In our opinion, the B
oone/W

iIm
ebago C

ounties R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o

.4
 com

plied, 
in all m

aterial respects, w
ith the requirem

ents referred to above that are applicable to each o
f 

its m
ajor federal progranls for the year ended June 30, 2009. 
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· ORTIZ eCL LIP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUHTAtH$ 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH 
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB cmCULAR A-133 

Honorable William G. Holland 
Auditor General 
State of Illinois 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of the Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of 
Education No.4 with the types of compliance requirements described in the us. QIJicc of 
Management and Budget (OAf B) Circular A-J33 Compliance Supplement that are applicable 
to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009. The 
Boone/Wim1ebago Counties Regional Office of Education No. 4's major federal programs are 
identified in the Sununary of Auditors' Results section of the accompanying Schedule of 
Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of 
the Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No. 4'5 management. Our 
responsibility is 10 express an opinion on the Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of 
Education No. 4's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audi t of compliance in accordance with auditing standards general! y 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States; and OMB Circular A-l33, Audits of Stales, Local Governments, alld Non­
Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require (hat we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material 
effect on a maj or federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about the Boonei\Villi1cbago Counties Regional Office of Education No. 4's 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of (he Boone/Winnebago Counties 
Regional Office of Education No. 4'5 compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinioll, the Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No.4 complied, 
in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of 
its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009. 

t1!l: JI~"H7(i,1')!lO fa~;: 312.K76,1')I! 
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Internal C
ontrol O

v
er C

om
pliance 

T
he m

anagem
ent o

f the B
oonelW

innebago C
ounties R

egional O
ffice o

f E
dncation N

o
.4

 is 
responsible for establishing and m

aintaining effective intem
al control over com

pliance w
ith 

the requirem
ents o

f law
s, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal program

s. 
In 

plaruling 
and 

perform
ing 

our 
audit, 

w
e 

considered 
the 

B
oone/W

innebago 
C

ounties 
R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 4's intem
al control over com

pliance w
ith requirem

ents that 
could have a direct and m

aterial effect on a m
ajor federal program

 in order to determ
ine our 

auditing procedures for the purpose o
f expressing our opinion on com

pliance, but not for the 
purpose o

f expressing an opinion on the effectiveness o
f internal control over com

pliance. 
A

ccordingly, w
e do not express an opinion on the effectiveness o

f the B
oone/W

ilm
ebago 

C
ounties R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 4
's intem

al control over com
pliance. 

A
 control deficiency in an entity's intem

al control over com
pliance exists w

hen the design or 
operation o

f a control does not allow
 m

anagem
ent or em

ployees, in the nonnal course o
f 

perfonning their assigned functions, 
to prevent or detect noncom

pliance w
ith a type 

o
f 

com
pliance requirem

ent o
f a federal program

 on a tim
ely basis. 

A
 significant d~ficiency is a 

control deficiency or com
bination o

f control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity's 
ability to adm

inister a federal program
 such that there is m

ore than a rem
ote likelihood that 

noncom
pliance w

ith a type o
f com

pliance requirem
ent o

f a federal program
 that is m

ore than 
inconsequential w

ill not be prevented or detected by the entity's intem
al control. 

A
 m

aterial w
eakness is a significant deficiency, or com

bination o
f significant deficiencies, 

that results in m
ore than a rem

ote likelihood that m
aterial noncom

pliance w
ith a type o

f 
com

pliance requirem
ent o

f a federal program
 w

ill not be prevented or detected by the entity's 
internal control. 

O
ur consideration o

f internal control over com
pliance w

as for the lim
ited purpose described 

in the first pam
graph o

f this section and w
ould not necessarily identify all deficiencies in 

intem
al control that m

ight be significant deficiencies or m
aterial w

eaknesses. 
W

e did not 
identify any deficiencies in intem

al control over com
pliance that w

e consider to be m
aterial 

w
ealm

esses, as defined above. 

T
his repoli is intended solely for the infonnation and use o

f the A
uditor G

eneral, the G
eneral 

A
ssem

bly, the L
egislative A

udit C
om

m
ission, the G

overnor, agency m
anagem

ent, others 
w

ithin the entity, Illinois State B
oard o

f E
ducation, federal 

aw
arding agencies and pass­

through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

£. c. 
~
 

2x 
C

o
', LL'P 

C
hicago, Illinois 

F
ebruary 12,2010 
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Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of the BoonefWinnebago Cmmties Regional Office of Education No, 4 is 
responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with 
the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs, 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the BoonefWilmebago Counties 
Regional Office of Education No. 4's internal control over compliance with requirements that 
could have a direct and material effect on a maj or federal program in order to determine our 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion 011 compliance. but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the BooneiWinnebago 
Counties Regional Office of Erlucation No. 4's internal control over compliance. 

A cOlllrol deficiency in an entity's internal control over compliance exists when the design or 
operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the nonnal course of 
performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant de.ficiency is a 
control deficiency or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity's 
ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than 
inconsequential '>'.111 not be prevented or detected by the enti ty' S internal controL 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, 
that results in more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement ofa federal program will not be prevented or detected by the entity's 
internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the iiJnited purpose described 
in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in 
internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. 

This rcpOlt is intended solely for the infornJation and use of the Auditor General, the General 
Assembly, the Legislative Audit Commission, the Governor, agency management, others 
within the entity, Illinois State Board of Education, federal awarding agencies and pass­
through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

Chicago, Illinois 
February 12, 2010 
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F
O

R
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H
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E

A
R

 E
N

D
E

D
 JU

N
E

 30, 2009 

P
art I: 

Sum
m

ary of A
uditors' R

esults 

F
inancial Statem

ents 

T
ype o

f auditors' report issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

• 
M

aterial w
ealm

ess(es) identified? 
• 

S
ignificant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 

considered to be m
aterial w

ealm
ess( es)? 

• 
N

oncom
pliance m

aterial to financial statem
ents 

noted? 

F
ederal A

w
ard

s 

Intem
al control over m

ajor program
s: 

• 
M

aterial w
ealm

ess( es) identified? 
• 

S
ignificant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 

considered to be m
aterial w

ealm
ess(es)? 

T
ype o

f auditors' report issued on com
pliance for 

m
ajor program

s: 

A
ny audit findings disclosed that are required to be 

reported in
 accordance w

ith C
ircular A

-133, 
S

ection .51O
(a)? 

Identification o
f m

ajor program
s: 

U
nqualified 

Y
es 

.(' 
N

o 

Y
es 

.(' 
N

one reported 

Y
es 

.(' 
N

o 

Y
es 

.(' 
N

o 

Y
es 
~
 N

one reported 

U
nqualified 

Y
es 

.(' 
N

o 

C
F

D
A

 N
um

ber 
N

am
e o

f F
ederal P

rogram
 or C

luster 

84.01O
A

 
84.010A

 
T

itle I -
S

chool Im
provem

ent and A
ccountability 

S
tandards A

ligned C
lassroom

 Initiative 

D
ollar threshold used to distinguish betw

een type A
 

and type B
 P

rogram
s: 

A
uditee qualified as low

-risk auditee? 

11 

$300,000 

,/ 
Y

es 
N

o 

BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Part I: Summary of Auditors' Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

• Material weakness(es) identified? 
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 

considered to be material weakness( es)? 
• Noncompliance material to financial statements 

noted? 

Federal Awards 

Intemal control over major programs: 

• Material wealmess( es) identified? 
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not 

considered to be material weakness(es)? 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for 
major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with Circular A-133, 
Section .510(a)? 

Identification of major programs: 

Ungua=lifi=e.:..d'--_____ _ 

Yes .,/ No 

Yes ~ None reported 

Yes .,/ No 

Yes .,/ No 

Yes .,/ None reported 

~nqualified 

Yes .,/ No 

CFDANumbcr Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

84.0 lOA 
84.010A 

Title I - Schoollmprovement and Accountability 
Standards Aligned Classroom Initiative 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A 
and type B Programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

11 

$300,000 

.,/ Yes No 
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S
C
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 O
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 F
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 A
N
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E
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 C
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F
O

R
 T

H
E

 Y
E

A
R
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N

D
E

D
 JU

N
E

 30, 2009 

P
art II: F

indings R
elated to the B

asic F
inancial S

tatem
ents 

T
here are no audit findings in the current year. 

P
art m

: F
indings an

d
 Q

uestioned C
osts fo

r F
ed

eral A
w

ard
s 

Instances o
f N

oncom
pliance: 

N
one 

S
ignificant D

eficiencies: 

N
one 

12 

BOONElWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2009 

Part II: Findings Related to the Basic Financial Statements 

There are no audit findings in the current year. 

Part m: Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards 

Instances of Noncompliance: 

None 

Significant Deficiencies: 

None 

12 
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JU
N

E
 30, 2009 

T
here w

ere no audit findings in the prior year. 

13 

BOONEfWlNNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. " 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

JUNE 30, 2009 

TIlere were no audit findings in the prior year. 

13 
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N
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 A
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JU
N

E
 30, 2009 

T
he B

oone/W
iIm

ebago C
ounties R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o
.4

 (R
O

E
 N

o
.4

) provides 
this 

M
anagem

ent's D
iscussion and 

A
nalysis 

o
f its 

financial 
statem

ents. 
T

his 
narrative 

overview
 and analysis o

f the financial activities is for the year ended June 30, 2009 w
ith 

com
parative inform

ation for the year ended June 30, 2008. 
R

eaders are encouraged to 
consider the inform

ation in conjunction w
ith the R

O
E

 N
o. 4

's basic financial statem
ents. 

2009 F
inancial H

ighlights 

• 
W

ithin the G
overm

nental Funds, the G
eneral F

und revenues increased by $8,583 (l %
) 

from
 $1,020,288 in FY

 2008 to $1,028,871 
in F

Y
 2009. 

G
eneral F

und expenditures 
increased by $101,760 (10%

) from
 $974,253 in F

Y
 2008 to $1,076,013 in F

Y
 2009. 

• 
W

ithin the 
G

ovem
m

ental 
Funds, 

the 
Special 

R
evenue 

F
und revenues 

decreased by 
$79,561 

(1%
) from

 $5,364,864 in F
Y

 2008 to 
$5,285,303 

in F
Y

 2009. 
T

he Special 
R

evenue F
und expenditures decreased by $66,219 (1%

) from
 $5,340,308 in F

Y
 2008 to 

$5,274,089 in F
Y

 2009. 

• 
T

he E
nterprise F

und revenues decreased by $162,326 (21%
) from

 $783,113 in F
Y

 2008 
to 

$620,787 in F
Y

 2009. 
T

he E
nterprise F

und expenditures decreased by $234,372 
(35%

) from
 $677,018 in FY

 2008 to $442,646 in F
Y

 2009. 

• 
T

he R
O

E
 N

o
.4

 has no long term
 debt. 

U
sing T

his R
eport 

T
his report consists o

f a series o
f financial statem

ents and other inform
ation, as follow

s: 

• 
M

anagem
ent's D

iscussion and A
nalysis introduces financial statem

ents and provides an 
analytical overview

 o
f the R

O
E

 N
o. 4

's financial activities. 
• 

T
he G

overnm
ent-w

ide financial statem
ents consist o

f a S
tatem

ent o
f N

et A
ssets and a 

S
tatem

ent o
f A

ctivities. 
T

hese provide inform
ation about the activities o

f the R
O

E
 N

o
.4

 
as a w

hole and present an overall view
 o

f the R
O

E
 N

o. 4
's finances. 

• 
F

und financial statem
ents report the R

O
E

 N
o. 4

's operations in m
ore detail than the 

govem
m

ent-w
ide statem

ents by providing inform
ation about the m

ost significant funds. 
• 

N
ates to the financial statem

ents provide additional inform
ation that is needed for a full 

understanding o
f the data provided in the basic financial statem

ents. 
• 

R
equired 

supplem
entary 

iliform
ation 

further 
explains 

and 
supports 

the 
fm

ancial 
statem

ents and other supplem
entary inform

ation provides detailed inform
ation about the 

m
ajor and non-m

ajor funds. 

14 

BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2009 

The Boone/Wilmebago Counties Regional Office of Education No.4 (ROE No.4) provides 
this Management's Discussion and Analysis of its financial statements. This narrative 
overview and analysis of the financial activities is for the year ended June 30, 2009 \I,ith 
comparative infonnation for the year ended June 30, 2008. Readers are encouraged to 
consider the infonnation in conjunction with the ROE No.4's basic financial statements. 

2009 Financial Highlights 

• Within the Governmental Funds, the General Fund revenues increased by $8,583 (1%) 
from $1,020,288 in FY 2008 to $1,028,871 in FY 2009. General Fund expenditures 
increased by $101,760 (10%) from $974,253 in FY 2008 to $1,076,013 in FY 2009. 

• Within the Govemmental Funds, the Special Revenue Fund revenues decreased by 
$79,561 (1%) from $5,364,864 in FY 2008 to $5,285,303 in FY 2009. The Special 
Revenue Fund expenditures decreased by $66,219 (1%) from $5,340,308 in FY 2008 to 
$5,274,089 in FY 2009. 

• The Enterprise Fund revenues decreased by $162,326 (21%) from $783,113 in FY 2008 
to $620,787 in FY 2009. The Enterprise Fund expenditures decreased by $234,372 
(35%) from $677,018 in FY 2008 to $442,646 in FY 2009. 

• The ROE No.4 has no long tenn debt. 

Using Thill Report 

TIns report consists of a series of financial statements and other information, as follows: 

• Management's Discussion and Analysis introduces financial statements and provides an 
analytical overview of the ROE No. 4's fmancial activities. 

• The Government-wide financial statements consist of a Statement of Net Assets and a 
Statement of Activities. These provide information about the activities of the ROE No.4 
as a whole and present an overall view of the ROE No.4's finances. 

• Fund financial statements report the ROE No. 4's operations in more detail than the 
government-wide statements by providing information about the most significant funds. 

• Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is needed for a full 
understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements. 

• Required supplementalY information further explains and supports the financial 
statements and other snpplementary information provides detailed information about the 
major and non-major funds. 

14 
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JU
N

E
 30, 2009 

R
eporting the B

oonelW
innebago C

ounties R
egional O

ffice of E
ducation N

o
.4

 as a W
hole 

It is im
portant to note, that m

any grants are a cooperative effort o
f the R

O
E

 N
o

.4
 and the 

D
eK

alb C
ounty R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 
16 and the M

cH
enry C

ounty R
egional 

O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o. 44. 
T

herefore, these figures m
ay reflect grants that are intended to 

serve B
oone/W

innebago C
ounties only and grants that serve D

eK
alb C

ounty and M
cH

enry 
C

ounty. 

T
he S

tatem
ent o

f N
et A

ssets an
d

 the S
tatem

ent o
f A

ctivities 

T
he G

overnm
ent-w

ide financial statem
ents report infonnation about the R

O
E

 N
o. 4 as a 

w
hole. 

T
he Statem

ent o
f N

et A
ssets includes all o

f the assets and liabilities. 
A

ll o
f the 

current 
year 

revenues 
and 

expenses 
are 

accounted 
for 

in 
the 

Statem
ent 

o
f A

ctivities 
regardless o

f w
hen cash is received or paid using generally accepted accounting principles 

andG
A

S
B

 34. 

T
he G

overnm
ent-w

ide financial statem
ents report the R

O
E

 N
o. 4's net assets and how

 they 
have changed. 

N
et assets -

the difference betw
een assets and liabilities -

are one w
ay to 

m
easure the R

O
E

 N
o. 4

's financial health or position. 

• 
O

ver tim
e, 

increases or decreases 
in the net assets can be an 

indicator o
f w

hether 
financial position is im

proving or deteriorating, respectively. 
• 

T
o assess the R

O
E

 N
o. 4

's overall financial condition, additional non-financial factors, 
such as new

 law
s, rules, regulations, and actions by officials at the State level need to be 

considered. 

T
he 

G
overnm

ent-w
ide 

fm
ancial 

statem
ents 

present 
the 

R
O

E
 

N
o. 

4
's 

activities 
as 

governm
ental and business-type activities. 

L
ocal, State, and federal funds finance m

ost o
f 

the 
governm

ental 
activities 

w
hile 

local 
w

orkshops 
finance 

m
ost 

o
f the 

business-type 
activities. 

F
u

n
d

 F
inancial S

tatem
ents 

T
he fund financial statem

ents provide detailed infonnation about the R
O

E
 N

o. 4's funds. 
Funds are accounting devices that allow

 the tracking o
f specific sources o

f funding and 
spending on particular program

s. 
Som

e funds are required by State law
. 

T
he R

O
E

 N
o

.4
 

established other funds to control and m
anage m

oney for particular purposes. 

T
he O

ffice has three kinds o
f funds: 

(1) G
overnm

ental funds account for all o
f the R

O
E

 N
o. 4's services. 

T
hese focus on how

 
cash and other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash flow

 in and out and 
the balances left at the year-end that are available for spending. 

C
onsequently, the 

governm
ental fund statem

ents provide a detailed short -tenn view
 that helps detennine 

w
hether there are m

ore or few
er resources that can be spent in the near fhture to finance 
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Reporting the Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No.4 as a Whole 

It is important to note, that many grants are a cooperative effort of the ROE No.4 and the 
DeKalb County Regional Office of Education No. 16 and the McHenry County Regional 
Office of Education No. 44. Therefore, these figures may reflect grants that are intended to 
serve BoonelWiImcbago Counties only and grants that serve DeKalb County and McHenry 
County. 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities 

The Government-wide financial statements report information about the ROE No. 4 as a 
whole. The Statement of Net Assets includes all of the assets and liabilities. All of the 
current year revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Activities 
regardless of when cash is received or paid using generally accepted accounting principles 
and GASB34. 

The Government-wide financial statements report the ROE No. 4's net assets and how they 
have changed. Net assets - the difference between assets and liabilities - are one way to 
measure the ROE No. 4's financial health or position. 

• Over time, increases or decreases in the net assets can be an indicator of whether 
financial position is improving or deteriorating, respectively. 

• To assess the ROE No. 4's overall financial condition, additional non-financial factors, 
such as new laws, rules, regulations, and actions by officials at the State level need to be 
considered. 

The Government-wide financial statements present the ROE No. 4's activities as 
governmental and business-type activities. Local, State, and federal funds tinance most of 
the governmental activities while local workshops finance most of the business-type 
activities. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the ROE No. 4's funds. 
Funds are accounting devices that allow the tracking of specific sources of funding and 
spending on particular programs. Some funds are required by State law. The ROE No.4 
established other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes. 

The Office has three kinds of funds: 

(1) Governmental funds account for all of the ROE No. 4's services. These focus on how 
cash and other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash flow in and out and 
the balances left at the year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the 
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps determine 
whetller there are more or fewer resources that can be spent in the near future to finance 

15 
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 30, 2009 

the R
O

E
 N

o. 4
's program

s. 
T

he R
O

E
 N

o. 4
's G

overnm
ental Funds include the G

eneral 
F

und and the Special R
evenue Funds. 

T
he governm

ental funds 
required financial statem

ents include a B
alance S

heet and a 
S

tatem
ent o

f R
evenues, E

xpenditures, and C
hanges in F

und B
alances. 

(2) P
roprietary funds account for resources from

 fees charged directly to those entities or 
individuals that use its services. 

P
roprietary fund statem

ents provide both long-term
 and 

short-term
 financial infornlation consistent W

itll the focus provided by governm
ent-w

ide 
financial statem

ents but w
ith m

ore detail for m
ajor and non-m

ajor enterprise funds. 
T

he 
proprietary 

funds 
required 

financial 
statem

ents 
include 

a 
S

tatem
ent 

o
f N

et 
A

ssets, 
S

tatem
ent o

f R
evenues, E

xpenses and C
hanges in F

und N
et A

ssets and a S
tatem

ent o
f 

C
ash Flow

s. 

(3) F
iduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the R

O
E

 N
o

.4
 in a trust capacity 

or as an agent for individuals and private or governm
ental organizations. 

T
hese fim

ds are 
custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve m

easurem
ent ofresults o

f 
operations. 

T
he fiduciary funds required financial 

statem
ents include a S

tatem
ent o

f 
F

iduciary N
et A

ssets. 

G
overnm

ent-W
ide F

inancial A
nalysis 

A
s noted earlier, net assets m

ay serve w
hen exam

ined over tim
e as one indicator o

f the 
financial position o

f tlle R
O

E
 N

o
.4

. 
T

Ile net assets at the end o
f F

Y
 2009 and F

Y
 2008 

totaled 
$4,589,608 

and 
$4,424,914, respectively. 

T
he 

analysis that follow
s 

provides 
a 

sum
m

ary o
f the R

O
E

 N
o. 4

's net assets as o
f June 30. 

C
O

N
D

E
N

S
E

D
 S

T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

 O
F N

E
T

 A
SSE

T
S 

G
overn

m
en

tal A
ctivities 

2009 
2008 

A
S

S
E

T
S

 
C

urrent assets 
C

apital assets, net o
f 

depreciation 

T
O

T
A

L
 A

S
S

E
T

S
 

C
urrent liabilities 

T
O

T
A

L
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

IE
S

 

N
E

T
 A

S
S

E
T

S
 

Invested in 
capital 

$ 4,892,592 

49,314 

4,941,906 

1,097,584 

1,097.584 

assets, net o
f related debt 

49,314 
R

estricted for teacher 
professional developm

ent 
176,490 

U
nrestricted 

3,618,518 

T
O

T
A

L
 N

E
T

 A
S

S
E

T
S

 
$ 3,844,322 

$ 4,720,084 

26,833 

4.746,917 

887,518 

887,518 

26,833 

188,067 
3,644,499 

$ 3,859,399 
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u
s
i
n
e
s
s
~
T
y
p
e
 A

ctivities 
2009 

2008 

$ 
882,943 

3,090 

886.033 

140,747 

140,747 

3,090 

742,196 

$ 
745,286 

$ 
824,739 

4,150 

828,889 

263.374 

263,374 

4,150 

561,365 

$ 
565,515 

T
otal 

2009 
2008 

$ 5,775,535 

52,404 

5.827,939 

1,238,331 

1,238,331 

52,404 

176,490 
4,360,714 

$ 4,589,608 

$ 5,544,823 

30,983 

5.575,806 

1.150,892 

1,150,892 

30,983 

188,067 
4,205,864 

$ 4,424,914 

BOONEfWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
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JUNE 30, 2009 

the ROE No. 4's programs. The ROE No. 4's Governmental Funds include the General 
Fund and the Special Revenue Funds. 

The governmental funds required financial statements include a Balance Sheet and a 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances. 

(2) account for resources from fees charged directly to those entities or 
individuals that use its services. Proprietary fund statements provide both long-term and 
short-term financial information consistent with the focus provided by government-wide 
financial statements but with more detail for major and non-major enterprise funds. The 
proprietary funds required financial statements include a Statement of Net Assets, 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets and a Statement of 
Cash Flows. 

(3) Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the ROE No.4 in a trust capacity 
or as an agent for individuals and private or governmental organizations. These nmds are 
custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of 
operations. The fiduciary funds required financial statements include a Statement of 
Fiduciary Net Assets. 

Government· Wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve when examined over time as one indicator of the 
financial position of the ROE No.4. The net assets at the end of FY 2009 and FY 2008 
totaled $4,589,608 and $4,424,914, respectively. The analysis that follows provides a 
summary of the ROE No. 4's net assets as of June 30. 

CONDENSED STATEMENT OFNET ASSETS 

Governmental Activities Business~ Tl:pe Activities Tolal 
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 

ASSETS 
Current assets $ 4,&92,592 $ 4,720,084 $ 882,943 $ 824,739 $ 5,775,535 $ 5,544,823 
Copllnl assets, net of 

deprecintLoll 49,314 52,404 30,983 

TOTAL ASSETS 4,94 (,906 5,827,939 5,575.806 

Currenlliubilities J,097,584 887,518 1,23&,.331 1,150,392 

TOTAL LlABILlTIES 1,097.534 387,518 1,233,331 (,150,392 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in cupitu) 
ussets, net of related debt 49,3J4 26,833 3,090 4,150 52,404 30,9&3 

Restricted for leocher 
professional development (76,490 188,067 176,490 188,067 
Unrestricted 3,6J8,5J8 4,205,864 

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 3,844,322 S 3,859,399 .... ~.4,589,608 .. $4,424,914 
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N

E
 30, 2009 

T
he R

O
E

 N
o. 4

's net assets increased by $164,694 (4%
) from

 F
Y

 2008. 
T

he increase 
occurred prim

arily in the enterprise fim
ds due to the excess o

f revenues over expenses for 
w

orkshops conducted by the R
O

E
 N

o
.4

. 
In addition, net assets related to the T

eacher 
Institute F

und are considered restricted for teacher professional developm
ent. 

C
H

A
N

G
E

S
 IN

 N
E

T
 A

S
S

E
T

S
 

T
he follow

ing analysis show
s the changes in net assets for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 

2008. 

G
overnm

ental A
ctivities 

Busine5s~ T
lp:c A

ctivities 
T

otal 
2009 

2008 
2009 

2008 
2009 

2008 
R

evenues: 
P

rogram
 revenues: 

C
harges for services 

$ 
378.130 

$ 
332,969 

$ 
620.731 

$ 
782,846 

$ 
998,861 

$ 
1,115,815 

O
perating grants and 
contributions 

5,245,748 
5,298,153 

5,245,748 
5,298,153 

G
eneral revenues: 
L

ocal sources 
99,146 

127,159 
99,146 

127,159 
Interest 

55,618 
157,679 

56 
267 

55,674 
157,946 

O
nM

behnlfpaym
cnts 

535,532 
469,192 

535,532 
469,192 

L
oss on disposal o

f assets 
(3,977) 

(3,977) 

T
otal revenues 

6,310,197 
6,385,152 

620,787 
783,113 

6,930.984 
7,168,265 

E
xpenses: 
S

alaries 
2,055,634 

2,294,954 
210 

12,853 
2,055,844 

2,307,807 
B

enefits 
377,684 

392,414 
377,684 

392,414 
P

urchased services 
1,668,337 

2,477,816 
429,982 

638,155 
2,098,319 

3,115,971 
S

upplies and m
aterials 

190,195 
197,792 

11,394 
23,538 

201,589 
221,330 

C
apital expenditures 

56,740 
103,998 

1,412 
56,740 

105,410 
D

epreciation 
17,829 

25,146 
1,060 

1,060 
18,889 

26,206 
P

aym
ents to olher 

governm
ents 

1,421,693 
378,395 

1,421,693 
378,395 

O
n-behalf paym

ents 
535,532 

469,192 
535,532 

469,192 

T
otal expenses 

6,323,644 
6,339,707 

442,646 
677,018 

6,766,290 
7,016,725 

Incom
e (loss) before other 

financing sources (uses) 
(13,447) 

45,445 
178,141 

106,095 
164,694 

151,540 

O
ther financing sources (uses): 
O

perating transfers 
(1,630) 

1,630 

C
hange in net assets 

(15,077) 
45,445 

179,771 
106,095 

165,694 
151,540 

N
et assets, beginning 

3,859,399 
3,813,954 

565,515 
459,420 

4,424,914 
4,273,374 

N
et assets, ending 

$ 3,844,322 
$ 3,859,399 

$ 
745,286 

$ 
565,515 

$ 4,589,608 
$ 4,424,914 

G
overnm

ental A
ctivities 

R
evenues for governm

ental activities w
ere $6,310,197, and expenses w

ere $6,323,644. 
T

he 
decrease in revenues o

f $74,955 (1 %
) is due to the reduction in

 operating grants o
f $52,405, 

prim
arily due to reduced funding received for the S

tandards A
ligned C

lassroom
 and T

itle I -
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The ROE No. 4'5 net assets increased by $164,694 (4%) from FY 2008. The increase 
occurred primarily in the enterprise funds due to the excess of revenues over expenses for 
workshops conducted by the ROE No.4. In addition, net assets related to the Teacher 
Institute Fund are considered restricted for teacher professional development. 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

The following analysis shows the changes in net assets for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 
2008. 

Total 
1009 1008 

Revenues: 
Program revenues: 

ChllI'ges for services S 378,130 S 332.969 $ 620,731 $ 782.846 S 998,861 $ 1,115,815 
Operating grunts und 

contribulions 5,245,748 5,298,153 5,245,748 5,298,153 
Generul revenues: 

Locul sources 99,146 127,159 99,146 127,159 
Interest 55,618 157,679 56 267 5S,674 157,94. 
On-bchulfpaymcnts 535,532 469,192 535,532 469,192 
Loss Oil disposal of lI3S0tS (3,977) (3,977) 

Total revenues 6,310,1'17 6,38S,152 620,787 6,930,984 7.168,265 

Expenses: 
8alurics 2,05S,634 2,294,954 2[0 12,B53 2,055,844 2.307,801 
Benefits 377,684 .392,414 377,684 392,.114 
Purchased services 1,66B,337 2,477,816 429,982 638,155 2,098,319 3,115,971 
Supplies and mnlerials 190,195 197,792 11,394 23,538 201,589 221,330 
Cnpilnl expenditures 56,740 103,998 1,412 56,740 105,410 
Depreciation 17,829 25,146 1,060 1,060 18,B89 26,206 
Payments to Olher 

governments 1,421,693 378,395 1,421,693 378,395 
On~bellnlfpaymcnt5 469,192 

Tolnl expenses 6,323,644 6,339,707 677,018 6,766,290 

Income (loss) before other 
financing sources (uses) (13,447) 45,445 178,141 106,095 164,694 151,540 

Other finanCing sources (uses): 
Opernting tronsfcrs 1,630 

Change in net assets (15,077) 45,445 179,771 106,095 165,694 151,540 

Net assets, begimilng 3,859,399 3,B13,954 459,420 4,424,914 4,273,374 

Net 1l5sets. ("''llding 5 3,859,399 S 745,286 $ 4,589,608 $ 4,424,914 

Governmental Activities 

Revenues for governmental activities were $6,310,197, and expenses were $6,323,644, The 
decrease in revenues of $74,955 (I %) is due to the reduction in operating grants of $52,405, 
primarily due to reduced funding received for the Standards Aligned Classroom and Title I -

17 
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JU
N

E
 30, 2009 

School Im
provem

ent and A
ccountability grants. 

Interest incom
e likew

ise decreased by 
$102,061 

due to 
low

er cash balances available for 
investm

ent and 
low

er interest rates. 
C

ertain program
s w

ere not funded or funding w
as reduced in FY

 2009. 
C

onsequently, 
expenses w

ere proportionally increased or decreased to m
eet the funding level. 

B
usiness-T

ype A
ctivities 

R
evenues for business-type activities w

ere $620,787 and expenditures w
ere $442,646. 

T
he 

decrease in revenues and expenditm
es is due m

ainly to the decrease in local w
orkshops and 

conferences conducted by tlle R
O

E
 N

o
.4

 in FY
 2009. 

F
inancial A

nalysis o
fth

e R
O

E
 N

o
.4

 F
unds 

A
s previously noted, 

the 
R

O
E

 
N

o. 
4 uses 

fund 
accounting to 

ensm
e 

and 
dem

onstrate 
com

pliance w
ith finance-related legal requirem

ents. 
T

he R
O

E
 N

o. 4
's G

overnm
ental F

unds 
reported com

bined fund balances w
ere $3,795,008. 

G
overnm

ental F
u

n
d

 H
ighlights 

T
he G

eneral A
ssem

bly and the Illinois State B
oard o

f E
ducation (ISB

E
) continue to increase 

tile 
responsibilities o

f the 
R

egional 
O

ffices o
f E

ducation (R
O

E
) 

w
ithout providing any 

additional resom
ces. 

T
w

o areas w
ill be cited w

here this is true: 

C
ertification requirem

ents and procedm
es have changed from

 just certificate registration 
to certificate renew

al w
ith endorsem

ents and 
highly qualified status requirem

ents for 
teachers. 

T
his has increased the R

egional O
ffice's w

ork load trem
endously. 

T
eachers 

and adm
inistrators are requiring 

one-on-one help to 
learn how

 to 
use 

the 
E

ducator 
C

ertification System
 to enter their professional developm

ent activities. 

A
dditional fingerprinting requirem

ents for private and parochial school teachers have 
increased tile w

ork load on R
O

E
 staff. 

P
ro

p
rietary

 F
u

n
d

 H
ighlights 

T
otal proprietary fund net assets increased by $179,771 (32%

). 
T

he increase resulted from
 

tile excess o
f revenues over expenditures for the local w

orkshop fund. 

F
id

u
ciary

 F
u

n
d

 H
ighlights 

T
here w

as no significant m
ovem

ent in fiduciary funds for F
Y

 2009. 
T

otal fiduciary net 
assets increased by $1,274 (less tilan 1%

). 
T

ransactions during FY
 2009 represent m

ainly 
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School Improvement and Accountability grants. Interest income likewise decreased by 
$102,06\ due to lower cash balances available for investment and lower interest rates. 
Certain programs were not funded or funding was reduced in FY 2009. Consequently, 
expenses were proportionally increased or decreased to meet the funding level. 

Business-Type Activities 

Revenues for business-type activities were $620,787 and expenditures were $442,646. TIle 
decrease in revenues and expenditures is due mainly to tlle decrease in local workshops and 
conferences conducted by tlle ROE No.4 in FY 2009. 

Financial Analysis of the ROE No.4 Funds 

As previously noted, the ROE No. 4 uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance witl1 finance-related legal requirements. The ROE No. 4's Govermnental Funds 
reported combined fund balances were $3,795,008. 

Governmental Fund Highlights 

The General Assembly and the Illinois State Board of Education OSBE) continue to increase 
the responsibilities of the Regional Offices of Education (ROE) without providing any 
additional resources. 

Two areas will be cited where this is true: 

Certification requirements and procedures have changed from just certificate registration 
to certificate renewal with endorsements and highly qualified status requirements for 
teachers. TIlls bas increased the Regional Office's work load tremendously. Teachers 
and administrators are requiring one-an-one help to learn how to use the Educator 
Certification System to enter their professional development activities. 

Additional fingerprinting requirements for private and parochial school teachers have 
increased the work load on ROE staff. 

Proprietary Fund Highlights 

Total proprietary fund net assets increased by $179,771 (32%). The increase resulted from 
the excess of revenues over expenditures for the local workshop fund. 

Fiduciary Fund Highlights 

There was no significant movement in fiduciary funds for FY 2009. Total fiduciary net 
assets increased by $1,274 (less than 1%). Transactions during FY 2009 represent mainly 
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JU

N
E

 30, 2009 

transfers in and out o
f funds for Payroll Fund and C

E
A

N
C

I (C
areer E

ducational A
ssociates 

o
f N

orth C
entral Illinois). 

B
udgetary H

ighlights 

T
he R

O
E

 N
o

.4
 annually adopts budgets for several funds. 

T
he G

eneral F
und A

ccounts and 
K

ID
S A

ccounts are prepared by the R
egional S

uperintendent and serve as a guideline for 
activities 

and 
expenditures. 

T
he 

R
egional 

S
uperintendent 

annually 
prepares 

an 
O

ffice 
O

perations B
udget and subm

its it to 
the 

C
ounty B

oard for their approval. 
T

he O
ffice 

O
perations B

udget covers a fiscal year w
hich runs from

 O
ctober I to S

eptem
ber 30. 

A
ll 

grant budgets are prepared by the R
O

E
 N

o. 4 and subm
itted to the granting agency for 

approval. 
A

m
endm

ents m
ust be subm

itted under guidelines established by the granting 
agency. 

C
apital A

ssets 

T
he 

R
O

E
 

N
o. 

4
's 

capital 
assets 

include 
office 

equipm
ent, 

com
puters, 

audio-visual 
equipm

ent, and office furniture. 
T

he R
O

E
 N

o. 4 m
aintains an inventory o

f capital assets 
w

hich have been accum
ulated over tim

e. 
In FY

 2009, total additions am
ounted to $44,287 

and total retirem
ents am

ounted to $30,842. D
epreciation expense for F

Y
 2009 w

as $18,889. 

E
conom

ic F
actors an

d
 N

ext Y
ears' B

udget 

A
t the tim

e these financial statem
ents w

ere prepared and audited, the R
O

E
 N

o
.4

 w
as aw

are 
o

f several existing circum
stances that could affect its financial condition in the future: 

• 
T

he proposed S
tate aid foundation level for F

Y
 2010 has been increased to $6,119 per 

student. 
• 

C
ounty board support for R

O
E

 N
o

.4
 is expected to decline during F

Y
 2010. 

• 
F

ederal grants under A
R

R
A

 are expected to be received in F
Y

 2010 in the fornl o
f 

general State aid in an effort to reduce the im
pact o

f the S
tate's current fiscal deficit on 

the R
O

E
's operations. 

• 
T

he student grow
th in the region is stabilizing. 

• 
T

he interest rate on investm
ents continues to be low

. 

C
ontacting the R

egional O
ffice's F

inancial M
anagem

ent 

T
Ins financial report is designed to provide the R

O
E

 N
o. 4

's citizens, taxpayers, clients, and 
other 

constituents 
w

ith 
a 

general 
overview

 
o

f 
its 

finances 
and 

to 
dem

onstrate 
the 

accountability for the m
oney it receives. 

If the reader has questions concerning this report or 
needs additional financial inform

ation, please contact the R
egional S

uperintendent o
f the 

R
O

E
 N

o
.4

 at 300 H
eart B

lvd., L
oves Park, IL

 61111. 
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BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2009 

transfers in and out of funds for Payroll Fund and CEANCI (Career Educational Associates 
of North Central Illinois). 

Budgetary Highlights 

The ROE No.4 annually adopts budgets for several funds. The General Fund Accounts and 
KIDS Accounts are prepared by the Regional Superintendent and serve as a guideline for 
activities and expenditures. The Regional Superintendent annually prepares an Office 
Operations Budget and submits it to the County Board for their approval. The Office 
Operations Budget covers a fiscal year which runs from October I to September 30. All 
grant budgets are prcpared by the ROE No. 4 and submitted to the granting agency for 
approval. Amendments must be submitted under guidelines established by the granting 
agency. 

Capital Assets 

The ROE No. 4's capital assets include office equipment, computers, audio-visual 
equipment, and office furniture. The ROE No.4 maintains an inventory of capital assets 
which have been accumulated over time. In FY 2009, total additions amounted to $44,287 
and total retirements amounted to $30,842. Depreciation expense for FY 2009 was $18,889. 

Economic Factors and Next Years' Budget 

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the ROE No.4 was aware 
of several existing circumstances that could affect its financial condition in the future: 

• The proposed State aid foundation level for FY 20 I 0 has been increased to $6,119 per 
student. 

• County board support for ROE No.4 is expected to decline during FY 2010. 
B Federal grants under ARRA are expected to be received in FY 2010 in the forn1 of 

general State aid in an effort to reduce the impact of the State's current fiscal deficit on 
the ROE's operations. 

• The student grov,rth iu the region is stabilizing. 
• The interest rate on investments continues to be low. 

Contacting the Regional Office's Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide the ROE No. 4's citizens, taxpayers, clients, and 
other constituents with a general overview of its finances and to demonstrate the 
accountability for the money it receives. If the reader has questions concerning this report or 
needs additional fmaneia! information, please contact the Regional Superintendent of the 
ROE No.4 at 300 Heart Blvd., Loves Park, IL 61111. 
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 30, 2009 

A
S

S
E

T
S

 

C
urrent assets: 

C
ash and cash equivalents 

D
ue from

 other governm
ental agencies 

T
otal current assets 

N
oncurrent assets: 
C

apital assets, net 

T
O

T
A

L
 A

S
S

E
T

S
 

L
IA

B
IL

IT
IE

S
 

A
ccounts payable and accrued expenses 

D
ue to other governm

ental agencies 

T
O

T
A

L
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

IE
S

 

N
E

T
 A

S
S

E
T

S
 

Invested in capita1 assets 
R

estricted for teacher professional developm
ent 

U
nrestricted 

T
O

T
A

L
 N

E
T

 A
S

S
E

T
S

 

G
overn

m
en

tal 
A

ctivities 

$ 
4,488,703 

403,889 

4,892,592 

49,314 

4,941,906 

497,520 

600,064 

1,097,584 

49,314 

176,490 

3,618,518 

$ 
3,844,322 P

rim
ary G

overn
m

en
t 

B
u

sin
ess-T

yp
e 

A
ctivities 

$ 
882,943 

882,943 

3,090 

886,033 

140,747 

140,747 

3,090 

742,196 

$ 
745,286 

T
he notes to the fin

an
cial statem

en
ts are an in

tegral p
a

rt o
f this statem

ent. 
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T
otal 

$ 
5,371,646 

403,889 

5,775,535 

52,404 

5,827,939 

638,267 

600,064 

1,238,331 

52,404 

176,490 

4,360,714 

$ 
4,589,608 

BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
JUNE 30, 2009 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-Type 

EXHIBIT A 

Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,488,703 $ 882,943 $ 5,371,646 
Due from other governmental agencies 403,889 403,889 

Total current assets 4,892,592 882,943 5,775,535 

Noncurrent assets: 
Capital assets, net 14 3,090 52,404 

TOTAL ASSETS 886,033 5,827,939 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 497,520 140,747 638,267 
Due to other governmental agencies 600,064 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 140,747 1,238,331 

NET ASSETS 

Invested in capital assets 49,314 3,090 52,404 
Restricted for teacher professional development 176,490 176,490 
Unrestricted 3,618,518 742,196 4,360,714 

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ $ $ 4,589,608 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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D

 JU
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 30. 2009 

P
rogram

 R
even

u
es 

N
et (E

xp
en

se) R
even

u
e nnd C

h
an

ges in N
et A

ssets 
O

perating 
P

rim
ary G

overn
m

en
t 

C
h

arges for 
G

rants and 
G

overn
m

en
tal 

B
usiness-T

ype 
E

xp
en

ses 
S

ervices 
C

on
trib

u
tion

 
A

ctivities 
A

ctivities 
T

otal 

F
U

N
C

T
IO

N
S

IP
R

O
G

R
A

M
S

 
P

rim
ary govern

m
en

t 

G
overn

m
en

tal activities: 
In

stru
ction

al services 
Salaries 

$ 
2,055,634 

$ 
132.346 

$ 
1,903.769 

$ 
(19,519) 

$ 
$ 

(19,519) 
B

enefits 
377,684 

22,688 
355,232 

236 
236 

Purchased services 
1,668,337 

105,876 
1,385,267 

(177,194) 
(177,194) 

Supplies and m
aterials 

190,195 
11,344 

169,279 
(9,572) 

(9,572) 

C
apital expenditures 

56,740 
3,781 

95,021 
42,062 

42,062 

Paym
ents to other governm

ents 
1,421,693 

102,095 
1.337,180 

17,582 
17,582 

D
epreciation 

17,829 
(17,829) 

(17,829) 

A
dm

inistrative 
O

n-behalf paym
ents 

535,532 
(535,532) 

(535,532) 
T

otal govern
m

en
tal activities 

6,323,644 
378,130 

5,245,748 
(699,766) 

(699,766) 

B
u

sin
ess-typ

e activities: 

P
rofessional developm

ent 
442,646 

620,731 
178,085 

178,085 

T
otal b

u
sin

ess-typ
e activities 

442,646 
620,731 

178,085 
178,085 

T
otal p

rim
ary govern

m
en

t 
$ 

6.766,290 
$ 

998,861 
$ 

5,245,748 
(699,766) 

178,085 
(521,681) 

G
eneral revenues: 

L
ocal sources 

99,146 
99,146 

Interest 
55,618 

56 
55,674 

O
n
~
b
e
h
a
l
f
p
a
y
m
e
n
t
s
 

535,532 
535,532 

L
oss on disposal o

f assets 
(3,977) 

(3,977) 

T
ransfers 

(1,630) 
1,630 

T
otal general revenues and other financing sources 

684,689 
1,686 

686,375 

C
hange in net assets 

(15,077) 
179,771 

164,694 

N
et assets -

beginning 
3,859,399 

565,515 
4,424,914 

N
et assets -cnding 

$ 
3,844,322 

$ 
745,286 

$ 
4,589,608 

The n
otes to the financial statem

en
ts are an

 in
tegral part oJth

is statem
ent. 
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DOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

FUNCTIONSIPROGRAMS 
Primary government 

Governmental activities; 
Instructional services 

Salaries 
Benefits 
Purchased services 
Supplies and materials 
Capital expenditures 
Payments io other governments 

Depreeiulion 
Administrative 

On~behulr payments 

Total governmentaiuctivities 

8usiness*type activities: 
Professional development 
Tolul business-type activities 

Total primary government 

ProgrJ:tm Revenues 
Operuting 

Charges for Grants nnd 
Expenses 

$ 2,055,634 $ 

377,684 
1,668,337 

190,195 
56,740 

1,421,693 

17.829 

$ 6,766,290 $ 

General revenues: 
Local sources 
Interest 

Services 

132)46 

22,688 
105,876 

11,344 
3,781 

102,095 

998,861 

On~bchalf pU}TfJents 

Loss on disposal of llssets 

Tmnsfers 

Cootribution 

$ 1.903,769 
355,232 

1,385.267 

169,279 
95,021 

U37,180 

Totu} general revenues nod ollier financing sources 

Chunge in net usscL'i 

Net assetS ~ beginning 

Net as.<>ets ~ ending 

EXHIDITB 

Net (Expense) Revenue Bod Changes in Net Assets 
Primury Government 

Governmental 

Activities 

$ (19,519) 

236 
(177.194) 

(9,572) 

42,062 

17,582 
(17,829) 

(699,766) 

99,146 
55,618 

535,532 
(3,977) 

Business-Type 
Activities 

S 

178,085 

178,085 

178,085 

56 

1,630 ____ ~(~I,~63~O~) ______ ~~ 

684.689 1,686 

(15,077) 179,771 

3,859)99 565,515 

Total 

$ (19,519) 

236 
(177,194) 

(9,572) 
42,062 

17,582 
(17,829) 

(535.532) 
(699,766) 

178,085 
178,085 

(521,681) 

99,146 
55,674 

535,532 

(3,977) 

686,375 

164,694 

4,424,914 

Tlu.' nOles to thejinol1cfaJ slutelllclIt.f are all inlr:gral paJ'/ ojlhis statement. 
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BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30, 2009 

General Fund Education Fund 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 660,356 $ 3,418,362 
Due from other funds 74,000 239,544 
Due from other governmental agencies 43,446 359,021 

TOTAL ASSETS 777,802 4,016,927 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 62,184 435,336 
Due to other funds 313,544 

Due to other governmental agencies 600,064 
Total liabilities 375,728 1,035,400 

FUND BALANCES 

Unreserved, reported in: 

General fund 402,074 

Special revenue funds 2,981,527 

Total fund balances 402,074 2,981,527 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 777,802 $ 4,016,927 

Nonmajor Special 
Revenue Funds 

$ 409,985 

1,422 

411,407 

411,407 
411,407 

$ 411,407 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

EXBIBITC 

Total Governmental 
Funds 

$ 4,488,703 
313,544 

403,889 

5,206,136 

497,520 
313,544 
600,064 

1,411,128 

402,074 
3,392,934 

3,795,008 

$ 5,206,136 

tv 
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BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30. 2009 

General Fund Education Fund 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equi valents $ 660,356 $ 3,418,362 
Due from other funds 74,000 239,544 

Due from other governmental agencies 43,446 1 

TOTAL ASSETS 777,802 4,016,927 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 62,184 435,336 

Due to other funds 313,544 
Due to other governmental agencies 600,064 

Total liabilities 375,728 1,035,400 

FUND BALANCES 

Unreserved, reported in: 

General fund 402,074 

Special revenue funds 2,981,527 

Total fund balances 402,074 2,981,527 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 777,802 $ 4,016,927 

Nonmajor Special 
Revenue Funds 

$ 409,985 

41 

411,407 

411 

$ 411 

The /lotes to the financial statemellfs are all integral part of this staiement. 

EXBIBITC 

Total Governmental 
Food. 

$ 4,488,703 
313,544 
403,889 

5,206,136 

497,520 
313,544 
600,064 

1,411,128 

402,074 
3,392,934 
3,795,008 

$ 5,206,136 
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T
otal fund balances -

governm
ental funds 

A
m

ounts reported for governm
ental activities in the S

tatem
ent o

f N
et 

A
ssets are different because: 

C
apital assets used in governm

ental activities are not 
financial resources and therefore, are not reported in the funds. 

N
et assets o

f governm
ental activities 

$ $ 

The notes to the financial statem
ents are an integral part o

f this statem
ent. 
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3,795,008 

49,314 

3,844,322 

BOONElWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
JUNE 30, 2009 

Total fund balances - governmental funds 

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the Statement ofNe! 
Assets are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 
financial resources and therefore, are not reported in the funds. 

Net assets of governmental activities 

$ 

$ 

The notes to thefinancial statements are a/1 i/1tegral part of this statement, 

EXHlBITD 

3,795,008 

49,314 



BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 EXHIBITE 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Nonmajor Special Total Governmental 
General Fond Education Fund Revenue Fonds Fonds 

REVENUES 
Federal sources $ $ 2,354,211 $ $ 2,354,211 
State sources 374,598 2,441,234 4,036 2,819,868 
Local sources 

Intergovernmental 71,669 71,669 
Licenses and pennits 52,614 52,614 
Fees for services 99,146 249,898 75,618 424,662 
Interest 19,595 30,905 5,118 55,618 

On-behalf payments 535,532 535,532 
Total revenues 1,028,871 5,147,917 137,386 6,314,174 

'0 EXPENDITURES -I'-
Instructional services: 

Salaries 225,837 1,798,255 31,542 2,055,634 
Benefits 48,827 328,857 377,684 
Purchased services 190,951 1,375,527 101,859 1,668,337 
Supplies and materials 36,806 147,596 5,793 190,195 
Payments to other governments 1,421,693 1,421,693 
On-behalf payments 535,532 535,532 

Capital expenditures 38,060 62,967 101,027 
Total expenditures 1,076,013 5,134,895 139,194 6,350,102 

EXCESS (DEFICIENcy) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (47,142) 13,022 (1,808) (35,928) 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Transfer out (1,630) (1,630) 

EXCESS (DEFICIENcy) OF REVENUES AND OTHER 

FINANCING USES OVER EXPENDITURES (47,142) 13,022 (3,438) (37,558) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 449,216 2,968,505 414,845 3,832,566 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 402,074 $ 2,981,527 $ 411,407 $ 3,795,008 

The notes /0 the financial statements are Gn integral part of this statement. 

BOONEIWlNNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 EXBIBITE 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Nonmajor Specinl Total Governmental 
General Fund Education Fund Revenue Funds Funds 

REVENUES 
Federal sources $ $ 2.354.211 $ $ 2,354,211 
State sources 374,598 2,441,234 4,036 2,819,868 
Local sources 

Intergovernmental 71,669 71,669 
Licenses and pennits 52,6[4 52,614 
Fees for services 99,146 249.898 75,618 424,662 
[nterest 19,595 30,905 5,118 55,618 

On-behalf payments 535,532 535,532 
Total revenues 1,028,871 5,147,917 137,386 6,314,174 

I" EXPENDITURES ... 
Instructional services: 

Salaries 225,837 1,798,255 31,542 2,055,634 
Benefits 48,827 328,857 377,684 

Purchased serviees 190,951 1,375,527 101,859 1,668,337 
Supplies and materials 36,806 147,596 5,793 190,195 

Payments to other governments 1,421,693 1,421,693 
On-behalf payments 535,532 535,532 

Capital expenditures 38,060 62,967 101,027 
Total expenditures 1,076,013 5,134,895 139,194 6,350,102 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OF REYENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (47,142) 13,022 (l,808) (35,928) 

OTIIER FINANCING USES 
Transfer out (1,630) (1,630) 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OF REYENUES AND OTIIER 
FINANCING USES OVER EXPENDITURES (47,142) 13,022 (3,438) (37,558) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 449,216 2,968,505 414,845 3,832,566 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR S 402,074 S 2)981,527 $ 411,407 $ 3,795,008 

The Holes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement, 
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N
et change in fund balances 

A
m

ounts reported for governm
ental activities in the S

tatem
ent o

f A
ctivities are 

different because: 

G
overnm

ental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. H
ow

ever, in the 
S

tatem
ent o

f A
ctivities the cost o

f those assets is allocated over 
their estim

ated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 
C

apital expenditures 
D

epreciation expense 
L

oss on disposal o
f capital assets 

C
hange in net assets o

f governm
ental activities 

$ 
44,287 

(17,829) 
(3,977) 

The notes to the financial statem
ents are an integral part o

/th
is statem

ent. 
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$ 
(37,558) 

22,481 

$ 
(15,077) 

BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Net change in fund balances 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are 

different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 

Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over 

their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 

Capital expenditures 

Depreciation expense 

Loss on disposal of capital assets 

Change in net assets of governmental activities 

$ 44,287 

(17,829) 

(3,977) 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

EXHIBITF 

$ (37,558) 

22,481 

$ (15,077) 



BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 EXHIBITG 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

JUNE 30, 2009 

Business Type Activities - Enterl!rise Funds 
Networking for Raising Student 

Local Curriculum Information Achievemeut Couference Global Connect 
Worksh0l! 2004 Conference Conference Connect Conference Total 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 774,813 $ 11,1l6 $ 26,743 $ 51,930 $ 3,328 $ 15,013 $ 882,943 

Noncurrent assets: 
Capital assets, net 3,090 3,090 

Iv TOTAL ASSETS 777,903 1l,116 26,743 51,930 3,328 15,013 886,033 0\ 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 140,747 140,747 

NET ASSETS 
1nvested in capital assets 3,090 3,090 

Unrestricted 634,066 11,116 26,743 51,930 3,328 15,013 742,196 

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 637,156 $ I I, I 16 $ 26,743 $ 51,930 $ 3,328 $ 15,013 $ 745,286 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part oj this statement. 

BOONElWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 EXHIBITG 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
JUNE 30, 2009 

Business Type Activities - Enter~rise Funds 
Networking for Raising Student 

Local Cnrriculum Information Achievement Conference Global Connect 
Worksho(l 2004 Conference Conference Connect Conference Total 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 774,813 $ 1l,1l6 $ $ 51,930 $ 3,328 $ $ 882,943 

Noncurrent assets: 
Capital assets, net 3,090 3,090 

10 TOTAL ASSETS 777,903 11,116 51,930 3~328 886,033 0\ 

LIAB1LITmS 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 140,747 140,747 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets 3,090 3,090 

Unrestricted 634,066 16 26,743 51 3,328 3 742,196 

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 637,156 $ 11,116 $ 26,743 $ 51,930 $ 3,328 $ 15,013 $ 745,286 

The notes to Ihe financial statements are an integral part of tltis statement. 
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BOONE/WINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Business Type Activities - Enterprise Funds 
Networking for Raising Slndent 

Local Curricnlum Information Achievement Conference 
Workshop 2004 Conference Conference Connect 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Fees for services $ 578,823 $ 2,325 $ 22,030 $ 1,623 $ 
Interest 56 

Total operating revenues 578,823 2,325 22,030 1,679 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Salaries 210 
Purchased services 378,598 9,599 16,019 25,062 
Supplies and materials 11,063 118 
Depreciation 1,060 

Total operating expenses 390,721 9,599 16,137 25,272 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 188,102 (7,274) 5,893 (23,593) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES 
Transfer in 1,630 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 189,732 (7,274) 5,893 (23,593) 

TOTAL NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 447,424 18,390 20,850 75,523 3,328 

TOTAL NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 637,156 $ 11,116 $ 26,743 $ 51,930 $ 3,328 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

EXHIBITH 

Global Connect 
Conference Total 

$ 15,930 $ 620,731 
56 

15,930 620,787 

210 
704 429,982 
213 11,394 

1,060 
917 442,646 

15,013 178,141 

1,630 

15,013 179,771 

565,515 

$ 15,013 $ 745,286 
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BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Business Ty!!e Activities - Enterprise Funds 
Networking for Raising Student 

Local Curriculum Information Achievement Conference 
Workshop 2004 Conference Confereoce Connect 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Fees for services $ 578,823 $ 2,325 $ 22,030 $ 1,623 $ 

loterest 56 

Total operating revenues 578,823 2,325 22,030 1,679 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Salaries 210 

Purchased services 378,598 9,599 16,019 25,062 

Supplies and materials 11,063 118 

Depreciation 

Total operating e>'penses 390,721 9,599 16,137 25,272 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 188,102 (7,274) 5,893 (23,593) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES 
Transfer in 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 189,732 (7,274) 5,893 (23,593) 

TOTAL NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 18,390 20,850 3,328 

TOTAL NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR 56 $ 11,116 $ 26,743 $ 51,930 $ 3,328 

The notes to the financial statements are all integral part af Ihis statement. 

EXHIBITH 

Global Connect 
Conference Total 

$ 15,930 $ 620,731 

56 

15,930 620,787 

210 
704 429,982 

213 11,394 
1,060 

917 442,646 

15,013 178,141 

1,630 

15,013 179,771 

565,515 

S 15,013 $ 745,286 



BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 EXHlllITI 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Business Tr~e Activities - Ente~rise Funds 
Networking for Raising Student Global 

Local Curriculum Information Achievement Conference Connect 
WorlGhop 2004 Conference Conference Connect Conference Total 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Receipts for workshops and services $ 578,823 $ 2,325 $ 22,030 $ 1,679 $ 13,678 $ 15,930 $ 634,465 
Payments to suppliers (507,379) (9,599) (16,137) (25,062) (4,909) (917) (564,003) 
Payments to employees (210) (2\0) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 71,444 (7,274) 5,893 (23,593) 8,769 15,013 70,252 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Transfer from other funds 1,630 1,630 

t,,; Net cash provided by non capital tinancing activities 1,630 1,630 
00 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 73,074 (7,274) 5,893 (23,593) 8,769 15,013 71,882 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
(OVERDRAFT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 701,739 18,390 20,850 75,523 (5,441) 811,061 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 774,813 $ 11,116 $ 26,743 $ 51,930 $ 3,328 $ 15,013 $ 882.943 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by 
(used in) operating activities: 
Operating income (loss) $ 188,102 $ (7,274) $ 5,893 $ (23,593) $ $ 15,013 $ 178,141 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash 

provided by (used in) operating activities: 

Effects of changes in assets and liabilities: 

Due from other governmental agencies 13,678 13.678 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (117,718) (4,909) (122,627) 

Depreciation 1,060 1.060 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 71,444 $ (7,274) $ 5,893 $ (23,593) $ 8,769 $ 15,013 $ 70,252 

The "oles to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Iv 
00 

BOONElWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 4 
PROPRIETARY FlThllS 

STA TEMEJIo, OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Business Type Aetivities - Entc~rise Fund! 
Networking for Raising Student 

Local Currieulum Information A(hievement Conference 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Receipts for workshops and services 
PaymenL<; to suppliers 
Payments 10 employees 

Net eash provided hy (used in) operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON CAPITAL FINAt'lCING ACTIVITIES: 
Tl'DIlSfer from other funds 

Net cash provided by non eupilal financing activities 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

(OVERDRAFl), BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH Al'ID CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 

Reconciliation of operating lm!ome (los!!) to net easll provided by 
(used in) operating adivUies: 
Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash 

provided by (used in) operating activities: 
Effects of changes in assets and liabilities: 

Due from other governmental agencies 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Deprecialion 

$ 

$ 

Workohop 

578.823 $ 

(507,379) 

71,444 

1,630 
1,630 

73,074 

701,739 

188,102 $ 

(117,718) 
1,060 

2004 Conference 

2,325 $ 22,030 $ 
(9,599) (16,137) 

(7,274) 5,893 

(7,274) 5,893 

18,390 20,850 

(7,274) $ 5,893 $ 

Conference 

1,679 $ 
(25,062) 

(210) 

(23,593) 

(23,593) 

75,523 

$ 

(23,593) $ 

Connect 

13,678 
(4,909) 

8,769 

8,769 

(5,441) 

3,328 

13,678 
(4,909) 

EXHlllITI 

Global 
Connt'ct 

Conference Total 

$ 15,930 $ 634.465 
(917) (564,003) 

(210) 

70,252 

1.630 
1.630 

15,013 71,882 

811.061 

$ $ 882.943 

$ 15,013 $ 178,141 

13,678 
(122,627) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ $ 8,769 $ 15,0 13 ~$~=7;,;;O;;;,2;;;;52;"" 

The noles to the finanCial statements ore Guimegral pari 0/ this statement. 
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C
ash and cash equivalents 

L
IA

B
IL
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S
 

D
Lie to other governm

ental agencies 

The notes to the financial statem
ents G

re an integral part o
f this statem

ent. 
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$ 
1,063,290 

$ 
1,063,290 

BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 
JUNE 3D, 2009 

ASSETS 

Ca'ih and cash equ ivalents 

LIABILITIES 

Duc to 0\ hc,' governmental agencies 

The notes to thefinancial statements are an integral parI of this statement. 
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A
. 

R
eporting E

ntity 

B
oonelW

innebago C
ounties R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o
.4

 (R
egional O

ffice; R
O

E
) 

operates under the School C
ode (A

rticles 3 and 3A
 o

f Illinois C
om

piled Statutes, C
hapter 

105). 
T

his 
encom

passes 
B

oone 
and 

W
innebago 

C
ounties, 

Illinois. 
T

he 
R

egional 
S

uperintendent o
f Schools (Superintendent) serves as chief adm

inistrative officer o
f the 

R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o

.4
 and is elected to the position for a four-year term

 
pursuant to A

rticle 3 o
f Illinois C

om
piled Statutes, C

hapter 105. 
T

he principal financial 
duty o

f the R
egional S

uperintendent is to receive and distribute m
onies due to school 

districts from
 general State aid, State categorical grants, and various other sources. 

T
he R

egional S
uperintendent's responsibilities for adm

inistering the school educational 
service region program

s include, but are not lim
ited to, providing directions to teachers 

and school officials on science, art and teaching m
ethods; im

plem
enting the State B

oard 
o

f E
ducation's Policy P

rogram
s; encouraging cam

araderie am
ong teachers through the 

teachers' institute; m
aking public notice o

f unfilled teaching positions w
ithin the region; 

and ensnring o
f the safety, health and w

elfare o
f the students in the region by periodically 

inspecting the 
school buildings and ensnring that the bus drivers have valid driving 

licenses and are properly trained to operate the school buses. 

T
he 

basic 
financial 

statem
ents include 

all 
funds 

o
f the B

oone/W
innebago 

C
ounties 

R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o.4. 

T
hese are the only activities considered to be part o

f (controlled by or dependent on) the 
B

oone/W
innebago C

ounties R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o

.4
, as determ

ined by the 
application 

o
f the 

criteria 
set 

forth 
in 

G
overnnlental 

A
ccounting 

Standards 
B

oard 
S

tatem
ent N

o. 14, T
he F

inancial R
eporting E

ntity. 
T

he criteria for inclusion o
f an entity 

include, but are not lim
ited to, legal standing, fiscal dependency, im

position o
f w

ill and 
potential for financial benefit or burden. 

B
oone/W

innebago C
ounties R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o
.4

 has determ
ined that no 

other outside agency m
eets any o

f the above criteria and, therefore, no other agency has 
been 

included 
as 

a 
com

ponent 
unit 

in the 
financial 

statem
ents. 

Furtherm
ore, 

the 
B

oonelW
innebago C

ounties R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o

.4
 does not consider itself 

to be a com
ponent unit o

f any other entity. 

B
. 

G
overnm

ent-W
ide and F

und Financial S
tatem

ents 

T
he governm

ent-w
ide financial 

statem
ents (i.e. 

the 
S

tatem
ent o

f N
et A

ssets 
and the 

S
tatem

ent o
f A

ctivities) report inform
ation on all o

f the non-fiduciary activities o
f the 
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BOONElWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2009 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Reporting I~ntitv 

BoonelWinnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No.4 (Regional Office; ROE) 
operates under the Sehool Code (Articles 3 and 3A of Illinois Compiled Statutes, Chapter 
105). This encompasses Boone and Winnebago Counties, Illinois. The Regional 
Superintendent of Schools (Superintendent) serves as chief administrative officer of the 
Regional Office of Education No.4 and is elected to the position for a four-year term 
pursuant to Article 3 of Illinois Compiled Statutes, Chapter 105. The principal financial 
duty of the Regional Superintendent is to receive and distribute monies due to school 
districts from general State aid, State categorical grants, and various other sources. 

The Regional Superintendent's responsibilities for administering the school educational 
servicc region programs include, but are not limited to, providing directions to teachers 
and school officials on science, art and teaching methods; implementing the State Board 
of Education's Policy Prograras; encouraging canlaraderie among teachers through the 
teachers' institute; making public notice of unfilled teaching positions within the region; 
and ensuring of the safety, health and welfare of the students in the region by periodically 
inspecting the school buildings and ensuring that the bus drivers have valid driving 
licenses and are properly trained to operate the school buses. 

The basic financial statements include all funds of the Boone!Winnebago Counties 
Regional Office of Education No.4. 

These are the only activities considered to be part of (controlled by or dependent on) the 
Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No.4, as determined by the 
application of the criteria set forth in Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entitv. The criteria for inclusion of an entity 
include, but are not limited to, legal standing, fiscal dependency, imposition of will and 
potential for financial benefit or burden. 

Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Oft'ice of Education No.4 has determined that no 
other outside agency meets any of the above criteria and, therefore, no other agency has 
been included as a component unit in the financial statements. Furthennore, the 
BoonelWinnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No.4 does not consider itself 
to be a component unit of any other entity. 

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the Statement of Net Assets and the 
Statement of Activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the 

30 
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prim
ary governm

ent. 
F

or the m
ost part, the effect o

f interfund activity has been rem
oved 

from
 these statem

ents. 
T

he statem
ents distinguish betw

een those activities o
f the R

O
E

 
that are governm

ental in nature and those that are considered business-type activities. 
G

overnm
ental activities norm

ally are supported by operating grants and contributions, 
charges for services and intergovernm

ental revenues. 
B

usiness-type activities norm
ally 

are supported by am
ounts assessed or received from

 local sources for the R
O

E
 program

s. 

T
he S

tatem
ent o

f N
et A

ssets presents the B
oone/W

innebago C
ounties R

egional O
ffice o

f 
E

ducation N
o. 4

's nonfiduciary assets and liabilities w
ith the differences reported as net 

assets. 
N

et assets o
f the R

O
E

 are classified as follow
s: 

Invested in C
apital A

ssets -
represent the R

O
E

's total investm
ent in capital assets. 

T
here 

is no outstanding debt related to these assets at this tim
e. 

R
estricted N

et A
ssets -

represent resources in w
hich the R

O
E

 is legally obligated to spend 
in accordance w

ith restrictions im
posed by enabling legislation. 

U
nrestricted N

et A
ssets -

represent resources used for transactions relating to the general 
operations 

o
f the R

O
E

 
and m

ay be 
used at the discretion o

f m
anagem

ent to 
m

eet 
expenses for any purpose. 

T
he S

tatem
ent o

f A
ctivities dem

onstrates the degree to w
hich the direct expenses o

f a 
given flllction or segm

ent are offset by program
 revenues. 

D
irect expenses are those that 

are clearly identifiable w
ith a specific function or segm

ent. 
P

rogram
 revenues include 

(1) 
charges to 

users w
ho purchase, use or directly benefit from

 
goods, 

services, 
or 

privileges provided by a given function or segm
ent, and (2) grants and contributions that 

are restricted to m
eeting the operational or capital requirem

ents o
f a particular function or 

segm
ent. 

Item
s not properly included am

ong program
 revenues are reported instead as 

general revenues. M
ajor individual governm

ental funds are reported as separate colum
ns 

in the fund financial statem
ents. 

C
. 

M
easurem

ent F
ocus. B

asis o
f A

ccounting, and F
inancial S

tatem
ent P

resentation 

T
he governm

ent-w
ide financial 

statem
ents are reported using the econom

ic resources 
m

easurem
ent focus 

and 
the accrual basis o

f accounting, 
as 

are the proprietary fund 
financial statem

ents. 
R

evenues are recorded w
hen earned and expenses are recorded 

w
hen a liability is incurred, regardless o

f the tim
ing o

f related cash flow
s. 

G
rants and 

sim
ilar revenues are recognized as soon as all eligibility requirem

ents im
posed by the 

provider have been m
et. 

G
ovenunental fund and fiduciary fund financial statem

ents are reported using the current 
financial resources m

easurem
ent focus and the m

odified accrual basis o
f accounting. 

R
evenues are recognized w

hen they are both m
easurable and available. 

"M
easurable" 

m
eans the anl0unt o

f the transaction can be determ
ined and "available" m

eans collectible 
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BOONElWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2009 

primary government. For the most part, the effect of interfimd activity has been removed 
from these statements. The statements distinguish between those activities of the ROE 
that are governmental in nature and those that are considered business-type activities. 
Governme11lal ClClivities normally are supported by operating grants and contributions, 
charges for services and intergovernmental revenues. Business-type activities nonnally 
are supported by amounts assessed or received from local sources for the ROE programs. 

The Statement of Net Assets presents the Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of 
Education No. 4's nonfiduciary a~sets and liabilities with the differences reported as net 
assets. Net assets of the ROE are classified as follows: 

Invested in Capital Assets - represent the ROE's total investment in capital assets. There 
is no outstanding debt related to these assets at this time. 

Restricted Net Assets - represent resources in which the ROE is legally obligated to spend 
in accordance with restrictions imposed by enabling legislation. 

Unreslricled Net Assets - represent resources used for transactions relating to the general 
operations of the ROE and may be used at the discretion of management to meet 
expenses for any purpose. 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that 
are clearly identifiable with a specific fimction or segment Program revenues include 
(I) charges to users who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given function or segment, and (2) grants and contributions that 
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or 
segment. Items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as 
general revenues. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate colunms 
in the fund financial statements. 

C. Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund 
financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded 
when a liability is incun-ed, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and 
similar revenues are recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been mel. 

Govemmental fimd and fiduciary fimd financial statements are reported using the current 
financial resources measurement JOCl/S and the modified accrual basis of accol/Illing. 
Revenues are recognized whcn they are both measurable and available. "Measurable" 
means the anlount of the transaction can be detennincd and "available" means collectible 

31 
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w
ithin the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities o

f the 
current period. 

T
he B

oone/W
innebago C

ounties R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 4 

considers revenues 
as 

available 
if they 

are 
collected w

ithin 60 
days 

after year-end. 
E

xpenditures 
are 

generally 
recorded 

w
hen 

a 
liability 

is 
incurred, 

as 
under 

accrual 
accounting. In

 applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovem
m

ental revenues, 
the legal and contractual requirem

ents o
f the num

erous individual progran1s are used as 
guidance. 

T
here are, how

ever, essentially tw
o types o

f these revenues. 
In

 one, m
onies m

ust b
e 

expended on the specific purpose or project before any am
ounts w

ill be paid; therefore, 
revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures recorded. 

In the other, m
onies are 

virtually unrestricted as to purpose o
f expenditure and are usually revocable only for 

failure 
to 

com
ply 

w
ith 

prescribed 
com

pliance 
requirem

ents. 
T

hese 
resources 

are 
reflected as revenues at the tim

e o
f receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria 

are m
et. 

P
rivate-sector standards o

f accounting and financial reporting issued prior to D
ecem

ber 1, 
1989, generally are follow

ed in both the govem
m

ent-w
ide and proprietary fund financial 

statem
ents to the 

extent that those 
standards 

do 
not conflict w

ith or 
contradict the 

guidance o
f the G

ovem
m

ental A
ccounting S

tandards B
oard. 

T
he proprietary fund distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from

 nonoperating 
item

s. 
O

perating revenues and expenses generally result from
 providing services and 

producing and delivering goods in connection w
ith a proprietary fund's principal ongoing 

operations. 

W
hen both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the R

O
E

's 
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

D
. 

F
und A

ccO
lm

ting 

T
he accounts are organized on the basis o

f funds and account groups, each o
f w

hich is 
considered a separate accO

lm
ting entity. 

T
he operations o

f each fund and account group 
are accO

lm
ted for w

ith a separate set o
f self-balancing accounts that com

prise its assets, 
liabilities, fund balance, revenue, and expenditures. 

T
he resources are allocated to and 

accounted for in individual funds and account groups based upon the purposes for w
hich 

they are to be spent and the m
eans by w

hich spending activities are controlled. 
T

he 
various funds are sum

m
arized by type in

 the basic financial statem
ents. 

T
he follow

ing 
sum

m
arizes the fund types and account groups used: 
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within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the 
current period. The Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No. 4 
considers revenues as available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. 
Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting. In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovemmental revenues, 
the legal and contractual requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as 
guidance. 

There are, however, essentially two types of these revenues. In one, monies must be 
expended on the specific purpose or project before any amounts will be paid; therefore, 
revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures recorded. In the other, monies are 
virtually umestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable only for 
failure to comply with prescribed compliance requirements. These resources are 
reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria 
are met. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to Deeember 1, 
1989, generally are followed in botl1 the government-wide and proprietary fund financial 
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict the 
guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 

The proprietary fund distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating 
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and 
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing 
operations. 

When both restricted and umestricted resources are available for use, it is the ROE's 
policy to use restricted resources first, then umestricted resources as they are needed. 

D. Fund Accounting 

The accounts are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which is 
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund and account group 
are accolmted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, 
liabilities, fund balance, revenue, and expenditures. The resources are allocated to and 
accounted for in individual funds and account groups based upon the purposes for which 
they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The 
various funds are summarized by type in the basic financial statements. The following 
sununarizes the fund types and account groups used: 
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G
overnm

ental Fund T
ypes 

G
overnm

ental Funds account for those funds through w
hich m

ost governm
ental functions 

are financed. 
T

he acquisition, nse and balances o
f the expendable financial resources and 

the 
related 

CU
ITent 

liabilities 
are 

accounted 
for 

through 
governm

ental 
funds. 

T
he 

govem
m

ental funds include the follow
ing: 

G
eneral F

und -
to account for resources traditionally associated w

ith governm
ent w

hich 
are not required, 

legally or by sound financial 
m

anagem
ent, to 

be accounted for in 
another fund. 

T
he general fund is reported as a m

ajor governm
ental fund in the financial 

statem
ents. T

he follow
ing are the general funds: 

G
eneral 

O
perations 

-
to 

account 
for 

m
onies 

received 
for, 

and 
paym

ent 
of, 

expenditures in connection w
ith general adm

inistrative activities. 

R
O

E
/ISC

 O
perations -

to account for grant m
onies received for, 

and paym
ent o

f 
expenditures for, assisting schools in all areas o

f school im
provem

ent. 

Special R
evenue Funds -

to accO
lm

t for the proceeds o
f specific revenue sources C

 other 
than expendable trusts) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 

T
he 

B
oone/W

innebago 
C

ounties 
R

egional 
O

ffice 
o

f E
ducation 

N
o. 

4 
reported 

the 
follow

ing special revenue funds as m
ajor governm

ental funds: 

E
ducation Fund -

to account for State and Federal grant m
onies received for, and 

paym
ent of, adm

inistrating num
erous grant aw

ards w
hich include: 

R
egional A

lternative 
School -

to account for 
grant m

onies received for, 
and 

paym
ent of, expenditures for an altem

ative education program
. 

R
egional A

ltem
ative School -

State A
id -to account for grant m

onies received 
for, 

llird paym
ent of, expenditures for the general operations o

f altem
ative 

school program
s o

f the R
egional A

ltem
ative School. 

R
A

S G
eneral State A

id -
A

R
R

A
 -

to account for grant m
onies received for, 

and paym
ent of, expenditures related to helping stabilize state budgets in order 

to m
inim

ize the possible im
pact o

f the S
tate's CU

lTent fiscal deficit and avoid 
reductions in education. 

T
his is funded by the A

m
erican R

einvestm
ent and 

R
ecovery A

ct C
A

R
R

A
) -

State Fiscal S
tabilization Fund -

E
ducation State 

G
rants. 
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Governmental Fund Types 

Governmental Funds account for those funds through which most govemmental functions 
are financed. The acquisition, use and balances of the expendable financial resources and 
the related CUlTent liabilities are accounted for through governmental funds. The 
governmental funds include the following: 

General Fund - to account for resources traditionally associated with government which 
are not required, legally or by sound financial management, to be accounted for in 
another fund. The general fund is reported as a major governmental fund in the financial 
statements. The following are the general funds: 

General Operations - to accotmt for monies received for, and payment of, 
expenditures in connection with general administrative activities. 

ROE/ISC Operations - to account for grant monies received for, and payment of 
expenditures for, assisting schools in all areas of school improvement. 

Special Revenue Funds - to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other 
than expendable trosts) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 

The Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No. 4 reported the 
following special revenue funds as major governmental funds: 

Education Fund - to account for State and Federal grant monies received for, and 
payment of, administrating numerous grant awards which include: 

Regional Alternative School - to account for grant monies received for, and 
payment of, expenditures for an alternative education program. 

Regional Alternative School - State Aid - to account for grant monies received 
for, and payment of, expenditures for the general operations of altemative 
school programs of the Regional Alternative School. 

RAS General State Aid - ARRA - to account for grant monies received for, 
and payment of, expenditures related to helping stabilize state budgets in order 
to minimize the possible impact of the State's current fiscal deficit and avoid 
reductions in education. This is funded by the American Reinvestment and 
Recovery Act (ARRA) - State Fiscal Stabilization Fund - Education State 
Grants. 
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P
reschool 

for 
A

ll 
-

to 
account for 

the 
contract m

oney 
received 

and the 
expenditures incurred in providing com

prehensive m
onitoring and technical 

assistance services to P
reschool for A

ll program
s. 

R
egional L

earning C
enter -

to account for grant m
onies received for, and paym

ent 
of, 

expenditures 
for 

the 
R

egional 
L

earning 
C

enter. 
TIllS 

fund 
includes 

the 
follow

ing: 

W
orkforce Investm

ent A
ct -

to account for grant m
onies received for, 

and 
paym

ent of, expenditures associated w
ith the W

IA
 P

rogram
 grant designed to 

provide 
vocational 

training 
services 

and 
coordination 

o
f activities 

to 
the 

econom
ically disadvantaged. 

T
m

ants A
lternative P

rogram
 -

to account for grant m
onies received for, and 

paym
ent 

of, 
expenditures 

for 
optional 

education 
opportunities 

to 
school 

dropouts, potential dropouts and truants o
f the R

egion. 

R
egional L

earning C
enter -

S
tate A

id -
to account for grant m

onies received 
for, 

and paym
ent of, expenditures for the general operations o

f alternative 
school program

s o
f the R

egional L
earning C

enter. 

R
L

C
 G

eneral S
tate A

id -
A

R
R

A
 -

to account for grant m
onies received for, 

and paym
ent of, expenditures related to helping stabilize state budgets in order 

to m
inim

ize the possible im
pact o

f the S
tate's current fiscal deficit and avoid 

reductions in education. 
T

his is funded by the A
m

erican R
einvestm

ent and 
R

ecovery A
ct C

A
R

R
A

) -
S

tate F
iscal S

tabilization F
und -

E
ducation S

tate 
G

rants. 

R
egional L

earning A
cadem

y -
to account for 

grant m
onies received for, 

and 
paym

ent 
of, 

expenditures 
for 

the 
R

egional 
L

earning 
A

cadem
y. 

T
his 

fund 
includes the follow

ing: 

R
egional 

S
afe 

S
chools 

-
to 

account 
for 

grant 
m

onies 
received 

for, 
and 

paym
ent of, 

expenditures to 
change the program

 for expulsion/suspension 
eligible students. 

G
eneral S

tate A
id and L

unch -
to account for grant m

onies received for, and 
paym

ent of, 
expenditures 

for the 
general 

operations 
o

f alternative school 
program

s o
f the R

egional L
earning A

cadem
y and other academ

y supplem
ents. 

R
L

A
 G

eneral S
tate A

id -
A

R
R

A
 -

to account for grant m
onies received for, 

and paym
ent of, expenditures related to helping stabilize state budgets in order 

to m
inim

ize the possible im
pact o

f the S
tate's current fiscal deficit and avoid 
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preschool for All - to account for the contract money received and the 
expenditures incurred in providing comprehensive monitoring and technical 
assistance services 10 Preschool for All programs. 

Ree:ional Learning Center - to account for grant monies received for, and payment 
of, expenditures for the Regional Learning Center. Tills fund includes the 
following: 

Workforce Investment Act - to account for grant monies received for, and 
payment of, expenditures associated with the WIA Program grant designed to 
provide vocational training services and coordination of activities to the 
economically disadvantaged. 

Truants Alternative Program - to account for grant monies received for, and 
payment of, expenditures for optional education opportunities to school 
dropouts, potential dropouts and truants of the Region. 

Regional Learning Center - State Aid - to account for grant monies received 
for, and payment of, expenditures for the general operations of alternative 
school programs of the Regional Learning Center. 

RLC General State Aid - ARRA - to account for grant monies received fOf, 
and payment of, expenditures related to helping stabilize state budgets in order 
to minimize the possible impact of the State's current fiscal deficit and avoid 
reductions in education. This is funded by the American Reinvestment and 
Recovery Act CARRA) - State Fiscal Stabilization Fund - Education State 
Grants. 

Regional Learning Academy - to account for grant monies received for, and 
payment of, expenditures for the Regional Learning Academy. This fund 
includes the following: 

Regional Safe Schools to account for grant monies received for, and 
payment of, expenditures to change the program for expUlsion/suspension 
eligible students. 

General State Aid and Lunch - to account for grant monies received for, and 
payment of, expenditures for the general operations of alternative school 
programs of the Regional Learning Academy and other academy supplements. 

RLA General State Aid - ARRA - to account for grant monies received for, 
and payment of, expenditures related to helping stabilize state budgets in order 
to minimize the possible impact of the State's current fiscal deficit and avoid 
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reductions in education. 
T

his is funded by the A
m

erican R
einvestm

ent and 
R

ecovery A
ct (A

R
R

A
) -

State Fiscal Stabilization Fund -
E

ducation State 
G

rants. 

R
egional A

ttendance C
ooperative -

to account for grant m
onies received for, and 

paym
ent of, expenditures for the R

egional A
ttendance C

ooperative. 
T

he fund 
activities are funded by a portion o

f the total grant received by the R
O

E
 for the 

T
ruants A

lternative O
ptional E

ducation Program
 (T

A
O

E
P). 

K
ID

S 
F

und 
-

to 
account 

for 
grant 

m
onies 

received 
for, 

and 
paym

ent 
of, 

expenditures 
for 

the 
K

ishw
aukee 

Interm
ediate 

D
elivery 

System
 

Intergovenm
lental A

greem
ent. 

T
his fund includes the follow

ing: 

Standards 
A

ligned 
C

lassroom
 

Initiative 
-

to 
account 

for 
resources 

accun1U
lated 

for, 
and 

paym
ent of, 

expenditures o
f the 

Standards A
ligned 

C
lassroom

 Program
. 

T
his supports teanlS that develop curriculum

 aligned 
w

ith the Illinois A
cadem

ic Standards. 

O
ther State P

rogram
s -

to account for grant m
onies received, and the paym

ent 
of, 

expenditures 
incurred 

for 
the 

Standard 
A

ssessm
ent 

Program
. 

T
his 

program
 provides services to schools that are on "status" under N

o C
hild L

eft 
B

ehind. 
T

he grant provides training and technical assistance to the schools 
and helps them

 understand the causes for their student academ
ic problem

s. 
T

he grant then helps the schools develop plans to address the problem
s. 

T
itle II -

T
eacher Q

uality -
L

eadership -
to account for grant m

onies received 
for, 

and 
paym

ent 
o

f expenditures 
for 

the 
T

eacher 
Q

uality 
L

eadership 
P

rogram
s. 

T
hese program

s aim
 to increase student academ

ic achievem
ent 

through 
strategies 

such 
as 

im
proving 

teacher 
and 

principal 
quality 

and 
increasing the num

ber o
f highly qualified teachers in the classroom

 and highly 
qualified 

principals 
and 

assistant 
principals 

in 
schools 

and 
hold 

local 
educational agencies and schools accountable for im

provem
ents in student 

academ
ic achievem

ent. 

T
itle I -

School Im
provem

ent and A
ccountability -

T
he Illinois State B

oard o
f 

E
ducation Q

uality A
ssurance Process consists o

f an external visit to 
audit 

each school every few
 years and an internal review

 that each school m
ust 

conduct 
aonually. 

T
he 

B
oone/W

innebago 
C

ounties 
R

egional 
O

ffice 
o

f 
E

ducation N
o

.4
 is charged w

ith supporting and guiding schools through this 
com

plex 
school 

im
provem

ent 
process 

so 
that 

teaching 
and 

learning 
are 

im
proved every year. 
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reductions in education. This is funded by the American Reinvestment and 
Recovery Act CARRA) - State Fiscal Stabilization Fund - Education State 
Grants. 

Regional Attendance Cooperative - to account for grant monies received for, and 
payment of, expenditures for the Regional Attendance Cooperative. The fund 
activities are funded by a portion of the total grant reeeived by the ROE for the 
Truants Alternative Optional Education Program (TAOEP), 

KlDS Fund - to account for grant monies received for, and payment of, 
expenditures for the Kishwaukee Intennediate Delivery System 
Intergovernnlental Agreement. This fund includes the following: 

Standards Alhmed Classroom Initiative - to account for resources 
accumulated for, and payment of, expenditares of the Standards Aligned 
Classroom Program, This supports teanlS that develop curriculmn aligned 
with the Illinois Academic Standards. 

Other State Programs - to account for grant monies received, and the payment 
of, expenditures incurred for the Standard Assessment Program. This 
program provides services to schools that are on "status" under No Child Left 
Behind. The grant provides training and technical assistance to the schools 
and helps them understand the causes for their student academic problems. 
The grant then helps the schools develop plans to address the problems. 

Title II - Teacher Quality - Leadership - to account for grant monies received 
for, and payment of expenditures for the Teacher Quality Leadership 
Programs. These programs aim to increase student academic achievement 
through strategies such as improving teacher and principal quality and 
increasing the number of highly qualified teachers in the classroom and highly 
qualified principals and assistant principals in schools and hold local 
educational agencies and schools accountable for improvements in student 
academic achievement. 

Title I - School Improvement and Accountability - The Illinois State Board of 
Education Quality Assurance Process consists of an cxternal visit to audit 
each school every few years and an internal review that each school must 
conduct annually, The Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of 
Education No.4 is charged with supporting and guiding schools through this 
complex school improvement process so that teaching and learning are 
improved every year. 
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T
echnology for S

uccess (F
onnerly L

earning T
echnology C

enter) -
to account 

for m
onies from

 
S

tate 
o

f Illinois 
for 

expenditures incurred to 
create 

and 
support ongoing learning teanlS 

focused 
on alignm

ent 
o

f classroom
 level 

assessm
ent and instruction. 

P
rincipal 

M
entoring 

-
to 

account 
for 

m
onies 

from
 

the 
Illinois 

P
rincipals 

A
ssociation for expenditures incurred to ensure that every new

 principal in the 
region receives a high-quality m

entoring experience from
 trained m

entors. 

N
O

IID
lajor S

pecial R
evenue F

unds -
T

he B
oone/W

innebago C
ounties R

egional O
ffice 

o
f E

ducation 
N

o. 
4 

reported 
the 

follow
ing 

special 
revenue 

funds 
as 

nonm
ajor 

govenm
1ental funds. 

G
eneral 

E
ducation 

D
evelopm

ent 
(G

E
D

) 
-

to 
account 

for 
the 

revenues 
and 

expenditures associated w
ith the processing o

f applications for the high school 
level test o

f G
E

D
 and the issuance o

f diplom
as upon successful com

pletion o
f the 

exam
ination. 

B
us D

river T
raining -

to account for resources accum
ulated for, and the paym

ent 
of, expenses from

 instructional training courses for school bus drivers. 

S
upervisory -

to account for resources accum
ulated for, 

and the paym
ent of, 

expenditures incurred in providing supervisory services. 

E
ducational S

ervice C
enter N

o. I -
to account for resources accum

ulated for, and 
the paym

ent of, expenditures o
f the E

ducational S
ervice C

enter N
o. I. 

Institute -
to account for fees collected for the registration and renew

al o
f teaching 

certificates. 
T

hese fees are used to defray adm
inistrative expenses incidental to 

teachers' 
institutes, 

w
orkshops, 

or m
eetings o

f a professional 
nature that are 

designed to prom
ote the professional grow

th o
f teachers or for the purpose o

f 
defraying the expense o

f any general or special m
eeting o

f teachers or school 
personnel. 

A
ll funds 

generated rem
ain restricted until expended only on the 

aforem
entioned activities. 

P
roprietary F

unds -
to account for resources from

 fees charged directly to those entities o
r 

individuals that use its services. 

L
ocal 

W
orkshop -

to account for 
contract m

onies received for, 
and paym

ent of, 
expenditures for w

orkshops and other services for tlle school districts. 

C
urriculunl 

2004 
-

to 
account 

for 
m

onies 
received 

from
 

school 
districts 

for 
sem

inars/m
eetings held for the im

provem
ent o

ftlle schools' curriculum
. 
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Technology for Success CFonnerlv Learning Technology Center) - to account 
for monies from State of Illinois for expenditures incurred to create and 
support ongoing learning teams focused on alignment of classroom level 
assessment and instruction. 

Principal Mentoring - to account for monies from the Illinois Principals 
Association for expenditures incurred to ensure that every new principal in the 
region receives a high-quality mentoring experience from trained mentors. 

Nomnajor Special Revenue Funds· The Boonel\Vinnebago Counties Regional Office 
of Education No. 4 reported the following special revenue funds as nornnajor 
governmental funds. 

General Education Development (GED) - to account for the revenues and 
expenditures associated with the processing of applications for the high school 
level test of GED and the issuance of diplomas upon successful completion of the 
examination. 

Bus Driver Training· to account for resources accumulated for, and the payment 
of, expenses from instructional training courses for school bus drivers. 

Supervisory - to account for resources accumulated for, and the payment of, 
expenditures incurred in providing supervisory services. 

Educational Service Center No. I - to account for resources accumulated for, and 
the payment of, expenditures of the Educational Service Center No.1. 

Institute - to account for fees collected for the registration and renewal of teaching 
certificates. These fees are used to defray administrative expenses incidental to 
teachers' institutes, workshops, or meetings of a professional nature that are 
designed to promote the professional growth of teachers or for the purpose of 
defraying the expense of any general or special meeting of teachers or school 
personnel. All funds generated remain restricted until expended only on the 
aforementioned activities. 

Proprietary Funds - to account for resources from fees charged directly to those entities or 
individuals that use its services. 

Local Workshop - to aecount for contraet monies received for, and payment of, 
expenditures for workshops and other services for the school districts. 

Curriculum 2004 - to aecount for monies received from school districts for 
seminars/meetings held for the improvement of the schools' eurriculum. 
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N
etw

orking for Inform
ation C

onference -
to account for m

onies received from
 school 

districts for sem
inars/m

eetings held focusing on teclm
ology solutions. 

R
aising S

tudent A
chievem

ent C
onference C

R
SA

C
) -

to account for m
onies received 

for, and paym
ent of, expenditures incurred by professional developm

ent program
s 

that 
provide 

cost-effective, 
custom

izable 
professional 

developm
ent 

in 
targeted 

curricular areas that w
ill focus on im

proving classroom
 teaching practices in order to 

raise student achievem
ent. 

C
onference 

C
onnect 

-
to 

account 
for 

m
onies 

received 
for, 

and 
paym

ent 
of, 

expenditures 
incurred 

by 
sem

inars/training 
program

s 
related 

to 
im

proving 
inform

ation technology. 

G
lobal C

O
lm

ect C
onference -

to account for m
onies received for, 

and paym
ent of, 

expenditures incurred in conferences conducted for im
provem

ent o
f education for 

adm
inistrators and business cornm

unity leaders. 

Fiduciary F
und T

ype 

F
iduciary F

unds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity or as an agent for 
individuals or private or governm

ental organizations. 
T

he F
iduciary Funds include the 

follow
ing: 

A
gency 

Funds -
custodial in nature 

(assets equal liabilities) 
and do 

not involve 
m

easurem
ent o

f operations. 
T

he agency funds include the follow
ing: 

D
istributive -

to 
account for funds 

received and disbursed as 
a result o

f the 
S

uperintendent's responsibility to receive and distribute to 
treasurers o

f other 
agencies. 

A
udio 

V
isual 

C
o-op 

-
to 

account 
for 

funds 
received 

and 
disbursed 

by 
the 

S
uperintendent as adm

inistrative agent for the B
oone/W

innebago A
udio V

isual 
C

o-op. 

C
areer E

ducational A
ssociates o

f N
orth C

entral Illinois (C
E

A
N

C
I) -

to account 
for funds received and disbursed by the S

uperintendent as adm
inistrative agent for 

the C
E

A
N

C
I Joint A

greem
ent. 

Pavroll -
to account for all payroll that is incurred. 

A
ny fund that has payroll 

rem
its the m

oney to the Payroll F
und, the F

und then pays the em
ployee. 

T
his is 

an adm
inistrating agent for the R

O
E

's payroll. 
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Networking for Information Conference - to account for monies received from school 
districts for seminars/meetings held focusing on teclmology solutions. 

Raising Student Achievement Conference (RSAC) - to account for monies received 
for, and payment of, expenditures incurred by professional development programs 
that provide cost-effective, customizable professional development in targeted 
curricular areas that will focus on improving classroom teaching practices in order to 
raise student achievement. 

Conference Connect - to account for monies received for, and payment of, 
expenditures incurred by seminars/training programs related to improving 
infonnation teclmology. 

Global Cormect Conference - to account for monies received for, and payment of, 
expenditures incurred in conferences conducted for improvement of education for 
administrators and business community leaders. 

Fiduciary Fund Type 

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity or as an agent for 
individuals or private or goverrunental organizations. The Fiduciary Funds include the 
following: 

Agency Funds - custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve 
measurement of operations. The agency funds include the following: 

Distributive - to account for funds received and disbursed as a result of the 
Superintendent's responsibility to receive and distribute to treasurers of other 
agencies. 

Audio Visual Co-op - to account for funds received and disbursed by the 
Superintendent as administrative agent for the Boone/Winnebago Audio Visual 
Co-op. 

Career Educational Associates of North Central Illinois CCEANC!) - to account 
for funds received and disbursed by the Superintendent as administrative agent for 
the CEANCI Joint Agreement. 

Payroll - to account for all payroll that is incurred. Any fund that has payroll 
remits the money to the Payroll Fund, the Fund then pays the employee. This is 
an administrating agent for the ROE's payroll. 
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E. 
Interest R

evenue 

Illinois State B
oard o

f E
ducation (ISB

E
) funds received by the R

O
E

 for the D
istributive 

F
und accrue interest for the period o

f tim
e betw

een the receipt o
f the funds and clearance 

o
f checks to the recipient. 

In accordance w
ith an agreem

ent dated M
ay 24, 1988 w

ith the 
school district boards served, interest earned on D

istributive F
und deposits is transferred 

to 
the 

G
eneral 

Fund to 
offset w

ire 
service and other bank charges incurred by the 

D
istributive Fund. 

D
istributive F

und interest earned and related charges are recognized as revenues and 
expenditures in the general fund. 

F. 
L

icense and P
erm

its 

L
icense and perm

it revenues are recognized in the year for w
hich the licenses or perm

its 
arc issued. 

T
eacher certification revenues are recognized over a five year period w

hen 
applicable. 

G
. 

R
evenues -E

xchange and N
on-exchange T

ransactions 

R
evenue resulting from

 exchange transactions, in w
hich each party gives and receives 

essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis w
hen the exchange takes place. 

O
n a m

odified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in w
hich the resources 

are m
easurable and becom

e available. 

N
on-exchange transactions, in w

hich the R
O

E
 receives value w

ithout directly giving 
value in return, include grants and donations. 

O
n an accrual basis, revenue from

 grants 
and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in w

hich all eligibility requirem
ents have 

been satisfied. 
E

ligibility requirem
ents include tim

ing requirem
ents, w

hich specify the 
year w

hen the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year w
hen use is first 

perm
itted, m

atching requirem
ents, in w

hich the R
O

E
 m

ust provide local resources to be 
used for 

specific purpose, and expenditure requirem
ents, 

in w
hich the 

resources are 
provided to the R

O
E

 on a reim
bursem

ent basis. 
O

n a m
odified accrual basis, revenue 

from
 non-exchange transactions m

ust be available before it can be recognized. 

H
. 

C
apital A

ssets 

C
apital assets result from

 expenditures in the governm
ental and proprietary funds. 

T
hese 

assets 
are 

reported in the 
governm

ental and business-type activities colum
ns o

f the 
governm

ent-w
ide S

tatem
ent o

f N
et A

ssets but are not reported in the fund financial 
statem

ents for the governm
ental funds. 38 
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E. Interest Revenue 

Illinois State Board of Education (ISBE) funds received by the ROE for the Distributive 
Fund accrue interest for the period of time between the receipt of the funds and clearance 
of checks to the recipient. In accordance with an agreement dated May 24, 1988 with tIle 
school district boards served, interest earned on Distributive Fund deposits is transferred 
to the General Fund to offset wire service and other bank charges incurred by the 
Distributive Fund. 

Distributive Fund interest earned and related charges are recognized as revenues and 
cxpenditures in the general fund. 

F. License and Permits 

License and pern1it revenues are recognized in the year for which the licenses or permits 
are issued. Teacher certification revenues are recognized over a five year period when 
applicable. 

G. Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions 

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives 
essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. 
On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources 
are measurable and become available. 

Non-exchange transactions, in which the ROE receives value without direetly giving 
value in return, include grants and donations. On an aecrual basis, revenue from grants 
and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have 
been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the 
year when the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first 
permitted, matching requirements, in which the ROE must provide local resources to be 
used for specific purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are 
provided to the ROE on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue 
from non-exchange transactions must be available before it can be recognized. 

H. Capital Assets 

Capital assets result from expenditures in the governmental and proprietary funds. These 
assets are reported in the governmental and business-type activities columns of the 
government-wide Statement of Net Assets but are not reported in the fund financial 
statements for the governmental funds. 
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C
apital assets are recorded at cost at tim

e o
f acquisition or fair value at the date o

f 
donation. 

T
he R

O
E

 capitalizes item
s costing $5,000 or m

ore. 
D

epreciation is calculated 
on a straight-line basis over the 

estim
ated useful 

lives 
(three to 

forty years) 
o

f the 
respective assets. 

1. 
D

eferred R
evenues 

T
he R

O
E

 reports unearned deferred revenue in the governm
ental fund B

alance S
heet. 

D
eferred and unearned revenue arises w

hen potential revenue does not m
eet both the 

m
easurable and available criteria for recognition in the current period. 

J. 
M

anagem
ent E

stim
ates 

T
he 

preparation 
o

f 
financial 

statem
ents, 

in 
confonnity 

w
ith 

generally 
accepted 

accounting principles, requires m
anagem

ent to m
ake 

estim
ates and assum

ptions that 
affect the reported am

ount o
f assets, liabilities and disclosure o

f contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date o

f the financial 
statem

ents, as w
ell as the reported am

ounts o
f 

revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
A

ctual results could differ from
 those 

estim
ates. 

K
. 

Investm
ents and C

ash A
ccounts 

State 
regulations 

require 
that 

the 
B

oone/W
innebago 

C
ounties 

R
egional 

O
ffice 

o
f 

E
ducation N

o. 4 deposit funds under its control into accounts insured by the federal 
governm

ent, secured by substantial collateral or into pooled investm
ent trusts. 

A
ll funds 

not needed for im
m

ediate disbursem
ents are m

aintained in interest bearing accounts. 
S

tatutes authorize the B
oone/W

im
lebago C

ounties R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o

.4
 to 

m
ake deposits or invest in obligation o

f states and their political subdivisions, savings 
accounts, credit union shares, repurchase agreem

ents, com
m

ercial paper rated w
ithin the 

three highest classifications by at least tw
o 

standard rating services, and the Illinois 
P

ublic T
reasurer's Investm

ent Pool. 

1
. 

B
udgets and B

udgetary A
ccounting 

B
oone/W

innebago C
ounties R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o
.4

 did not fonnally adopt a 
budget for the year ended June 30, 2009 and is not legally required to do so. 

T
he Illinois 

State B
oard o

f E
ducation requires budgets for certain State and Federal program

s. 
T

hese 
budgets 

w
ere 

used 
to 

prepare 
B

udgetary 
C

om
parison 

Schedules 
for 

the 
follow

ing 
program

s: 
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Capital assets are recorded at cost at time of acquisition or fair value at the date of 
donation. The ROE capitalizes items costing $5,000 or more. Depreciation is calculated 
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives (tIu'ee to forty years) of the 
respective assets. 

I. Deferred Revenues 

The ROE reports unearned deferred revenue in the govemmental fund Balance Sheet. 
Deferred and unearned revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet both the 
measurable and available criteria for recognition in the current period. 

J. Management Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles, requires management to mal(e estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

K. Investments and Cash Accounts 

State regulations require that the Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of 
Education No. 4 deposit funds under its control into accounts insured by the federal 
goverrnnent, secured by substantial collateral or into pooled investment trusts. All funds 
not needed for immediate disbursements are maintained in interest bearing aecounts. 
Statutes authorize the BoonelWinnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No.4 to 
make deposits or invest in obligation of states and their political subdivisions, savings 
accounts, credit union shares, repurchase agreements, commercial paper rated \vithin the 
three highest classifications by at least two standard rating services, and the Illinois 
Public Treasurer's Investment Pool. 

1. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

BoonelWinnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No.4 did not formally adopt a 
budget for the year ended June 30, 2009 and is not legally required to do so. The Illinois 
State Board of Education requires budgets for certain State and Federal programs. These 
budgets were used to prepare Budgetary Comparison Schedules for the following 
programs: 
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G
eneral Fund: 

• 
R

O
E

/IS
C

 O
perations 

Special R
evenue Funds: 

• 
E

ducation Fund: 
• 

T
ruants A

lternative P
rogranl 

• 
R

egional L
earning A

cadem
y 

• 
R

egional Safe Schools 
• 

K
ids Fund 

• 
O

ther State P
rogram

s 
• 

T
itle II -

T
eacher Q

uality -
L

eadership 
• 

T
itle I -

School Im
provem

ent and A
ccountability 

• 
T

eclm
ology for Success (Fornlerly L

earning T
echnology C

enter) 

M
. N

ew
 A

ccounting P
ronouncem

ents 

E
ffective July 1, 2008, the B

oone/w
innebago C

m
m

ties R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o. 

4 adopted the follow
ing accounting pronouncem

ents: 

• 
G

A
SB

 
S

tatem
ent 

N
o. 

49, 
A

ccounting 
and 

F
inancial 

R
eporting for 

P
ollution 

R
em

ediation O
bligations, addresses accounting and financial reporting standards for 

pollution (including contam
ination) rem

ediation obligations, w
hich are obligations to 

address 
the 

current 
or 

potential 
detrim

ental 
effects 

o
f 

existing 
pollution 

by 
participating in pollution rem

ediation activities such as site assessm
ents and cleanups. 

• 
G

A
SB

 
S

tatem
ent N

o. 
52, 

L
and and O

ther R
eal E

state 
H

eld as 
Investm

ents 
by 

E
ndow

m
ents, 

w
hich 

im
proves 

the 
quality 

o
f 

financial 
reporting 

by 
requiring 

endow
m

ents to 
report their land and other real 

estate investm
ents at fair 

value, 
creating consistency in reporting am

ong sim
ilar entities that exist to invest resources 

for the purpose o
f generating incom

e. 

• 
G

A
SB

 
S

tatem
ent 

N
o. 

55, 
The 

H
ierarchy 

o
f G

enerally 
A

ccepted 
A

ccollnting 
P

rinciples fo
r State and L

ocal G
overnm

ents, 
w

hich incorporates the hierarchy o
f 

G
A

A
P for State and local governm

ents into the G
A

S
B

' s authoritative literature. 
It is 

intended to 
m

ake it easier for preparers o
f State and local 

governm
ent financial 

statem
ents to identify and apply the "G

A
A

P
 hierarchy," w

hich consists o
f sources o

f 
accounting principles used in the preparation o

f financial statem
ents so that they are 

presented in conform
ity w

ith G
A

A
P and the fram

ew
ork for selecting those principles. 

• 
G

A
SB

 
S

tatem
ent N

o. 
56, 

C
odification 

o
f A

ccollnting 
and F

inancial 
R

eporting 
G

uidance 
C

ontained 
in 

the 
A

IC
P

A
 

Statem
ents 

on 
A

uditing 
Standards, 

w
hich 

incorporates into the G
A

S
B

's authoritative literature certain accounting and financial 
reporting 

guidance 
presented 

in 
the 

A
m

erican 
Institute 

o
f 

C
ertified 

Public 

40 
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General Fund: 
• ROE/ISC Operations 

Special Revenue Funds: 
• Education Fund: 

• Truants Alternative Program 
• Regional Learning Academy 

• Regional Safe Schools 
• Kids Fund 

• Other State Programs 
• Title II - Teacher Quality - Leadership 
• Title I - School Improvement and Accountability 
• Technology for Success (Formerly Learning Technology Center) 

M. New Accounting Pronouncements 

Effective July 1, 2008, the BoonelWinnebago COIIDties Regional Office of Education No. 
4 adopted the following accounting pronouncements: 

• GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution 
Remediation Obligations, addresses accounting and financial reporting standards for 
poliution (including contamination) remediation obligations, which are obligations to 
address the current or potential detrimental effects of existing pollution by 
participating in pollution remediation activities such as site assessments and cleanups. 

• GASB Statement No. 52, Land and Other Real Estate Held as Investments by 
Endowments, which improves the quality of financial reporting by requiring 
endowments to report their land and other real estate investments at fair value, 
creating consistency in reporting among similar entities that exist to invest resources 
for the purpose of generating income. 

• GASB Statement No. 55, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles for State and Local Governments, which incorporates the hierarchy of 
GAAP for State and local governnrents into the GASB's authoritative literature. It is 
intended to make it easier for preparers of State and local governnrent financial 
statements to identifY and apply the "GAAP hierarchy," which consists of sources of 
accounting principles used in the preparation of [mancial statements so that they are 
presented in confonnity with GAAP and the framework for selecting those principles. 

• GASB Statement No. 56, Codification of Accollnting and Financial Reporting 
Guidance Contained in the AICPA Statements 011 Auditing Standards, which 
incorporates into the GASB's authoritative literature certain accounting and financial 
reporting guidance presented in the American Institute of Certified Public 
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E

 30, 2009 

A
ccountants' 

Statem
ents on A

uditing S
tandards. 

T
his 

statem
ent addresses three 

issues 
not 

included 
in 

the 
authoritative 

literature 
that 

establishes 
accounting 

principles-related party transactions, going concern considerations, and subsequent 
events. 

T
he presentation o

f principles used in the preparation o
f financial statem

ents 
is m

ore appropriately included in accounting and financial reporting standards rather 
than in the auditing literature. 

T
here w

ere no significant im
pacts on the B

oone/W
innebago C

ounties R
egional O

ffice o
f 

E
ducation N

o. 4
's financial statem

ents as a result o
f adopting the above statem

ents. 

N
O

T
E

2
-lliT

E
R

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
 

O
n A

ugust 7, 
1992, the B

oone/W
innebago C

ounties R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o

.4
 

entered into an Intergovernm
ental A

greem
ent executed pursuant to the provisions o

f the 
Intergoverrunental C

ooperation C
lause o

f the Illinois C
onstitution as w

ell as the provisions o
f 

the Intergovernm
ental C

ooperation A
ct o

f 1973 and the Illinois A
dm

in. C
ode 525.110. 

T
he nam

e o
f the E

ducational S
ervice delivery system

 form
ed is know

n as the K
ishw

aukee 
Interm

ediate D
elivery S

ystem
 (K

ID
S). 

M
em

bership in K
ID

S is m
ade up o

f the follow
ing 

R
egional 

O
ffices 

o
f 

E
ducation: 

B
oone/W

innebago, 
D

eK
alb, 

and 
M

cH
enry. 

T
he 

B
oone/W

innebago R
O

E
 w

as designated as A
dm

inistrative A
gent. 

N
O

T
E

 3 -
C

A
S

H
 A

N
D

 m
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
S

 

D
eposits 

T
he 

B
oone/W

innebago 
C

ounties 
R

egional 
O

ffice 
o

f E
ducation 

N
o. 

4 
utilizes 

several 
different bank accounts 

for its various activities. 
T

he book balance o
f such accounts 

is 
$5,305,000 at June 30, 2009, w

hile the barrie balance w
as 

$5,529,024. 
T

he difference 
betw

een the above am
ounts prim

arily represents checks that have been issued but have not 
yet cleared the bank as o

f June 30, 2009. 
O

f the total barrie balance as o
f June 30, 2009, 

$2,183,670 w
as secured by federal depository insurance and $3,345,354 w

as collateralized 
by securities held by the barrie's trust departm

ent under the R
O

E
's nanle. 

Investm
ents 

T
he 

R
O

E
's 

established 
investm

ent 
policy 

follow
s 

the 
State 

o
f Illinois 

P
ublic 

F
unds 

Investm
ent 

A
ct 

w
hich 

authorizes 
the 

B
oone/W

innebago 
C

ounties 
R

egional 
O

ffice 
o

f 
E

ducation N
o

.4
 to purchase certain obligations o

f the u
.S

. T
reasury, federal agencies and 

instrum
entalities; certificates o

f deposit and tim
e deposits covered by F

ederal depository 
insurance; com

m
ercial paper o

f U
.S. corporations w

ith assets exceeding $500,000,000, if 
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Accountants' Statements on Auditing Standards. This statement addresses three 
issues not included in the authoritative literature that establishes accounting 
principles-related party transactions, going concern considerations, and subsequent 
events. The presentation of principles used in the preparation of financial statements 
is more appropriately included in accounting and financial reporting standards rather 
than in the auditing literature. 

There were no significant impacts on the Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of 
Education No.4' s financial statements as a result of adopting the above statements. 

NOTE 2· INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

On August 7, 1992, the Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No.4 
entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement executed pursuant to the provisions of the 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Clause of the Illinois Constitution as well as the provisions of 
the Intergovermnental Cooperation Act of 1973 and the Illinois Admin. Code 525.110. 

The name of the Educational Service delivery system formed is known as the Kishwaukee 
Intermediate Delivery System (laDS). Membership in KIDS is made up of the following 
Regional Offices of Education: Boone/Winnebago, DeKalb, and McHenry. The 
Boone/Winnebago ROE was designated as Administrative Agent. 

NOTE 3 • CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

The Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No. 4 utilizes several 
difIerent bank accounts for its various activities. The book balance of such accounts is 
$5,305,000 at June 30, 2009, while the bank balance was $5,529,024. The difference 
between the above amounts primarily represents checks that have been issued but have not 
yet cleared the bank as of June 30, 2009. Of the total bank balance as of June 30, 2009, 
$2,183,670 was secured by federal depository insurance and $3,345,354 was collateralized 
by securities held by the bank's trust department under the ROE's nan1C. 

Investments 

The ROE's established investment policy follows the State of Illinois Public Funds 
Investment Act which authorizes the Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of 
Education No.4 to purchase certain obligations of the U.S. Treasury, federal agencies and 
instrumentalities; certificates of deposit and time deposits covered by Federal depository 
insurance; commercial paper of U.S. corporations with assets exceeding $500,000,000, if 
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such paper is rated at the highest classification established hy at least two standard rating 
services; money market funds and the Illinois Funds. 

As of June 30, 2009, the Boone/Wianebago Counties Regional Office of Education No.4 
had investments with carrying and fair values of $1,129,936 invested in the Illinois Funds 
Money Market. 

Credit Risk 

At June 30, 2009, the Illinois Funds Money Market Fund had a Standards and Poor's MAm 
rating. The pool is audited annually by an outside independent auditor and copies of the 
report are distributed to participants. Although not subject to direct regulatory oversight, the 
fund is administered by the Illinois State Treasurer in accordance \vith the provisions of the 
Illinois Public Funds Investments Act, 30 ILCS 235. All investments are fully collateralized. 

Interest Rate Risk 

The Illinois Funds Money Market Fund, created by the Illinois General Assembly, enables 
custodians of public funds an investment option with a competitive rate of return on fully 
collateralized investments and immediate access to the funds. The investment policy of thc 
Illinois Funds Money Market Fund states that unless authorized specifically by the Treasurer, 
a minimum of 75% of its investments shall have less than one-year maturity and no 
investment shall exceed two years maturity. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

Unless specifically authorized by the Treasurer, the Illinois Funds Money Market Fund's 
investment policy limits investment categories to not exceed 25% of the portfolio, with the 
exception of cash equivalents and U.S. Treasury securities. Further, certificates of deposits 
cannot exceed 10% of any single financial institution's total deposits. 

NOTE 4 - DUE FROM (TO) OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCmS 

The Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No. 4's General Fund, 
Special Revenue Fund and various grant programs have funds due to and due from various 
governmental units which consists of the following: 

Due from Other Governmental Agencies: 
Illinois State Board of Education 
Local school districts 
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Due to Other Governmental Agencies: 
Carroll, JoDaviess, Stephenson Counties Regional Office of Education No.8 
Bureau, Henry, Stark Counties Regional Office of Education No. 28 
LaSalle County Regional Office of Education No. 35 
Lee Ogle Counties Regional Office of Education No. 47 
Rock Island County Regional Office of Education No. 49 
Whiteside County RegionaJ Office of Education No. 55 
Local school districts 

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

$ 15,030 
44,753 
30,091 
56,146 
93,463 
10,535 

1,413,336 
$ 1,663:,354 

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2009 is as follows: 

Balance Balance 
July 1,2008 Additions Retirements June 30, 2009 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Equipment $ 162,736 $ 44,287 $ (30,842) $ 176,181 
Less: accumulated depreciation (l35,903) (17,829) 26,865 (l26,867) 
Capital assets, net $ 26,833 $ 26,458 $ (3,977) $ 49,314 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
Equipment $ 5,298 $ $ $ 5,298 
Less: accumulated depreciation (l,148) (1,060) (2,208) 
Capital assets, net $ 4,150 $ (1,060) $ $ 3,090 

NOTE 6 - INTEREST ON DISTRIBUTIVE FUND 

Interest earned on distributive fund receipts is recorded in the General Fund by the consent of 
all affected school boards and other entities. The funds are utilized by the Superintendent to 
purchase computer equipment, develop in-service activities and other innovative programs, 
as well as, assist with the necessary operating expenses of the Boone/Winnebago Counties 
Regional Office of Education No. 4's office. 

NOTE 7 - SALARIES AND PENSION PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS 

The salaries of the Regional Superintendent and the Assistant Superintendent are paid by the 
State of minois. The Regional Office personnel are paid by the BooncfWinnebago Counties, 
Illinois, in accordance with statutes. Employees of programs funded by federal and State 
grants are paid through the Payroll Fund or by the County of Winnebago and then 
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BOONElWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2009 

reimbursed by the grants. The breakdown of the State on-behalf payments for the year ended 
June 30, 2009 is as follows: 

Regional Superintendent salary 
Regional Superintendent fringe benefits 

(includes State paid insurance) 
Assistant Regional Superintendents salary 
Assistant Regional Superintendent fringe benefits 

(includes State paid insurance) 
TRS contributions 

Total 

$ 100,762 

18,276 
90,686 

15,456 
310,352 

$ 535,532 

Salary and benefit data for the Regional Superintendent and Assistant Regional 
Superintendent were calculated based on data provided by the Illinois State Board of 
Education. 

NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS 

Teachers' Retirement System of the State of Illinois 

The Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No. 4 participates in the 
Teachers' Retirement System of the State of Illinois (TRS). TRS is a cost-sharing multiple­
employer defined benefit pension plan that was created by the Illinois legislature for the 
benefit of Illinois public school teachers employed outside the city of Chicago. The Illinois 
Pension Code outlines the benefit provisions of TRS, and amendments to the plan can be 
made only by legislative action with the Govemor's approval. The State of Illinois maintains 
the primary responsibility for funding the plan, but contributions from participating 
employers and members are also required. The TRS Board of Trustees is responsible for the 
system's administration. 

TRS members include all active nonannuitants who are employed by a TRS-covered 
employer to provide services for which teacher certification is required. The active member 
contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2009, was 9.4 percent of creditable earnings. 
These contributions, which may be paid on behalf of employees by the employer, are 
submitted to TRS by the employer. The active member contribution rate was also 9.4 
percent for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007. In addition, virtually all employers and 
members pay a contribution to the Teachers' Health Insurance Security (THIS) Fund, a 
separate fund in the State Treasury that is not a part of this retirement plan. The employer 
THIS Fund contribution was 0.63 percent during the year ended June 30, 2009, and the 
member THIS Fund health insurance contribution was 0.84 percent. 
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T
he State o
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ffice o
f E

ducation N
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ounties R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o
.4
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year ended June 30, 2009, State o
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ere based on 17.08 percent o
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The State of Illinois makes contributions directly to TRS on behalf of the Boone/Winnebago 
Counties Regional Office of Education No. 4's TRB-covered employees. 

• On-behalf Contributions. The State of Illinois makes employer pension contributions 
on behalf of the Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No.4. For the 
year ended June 30, 2009, State of Illinois contributions were based on 17.08 percent of 
creditable earnings not paid from federal funds, and the BoonelWinnebago Counties 
Regional Office of Education No.4 recognized revenue and expenditures of $310,352 in 
pension contributions that the State of Illinois paid directly to TRS. For the years ended 
June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007, the State oflllinois contribution rates as percentages of 
creditable earnings not paid from federal funds were 13.11 percent ($237,249) and 9.78 
percent ($162,349), respectively. The State contributions to TRS for the year ended 
June 30, 2009 and June 30, 2008 were based on an actuarial formula. The State 
contributions for the year endcd June 30, 2007 was based on dollar amount specified by 
the statute and were not actuarially detennined. 

The Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No.4 makes other types of 
employer contributions directly to TRS. 

• 2.2 Formula Contributions. Employers contribute 0.58 percent of lotal creditable 
earnings for the 2.2 formula change. TIns rate is specified by statute. Contributions for 
the year ended June 30, 2009 were $10,239. Contributions for the years ended June 30, 
2008, and June 30, 2007, were $10,608 and $9,621, respectively. 

• Federal and Special Trust Fund Contributions. When TRS members are paid fTOm 
federal and special trust funds administered by the Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional 
Office of Education No.4, there is a statutory requirement for the Boone/Winnebago 
Counties Regional Office of Education No.4 to pay an employer pension contribution 
from those funds. Under a policy adopted by the TRS Board of Trustees that was first 
effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, employer contributions for employees 
paid from federal and special trust funds will be the same as the State contribution rate to 
TRS. For the year ended June 30, 2009, the employer pension contribution was 17.08 
percent of salaries paid from federal and trust funds. For the years ended June 30, 2008, 
and 2007, the employer contribution was 13.11 and 9.78 percent of salaries paid from 
federal and special trust funds, respectively. For the year ended June 30, 2009, salaries 
totaling $42,864 were paid from federal and special trust funds that required employer 
contributions of $7,321. For the years ended June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007, required 
BoonelWinnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No. 4 contributions were 
$17,103 and $884, respectively. 

• Early Retirement Option. TIle Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of 
Education No.4 is also required to malce one-time employer contributions to TRS for 
members retiring under the Early Retirement Option (ERO). The payments vary 

45 



B
O

O
N

E
IW

IN
N

E
B

A
G

O
 C

O
U

N
T

IE
S

 R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 O

F
F

IC
E

 O
F

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 N
O

.4
 

N
O

T
E

S
 T

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
S

 
JU

N
E

 30, 2009 

depending on the age 
and salary o

f the m
em

ber and under w
hich E

R
O

 program
 the 

m
em

ber retires. 
U

nder P
ublic A

ct 94-0004, a "P
ipeline E

R
O

" program
 w

as provided for 
m

em
bers to retire under the sam

e tem
lS as the E

R
O

 program
 that expired June 30, 2005, 

provided they m
et certain conditions and retired on or before July I, 2008. 

If m
em

bers 
did not m

eet these conditions, they can retire under the "M
odified E

R
O

" program
 w

hich 
requires higher m

em
ber and em

ployer contributions to T
R

S. 
A

lso, under M
odified E

R
O

, 
P

ublic A
ct 94-0004 elim

inates the w
aiver o

f m
em

ber and em
ployer E

R
O

 contributions 
that had been in effect for m

em
bers w

ith 34 years o
f service (unless the m

em
ber qualified 

for the P
ipeline E

R
O

). 
U

nder the P
ipeline E

R
O

, the m
axim

um
 em

ployer contribution 
w

as 
100 

percent 
o

f the 
m

em
ber's 

highest 
salary 

used 
in 

the 
final 

average 
salary 

calculation. 
U

nder the M
odified E

R
O

, the m
axim

um
 em

ployer contribution is 117.5 
percent. 

B
oth the 100 percent and 117.5 percent m

axim
um

s apply w
hen the m

em
ber is 

age 55 at retirem
ent. 

F
or the year ended June 30, 2009, the B

oonelW
innebago C

ounties 
R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o
.4

 paid $0 to T
R

S for em
ployer contributions under the 

progranl. 
F

or the years ended June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007, the B
oonelW

innebago 
C

ounties R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o

.4
 paid $0 in em

ployer E
R

O
 contributions. 

• 
S

alary Increases O
ver 6 P

ercen
t and E

xcess S
ick

 L
eave. 

Public A
ct 94-0004 added 

tw
o additional em

ployer contributions to T
R

S. 

• 
If an em

ployer grants salary increases over 6 percent and those salaries are used to 
calculate a retiree's final average salary, the em

ployer m
akes a contribution to T

R
S. 

T
he contribution w

ill cover the difference in actuarial cost o
f the benefit based on 

actual salary increases and the benefit based on salary increases o
f up to 6 percent. 

F
or the years ended June 30, 2009 and June 30, 2008, the B

oonelW
innebago C

ounties 
R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o
.4

 did not have any paym
ents to T

R
S for em

ployer 
contributions 

due 
on 

salary increases in excess o
f 6 percent. 

F
or the year ended 

June 30, 2009, the B
oone/W

innebago C
ounties R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o
.4

 
paid $0 to T

R
S for em

ployer contributions due on salary increases in excess o
f 6 

percent. 
F

or the years ended June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007, the B
oone/W

innebago 
C

O
lm

ties R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o

.4
 did not have any paym

ents to T
R

S for 
em

ployer contributions due on salary increases in excess o
f 6 percent. 

• 
If an em

ployer grants sick leave days in excess o
f the norm

al arm
ual allotm

ent and 
those days are used as T

R
S service credit, the em

ployer m
akes a contribution to T

R
S. 

T
he contribution is based on the num

ber o
f excess sick leave days used as service 

credit, the highest salary used to calculate final average salary, and the T
R

S total 
norm

al cost rate (18.67 percent o
f salary during the year ended Jlm

e 30, 2009). 
F

or 
the year ended June 30, 2009, the B

oone/W
innebago C

ounties R
egional O

ffice o
f 

E
ducation N

o
.4

 paid $0 to T
R

S for sick leave days granted in excess o
f the norm

al 
arm

ual 
allotm

ent. 
F

or the 
years 

ended 
June 

30, 
2008 

and June 
30, 

2007, 
the 

B
oone/W

innebago C
ounties R

egional O
ffice o

f E
ducation N

o
.4

 did not have any 

46 

BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2009 

depending on the age and salary of the member and under which ERO program the 
member retires. Under Public Act 94-0004, a "Pipeline ERO" program was provided for 
members to retire under the same temlS as the ERO program that expired June 30, 2005, 
provided they met certain conditions and retired on or before July I, 2008. If members 
did not meet these conditions, they can retire under the "Modified ERO" program which 
requires higher member and employer contributions to TRS. Also, under Modified ERO, 
Public Act 94-0004 eliminates the waiver of member and employer ERO contributions 
that had been in effect for members with 34 years of service (unless the member qualified 
for the Pipeline ERO). Under the Pipeline ERO, the maximum employer contribution 
was 100 percent of the member's highest salary used in the final average salary 
calculation. Under the Modified ERO, the maximum employer contribution is 117.5 
percent. Both the 100 percent and 117.5 percent maximums apply when the member is 
age 55 at retirement. For the year ended June 30, 2009, the Boone/Winnebago Counties 
Regional Office of Education NO.4 paid $0 to TRS for employer contributions under the 
pragranl. For the years ended June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007, the Boone/Winnebago 
Counties Regional Office of Education No.4 paid $0 in employer ERO contributions. 

• Salary Increascs Over 6 Percent and Excess Sick Leave. Public Act 94-0004 added 
two additional employer contributions to TRS. 

• If an employer grants salary increases over 6 percent and those salaries are used to 
calculate a retiree's final average salary, the employer makes a contribution to TRS. 
The contribution will cover the difference in actuarial cost of the benefit based on 
actual salary increases and the benefit based on salary increases of up to 6 percent. 
For the years ended June 30, 2009 and June 30, 2008, the Boone/Winnebago Connties 
Regional Office of Education No.4 did not have any payments to TRS for employer 
contributions due on salary increases in excess of 6 percent. For the year ended 
June 30, 2009, the Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No.4 
paid $0 to TRS for employer contributions due on salary iocreases in excess of 6 
percent. For the years ended June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007, the Boone/Winnebago 
Counties Regional Office of Education No.4 did not have any payments to TRS for 
employer contributions due on salary increases in excess of 6 percent. 

• If an employer grants sick leave days in excess of the normal annual allotment and 
those days are used as TRS service credit, the employer makes a contribution to TRS. 
The contribution is based on the number of excess sick leave days used as service 
credit, the highest salary used to calculate final average salary, and the TRS total 
normal cost rate (18.67 percent of salary during the year ended June 30, 2009). For 
the year ended June 30, 2009, the BoonelWinnebago Connties Regional Office of 
Education No.4 paid $0 to TRS for sick leave days granted in excess of the normal 
annual allotment. For tIle years ended June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007, the 
Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No.4 did not have any 
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payments to TRS for sick leave days granted III excess of the normal annual 
allotment. 

TRS financial information, an explanation of TRS benefits, and descriptions of member, 
employer and State funding requirements can be found in the TRS Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2009. The report for the year ended June 30, 
2009, is expected to be available in late 2009. The reports may be obtained by writing to the 
Teachers' Retirement System of the State of Illinois, P.O. Box 19253, 2815 West 
Washington Street, Springl1eld, IL 62794-9253. The most current report is also available on 
the TRS web site at trs.illinois.gov. 

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 

Plan Description 

The Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No. 4's defined benefit 
pension plan for regular employees provides retirement and disability benefits, post 
retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The 
Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No. 4's plan is affiliated with the 
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer plan. Benefit 
provisions are established by statute and may only be changed by the General Assembly of 
the State of Illinois. IMRF issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary infomlation. The report may be obtained on-line at 
www.imrforg. 

Funding Policy 

As set by statute, the Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No. 4's 
regular plan members are required to contribute 4.50% of their annual covered salary. The 
statutes require employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member 
contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. TIle employer 
contribution rate fbr calendar year 2008 was 3.86% of annual covered payTOIl. TIle 
Boone/winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No. 4 also contributes for 
disability benefits, death benefits and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which are 
pooled at the llvlRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by the 
IMRF Board of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute. 

Annual Pension Cost 

For 2008, the Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No. 4's annual 
pension cost of $16,453 for the regular plan was equal to the Boone/Winnebago Counties 
Regional Office of Education No.4 's required and actual contributions. 
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TImEE - YEAR TREND INFORMATION 
Annual Pension 

Cost(APC) 
$ 16,453 

45,113 
55,853 

Percentage 
of APC Contributed 

100% 
100% 
100% 

Net Pension 
Obligation 

$ 

The required eontribution for 2008 was determined as part of the December 31, 2006 
actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at 
December 31,2006 included (a) 7.50% investment rate of return (net of administrative and 
direct investment expenses), (b) projected salary increases of 4.00% a year, attributable to 
inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases ranging from 0.4% to 11.6% per year 
depending on age and service, attributable to senioritylmerit, and Cd) post-retirement benefit 
increases of 3% annually. The actuarial value of the Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional 
Office of Education No.4 regular plan assets was determined using techniques that spread 
the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period 
with a 20% corridor between the actuarial and market value of assets. The 
Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No. 4's regular plan's unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability is being amortizcd as a level percentage of projected payroll on a 
closed basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2006, was 5 years. 

Funded Status and Funding Progress 

As of December 31, 2008, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the regular plan was 
72.79% funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $1,446,654 and the actuarial 
value of assets was $1,052,975, resulting in an underfunded actuarial aecrued liability 
(UAAL) of $393,679. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by 
the plan) was $426,240 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 92%. 

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial 
statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan 
assets is increasing or decreasing over tinle relative to the actuarial accrued liability for 
benefits. 

NOTE 9 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Fixed assets used solely by the Regional Office are purchased by the Boone and Winnebago 
Counties. O\Ynership of some fixed assets remains with the County of Winnebago and, 
accordingly, the cost of these assets is not included in any fund or in the Capital Assets in the 
financial statements. Other expenditures of the Regional Office are paid by the Boone and 
Winnebago Counties. 
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rogram
 

47,084 
R

egional L
earning A

cadem
y -

R
egional Safe S

chools 
82,260 

K
ID

S
 -

O
ther S

tate P
rogram

s 
74,000 

K
ID

S
 -

T
echnology for S

uccess (F
onnerly L

earning 
T

echnology C
enter) 

36,200 

T
otal 

$ 
313,544 

$ 
313,544 

b) T
ransfers F

ro
m

 (T
o) O

th
er F

unds 

T
he com

position o
f inter fund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2009 is as follow

s: 

F
und 

P
roprietary F

und -
L

ocal W
orkshop 

N
on-m

ajor S
pecial R

evenue F
unds -

E
ducation 

S
ervice C

enter N
o

.1
 

T
otal 

49 

T
ransfer-in 

$ 
1,630 

$ 
1,630 

T
ransfer-out 
$ 

1,630 

$ 
1,630 

BOONElWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2009 

NOTE 10 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCES 

The following funds have deficit fund balances as of June 30, 2009: 

Education Fund: 
Regional Alternative School - Preschool For All 
Regional Learning Center - Workforce Investment Act 
KlDS - Principal Mentoring 

Total 

$ 10,442 
987 

10,190 

$ 21,619 

Above deficit fund balances are expected to correct themselves through payments from the 
State, receipts from local sources and interest income in the next fiscal year. 

NOTE 11 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

a) Due From (fo) Other Funds 

The following is a sururnal'y of amounts due from (to) other fimds as of June 30, 2009: 

General Fund: 
ROEIISC Operations 
General Operations 

Education Fund: 

Fund 

Regional Learning Center - Truants Alternative Program 
Regional Learning Academy - Regional Safe Schools 
KIDS - Other Slate Programs 
KIDS - Technology for Success (Fonnerly Learning 

Technology Center) 

Total 

b) Transfers From (fo) Other Funds 

Due From Due To 
Other Funds Other Funds 

$ 74,000 $ 
313,544 

47,084 
82,260 
74,000 

36,200 

$ 313,544 $ 313,544 

The composition of interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2009 is as follows: 

Fund 
Proprietary Fund - Local Workshop 
Non-major Special Revenue Funds - Education 

Service Center No. I 

Total 

49 

Transfer-in 
$ 1,630 

$ 1,630 

Transfer-out 
$ 

1,630 

$ 1,630 
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A
ctuarial 

V
aluatiou 
D

ate 
12/31108 
12/31/07 
12/31106 

JU
N

E
 30, 2009 

IL
L

IN
O

IS
 M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L

 R
E

T
IR

E
M

E
N

T
 FU

N
D

 
S

C
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E
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 O

F
 F

U
N

D
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S
 

A
ctuarial 

A
ccrued 

A
ctuarial 

L
iability 

U
ufuuded 

V
alue o

f 
(A

A
L

) -
A

A
L

 
F

uuded 
C

overed 
A

ssets 
E

u
try

 A
ge 

(V
A

A
L

) 
R

atio 
P

ayroll 
(a) 

(b) 
(b-a) 

{alb} 
{c} 

$1,052,975 
$1,446,654 

$393,679 
72.79%

 
$ 426,240 

1,365,967 
1,343,010 

(22,957) 
101.71%

 
401,359 

1,223,847 
1,152,779 

(71,068) 
106.16%

 
434,990 

50 

U
A

A
L

asa 
P

erceutage 
o

f C
overed 

P
ayroll 

«b-a)/c) 
92.36%

 
0.00%

 
0.00%

 

BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 
1 1/08 
12/31107 
12131106 

JUNE 3D, 2009 

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND 
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

Adnarial 
Accrued 

Actuarial Liability Unfunded 
Valueo! (AAL)- AAL Funded Covered 
Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll 

(a) (b) (b-a) {alb} (c} 
$1,052,975 $1,446,654 $393,679 72.79% $ 426,240 

1,365,967 1,343,010 (22,957) 101.71% 401,359 
1,223,847 1,152,779 (71,068) 106.16% 434,990 

50 

UAALasa 
Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll 
«b-a)/c) 
92.36% 

0.00% 
0.00% 
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A
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T
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C
ash and cash equivalents 

D
ue from

 other funds 
D

ue from
 other governm

ental agencies 

T
O

T
A

L
 A

S
S

E
T

S
 

L
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B
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S
 A

N
D

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
S

 

L
IA

B
IL

IT
IE

S
 

A
ccounts payable and accrued expenses 

D
ue to other funds 

T
otal liabilities 

F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
S

 

U
nreserved 

T
O

T
A

L
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

IE
S

 A
N

D
 F

U
N

D
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S
 

$ $ 

51 

G
en

eral 
R

O
E

IISC
 

O
p

eration
s 

O
p

eration
s 

588,921 
$ 

71,435 
74,000 

1,848 
41,598 

590,769 
187,033 

62,184 

313,544 
313,544 

62,184 

277,225 
124,849 

590,769 
$ 

187,033 

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

l 

T
otal 

$ 
660,356 

74,000 
43,446 

777,802 

62,184 
313,544 

375,728 

402,074 

$ 
777,802 

BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
GENERAL FUND 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS 
JUNE 30, 2009 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Due from other funds 
Due from other governmental agencies 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Due to other funds 

Total liabilities 

FUND BALANCES 

Unreserved 

$ 

General ROElISC 
Operations Operations 

588,921 $ 71,435 
74,000 
41,598 

187,033 

62,184 
3 
313,544 62,184 

277,225 124,849 

SCHEDULEl 

$ 

Total 

660,356 
74,000 
43,446 

777,802 

62,184 
3 l3,544 

375,728 

402,074 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 590,769 $ 187,033 =$~==7=7~7,=80=2= 

51 
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G
en

eral 
O

p
eration

s 

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

 
S

tate sources 
$ 

L
ocal sources 

F
ees for services 

99,146 

Interest 
2,785 

O
n-behalf paym

ents 
535,532 

T
otal revenues 

637,463 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
 

S
alaries 

B
enefits 

P
urchased services 

102,504 

S
upplies and m

aterials 
5,307 

C
apital expenditures 

O
n-behalf paym

ents 
535,532 

T
otal expenditures 

643,343 

D
E

F
IC

IE
N
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E

V
E
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U
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S
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 E
X
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E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
 

(5,880) 

F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
S

, B
E

G
IN

N
IN

G
 O

F
 Y

E
A

R
 

283,105 

F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
S

, E
N

D
 O

F
 Y

E
A

R
 

$ 
277,225 

52 

R
O

E
IISC

 
O

p
eration

s 

$ 
374,598 

16,810 

391,408 

225,837 
48,827 

88,447 
31,499 

38,060 

432,670 

(41,262) 

166,111 

$ 
124,849 

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 2 

T
otal 

$ 
374,598 

99,146 

19,595 
535,532 

1,028,871 

225,837 

48,827 
190,951 
36,806 

38,060 

535,532 

1,076,013 

(47,142) 

449,216 

$ 
402,074 

BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
GENERAL FUND 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

General 
Operations 

REVENUES 
State sources $ 
Local sources 

Fees for services 99,146 

Interest 2,785 
On-behalf payments 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Salaries 
Benefits 
Purchased services 102,504 

Supplies and materials 5,307 

Capital expenditures 
On-behalf payments 535,532 

Total expenditures 643,343 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (5,880) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 283,105 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 277,225 

52 

ROEIISC 
Operations 

$ 374,598 

16,810 

391,408 

225,837 
48,827 

88,447 
31,499 

38,060 

(41,262) 

I 11 

$ 

SCHEDULE 2 

Total 

$ 374,598 

99,146 
19,595 

535,532 

1,028,871 

225,837 
48,827 

190,951 
36,806 

38,060 
535,532 

1,076,013 

(47,142) 

449,216 

$ 402,074 
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S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 3 

R
O

E
fIS

C
 O

perations 
V

ariance 
F

avorable 
B

udget 
A

ctual 
(U

nfavorable) 

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

 
S

tate sources 
$ 

374,598 
$ 

374,598 
$ 

Interest 
16,810 

16,810 

T
otal revenues 

374,598 
391,408 

16,810 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
 

S
alaries 

223,850 
225,837 

(1,987) 
B

enefits 
59,238 

48,827 
10,411 

P
urchased services 

73,010 
88,447 

(15,437) 
S

upplies and m
aterials 

17,500 
31,499 

(13,999) 

C
apital expenditures 

1,000 
38,060 

(37,060) 

T
otal expenditures 

374,598 
432,670 

(58,072) 
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$ 
(41,262) 

$ 
(41,262) 

F
U

N
D

 B
A
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A
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E
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166,111 

F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
, E

N
D

 O
F

 Y
E

A
R

 
$ 

124,849 

53 

BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
GENERAL FUND 
BUDGETARYCOMPAJUSONSCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

SCHEDULE 3 

ROEflSC Operations 
Variance 
Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

REVENUES 
State sources $ 374,598 $ 374,598 $ 

Interest 16,810 16,810 

Total revenues 374,598 391,408 16,810 

EXPENDITURES 
Salaries 223,850 225,837 (1,987) 
Benefits 59,238 48,827 10,411 
Purchased services 73,010 88,447 (15,437) 
Supplies and materials 17,500 31,499 (13,999) 
Capital expenditures 1,000 38,060 (37,060) 

Total expenditures 374,598 432,670 (58,072) 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ (41,262) $ (41,262) 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 166,111 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 124,849 

53 



BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 SCHEDULE 4 
EDUCATION FUND 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS 
JUNE 30, 2009 

Regional Regional Regional Regional 
Alternative Learning Learning Attendance 

School Center Academ):: Cooperative KIDS Total 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 646,278 $ 222,321 $ 1,836,697 $ 11,334 $ 701,732 $ 3,418,362 
Due from other funds 47,084 82,260 110,200 239,544 
Due from other governmental agencies 94,168 126,269 138,584 359,021 

TOTAL ASSETS 646,278 363,573 2,045,226 11,334 950,516 4,016,927 

v. 
~ LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 63,994 38,216 333,126 435,336 
Due to other governmental agencies 600,064 600,064 

Total liabilities 63,994 38,216 933,190 1,035,400 

FUND BALANCES 

Unreserved 582,284 325,357 2,045,226 11,334 17,326 2,981,527 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 646,278 $ 363,573 $ 2,045,226 $ 11,334 $ 950,516 $ 4,016,927 

BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 SCHEDULE 4 
EDUCATION FUND 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS 
JUNE 30, 2009 

Regional Regional Regional Regional 
Alternative Learning Learning Attendance 

School Center Aeadem;y Cool!erative KIDS Total 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 646,278 $ 222,321 $ 1,836,697 $ 1l,334 $ 701,732 $ 3,418,362 
Due from other funds 47,084 82,260 110,200 239,544 

Due from other governmental agencies 68 126,269 138,584 359,021 

TOTAL ASSETS 646,278 2,045,226 11,334 950,516 4,016,927 

v. 

""'" LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 63,994 38,216 333,126 435,336 
Due to other governmental agencies 600,064 

Total liabilities 63,994 38,216 90 1,035,400 

FUND BALANCES 

Unreserved 582,284 2,045,226 11,334 2,981,527 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 646,278 $ 363,573 $ 2,045,226 $ 11,334 $ 950,516 $ 4,016,927 



V> 
V> 

BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
EDUCATION FUND 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Regional Regional Regional Regional 
Alternative Learning Learning Attendance 

School Center Academy Cooperative 

REVENUES 
Federal sources $ 146,520 $ 105,107 $ 89,365 $ 

State sources 495,621 482,427 737,982 226,335 

Local sources 

Intergovernmental 32,771 1,948 
Fees for services 249,898 

Interest 5,351 4,140 21,317 97 

Total revenues 680,263 593,622 1,098,562 226,432 

EXPENDITURES 
Salaries 369,987 390,769 503,044 171,811 

Benefits 25,647 106,729 88,122 31,754 

Purchased services 198,523 192,206 191,472 21,730 

Supplies and materials 16,003 7,057 43,441 1,040 

Capital expenditures 54,725 

Payments to other governments 145,437 

Total expenditures 610,160 696,761 1,026,241 226,335 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 70,103 (103,139) 72,321 97 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 512,181 428,496 1,972,905 11,237 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 582,284 $ 325,357 $ 2,045,226 $ 11,334 

SCHEDULES 

KIDS Total 

$ 2,013,219 $ 2,354,211 
498,869 2,441,234 

36,950 71,669 

249,898 

30,905 
2,549,038 5,147,917 

362,644 1,798,255 

76,605 328,857 
771,596 1,375,527 

80,055 147,596 

8,242 62,967 

1,276,256 1,421,693 

2,575,398 5,134,895 

(26,360) 13,022 

43,686 2,968,505 

$ 17,326 $ 2,981,527 

V> 
V> 

BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OmCE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
EDUCATION FUND 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Regional Regional Regional Regional 
Alternative Learning Learning Attendance 

School Center Academy Cooperanve 

REVENUES 
Federal sources $ 146,520 $ 105,107 $ 89,365 $ 

State sources 495,621 482,427 737,982 226,335 
Local sources 

Intergovernmental 32,771 1,948 
Fees for services 249,898 
Interest 5,351 4,140 21,317 97 

Total revenues 680,263 593,622 1,098,562 226,432 

EXPENDITURES 
Salaries 369,987 390,769 503,044 171,811 

Benefits 25,647 106,719 88,121 31,754 

Purchased services 198,523 192,206 191,472 21,730 

Supplies and materials 16,003 7,057 43,441 1,040 

Capital expendinlres 54,725 

Payments to other governments 145,437 

Total expenditures 610,160 696,761 1,026,241 226,335 

EXCESS (DEFICIENcy) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 70,103 (103,139) 72,321 97 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 512,181 428,496 1,972,905 11,237 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 582,284 $ 325,357 $ 2,045,226 $ 11,334 

SCHEDULES 

KIDS Total 

$ 2,013,219 $ 2,354,211 

498,869 2,441,234 

36,950 71,669 

249,898 

30,905 

2,549,038 5,147,917 

362,644 1,798,255 

76,605 328,857 

771,596 1,375,527 

80,055 147,596 

8,242 62,967 
1,276,256 1,421,693 

2,575,398 5,134,895 

(26,360) 13,022 

43,686 2,968,505 

$ 17,326 $ 2,981,527 
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T
ruants A
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rogram

 • 
V

ariance 
F

avorable 
B

udget 
A

ctual 
(U

nfavorable) 

R
E

V
E

N
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E
S

 

S
tate sources 

$ 
470,840 

$ 
470,840 

$ 
L

ocal sources 

F
ees for services 

Interest 
97 

97 
T

otal revenues 
470,840 

470,937 
97 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
 

S
alaries 

293.930 
323,404 

(29,474) 
B

enefits 
90.850 

88,758 
2,092 

P
urchased services 

77,360 
73,157 

4,203 
S

upplies and m
aterials 

8,700 
7,133 

1,567 
T

otal expenditures 
470,840 

492,452 
(21,612) 
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he program

 is currently reported under the R
egional L

earning C
enter F

und and R
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ttendance C
ooperative F

und. 
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follow

ing is a sum
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f actual revenues and expenditures for the T
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rogram
 reported in the C
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chedule o

f R
evenues, E
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R
egional 

L
earning C

enter 

$ 
244,505 

$ 

266,117 

(21,612) 

43.318 

21.706 

25,816 

$ 
47,522 

$ 

R
egional 

A
ttendance 

C
ooperative 

T
otal 

226,432 
$ 

470.937 

226.335 
492,452 

97 
(21,515) 

43.318 

97 
21,803 

11,237 
37,053 

1 1,3 34 
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BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
EDUCATION FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

SCHEDULE 6 

Truants Alternative Pror:2:om • 
Variance 
Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

REVENUES 
State SOllrces $ 470,840 $ 470,840 $ 
Local sources 

Fees for services 
Interest 97 97 
Total revenues 470,840 470,937 97 

EXPENDITURES 
SaiiJries 293.930 323,404 (29,474) 

Benefits 90.850 88.758 2,092 
Purchased services 77,360 73,157 4.203 
Supplies and materials 8,700 7.133 1.567 

Total expenditures 470.840 492,452 (21,612) 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ (21,515) $ (21,515) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCE 
Trunsrcr in 43,318 

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCE 
OVER EXPENDITURES 21,803 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 37.053 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 58,856 

*' The program is currently reported under the Regional Leaming Center Fund and Regional Attendance Cooperative Fund. The 
following is a summary of actual revenues and expenditures for the Truants Alternative Program reported in the Combining 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for each fund. 

TOTAL REVENUES 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCE 
Transfer in 

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCE 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR 

56 

Regional 
Learning Center 

$ 244,;0; 

266,117 

(21,612) 

43.318 

21.706 

25,816 

$ 47,522 

Regional 
Attendance 
Cooperative Total 

$ 226,432 $ 470.937 

226.335 492,452 

97 (21,515) 

43.318 

97 21,803 

11,237 37,053 

$ 1 1 ,334 ,,;$~=,,;5;;;8~,8;,5 6;;" 
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BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
REGIONAL ALTERNATIVE SCHOOL 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS 
JUNE 30, 2009 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents (overdraft) 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 

Unreserved 

Regional 
Alternative School -

State Aid 

$ 592,726 $ 

592,726 

SCHEDULE 7 

RASGeneral 
State Aid­

ARRA Preschool for All Total 

63,994 $ (10,442) $ 646,278 

63,994 63,994 

(10,442) 582,284 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) $ 592,726 $ 63,994 $ (10,442) $ 646,278 

BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
REGIONAL ALTERNATIVE SCHOOL 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS 
JUNE 30, 2009 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents (overdraft) 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 

Regional 
Alternative School­

State Aid 

$ 592,726 $ 

SCHEDULE 7 

RASGeneral 
State Aid -

ARRA Preschool for All Total ---'===--

63,994 $ (10,44 2) ~$~=64:;,;;,,6';;;,2 7",,8= 

63,994 63,994 

Unreserved ___ -..::5c::.92~,c:.:72:.;6;... __________ (""1"'0,'-'-44..::2="-) __ 5:.:8:=.2'=.28:.;4;... 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) $ 592,726 $ 63,994 $ (I ° ,442) ~$:;,;;"=6=4=6';;;,27,,,,8= 



BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 SCHEDULE 8 
REGIONAL ALTERNATIVE SCHOOL 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Regional RAS General 
Alternative School - State Aid-

State Aid ARRA Preschool for All Total 
REVENUES 

Federal sources $ $ 146,520 $ $ 146,520 
State sources 495,621 495,621 

Local sources 
Intergovernmental 950 31,821 32,771 
Interest 5,351 5,351 

Total revenues 501,922 146,520 31,821 680,263 

V> 
00 EXPENDITURES 

Salaries 369,987 369,987 
Benefits 25,647 25,647 
Purchased services 9,740 146,520 42,263 198,523 
Supplies and materials 16,003 16,003 

Total expenditures 421,377 146,520 42,263 610,160 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 80,545 (10,442) 70,103 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 512,181 512,181 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR $ 592,726 $ $ (10,442) $ 582,284 

BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 SCHEDULES 
REGIONAL ALTERNATIVE SCHOOL 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

RegioDllI RASGeneml 
Alternative School- State Aid-

State Aid ARRA Preschool for All Total 
REVENUES 

Federal sources $ $ 146,520 $ $ 146,520 
State sources 495,621 495,621 

Local sources 

Intergovernmental 950 31,821 32,771 
Interest 5,351 5,351 

Total revenues 501,922 146,520 3 I ,821 680,263 

v. 
"" EXPENDITURES 

Salaries 369,987 369,987 
Benefits 25,647 25,647 
Purchased services 9,740 146,520 42,263 198,523 
Supplies and materials 16,003 16,003 

Total expenditures 421,377 146,520 42,263 610,160 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 80,545 (10,442) 70,103 

FUND BALANCES. BEGINNING OF YEAR 512,181 512,181 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT). END OF YEAR $ 592,726 $ $ (10,442) $ 582,284 
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BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
REGIONAL LEARNING CENTER 
COMBllUNGSCHEDULEOFACCOUNTS 
JUNE 30, 2009 

Workforce Truants Alternative 
Investment Act Program 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents (overdrafts) $ (987) $ (55,514) 
Due from other funds 47,084 
Due from other governmental agencies 94,168 

TOTAL ASSETS (987) 85,738 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 38,216 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 

Unreserved (987) 47,522 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) $ (987) $ 85,738 

SCHEDULE 9 

Regional Learning RLC General State 
Center - State Aid Aid-ARRA Total 

$ 278,822 $ $ 222,321 
47,084 
94,168 

278,822 363,573 

38,216 

278,822 325,357 

$ 278,822 $ $ 363,573 

Lh 
\0 

BOONElWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
REGIONAL LEARNING CENTER 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS 
JUNE 30, 2009 

Workforce Truants Alternative 
Investment Act Program 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents (overdrafts) $ (987) $ (55,514) 

Due from other funds 47,084 
Due from other governmental agencies [68 

TOTAL ASSETS (987) 85,738 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 

Unreserved (987) 47,522 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) $ $ 85,738 

SCHEDULE 9 

Regional Learning RLC General State 
Center - State Aid Aid-ARRA Total 

$ 278,822 $ $ 222,321 
47,084 
94,168 

278,822 363,573 

38,216 

278,822 325,357 

$ 278,822 $ $ 363,573 
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BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
REGIONAL LEARNING CENTER 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Workforce Truants Alternative Regional Learning 
Investment Act Program Center - State Aid 

REVENUES 
Federal sources $ 34,770 $ $ 
State sources 244,505 237,922 

Local sources 

Intergovernmental 1,948 
Interest 4,140 

Total revenues 34,770 244,505 244,010 

EXPENDITURES 
Salaries 26,606 151,593 212,570 
Benefits 2,470 57,004 47,255 
Purchased services 5,321 51,427 65,121 
Supplies and materials 964 6,093 

Total expenditures 35,361 266,117 324,946 

DEFlCmNCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (591) (21,612) (80,936) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfer in (out) 43,318 (43,318) 

EXCESS (DEFlCmNcy) OF REVENUES AND 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
OVER EXPENDITURES (591) 21,706 (124,254) 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR (396) 25,816 403,076 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR $ (987) $ 47,522 $ 278,822 

SCHEDULE 10 

RLCGeneral 
State Aid - ARRA Total 

$ 70,337 $ 105,107 
482,427 

1,948 
4,140 

70,337 593,622 

390,769 
106,729 

70,337 192,206 
7,057 

70,337 696,761 

(103,139) 

(103,139) 

428,496 

$ $ 325,357 

0\ c 

BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
REGIONAL LEARNING CENTER 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 311, 2009 

Workforce Truants Alternative Regional Learning 
Investment Act Program Center - State Aid 

REVENUES 
Ferlernl sources $ 34,770 $ $ 
State sources 244,505 237,922 

Local sources 
Intergovernmental 1,948 
Intcrest 4,140 

Total revenues 34,770 244,505 244,010 

EXPENDITURES 
Salaries 26,606 151,593 212,570 
Benefits 2,470 57,004 47,255 
Purchased services 5,321 51,427 65,121 
Supplies and materials 964 6,093 

Total expenditures 35,361 266,117 324,946 

DEFICmNCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (591) (21,612) (80,936) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfer in (out) 43,318 (43,318) 

EXCESS (DEFICmNCy) OF REVENUES AND 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
OVER EXPENDITURES (59!) 21,706 (124,254) 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR (396) 25,816 403,076 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR $ (987) $ 47,522 $ 278,822 

SCHEDULE 111 

RLCGeneral 
State Aid - ARRA Total 

$ 70,337 $ 105,107 
482,427 

1,948 
4,140 

70,337 593,622 

390,769 
106,729 

70,337 192,206 
7,057 

70,337 696,761 

(103,139) 

(103,139) 

428,496 

$ $ 325,357 
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BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
REGIONAL LEARNING ACADEMY 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS 
JUNE 30, 2009 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents (overdraft) 

Due from other funds 

Due from other governmental agencies 

TOTAL ASSETS 

FUND BALANCES 

Unreserved 

Regional Safe 
Schools 

$ (205,650) 

82,260 

123,390 

$ 

SCHEDULEH 

RLAGeneral General State 
Aid and Lunch State Aid - ARRA Total 

$ 2,042,347 $ $ 1,836,697 
82,260 

2,879 126,269 

2,045,226 2,045,226 

$ 2,045,226 =$~==== $ 2,045,226 

'" 

BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
REGIONAL LEARNING ACADEMY 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS 
JUNE 30, 2009 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents (overdraft) 

Due from other funds 
Due from other governmental agencies 

TOTAL ASSETS 

FUND BALANCES 

Unreserved 

Regional Safe 
Schools 

$ (205,650) 

82,260 

123,390 

$ 

General State 
Aid and Lunch 

$ 2,042,347 

2,879 

2,045,226 

$ 2,045,226 

SCHEDULE 11 

RLAGeneral 
State Aid - ARRA _--.:.T:.:;o:.=ta",I __ 

$ $ 1,836,697 

82,260 
126,269 

2,045,226 

$ 2,045,226 



BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 SCHEDULE 12 
REGIONAL LEARNING ACADEMY 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Regional Safe General State RLAGeneral 
Schools Aid and Lnnch State Aid - ARRA Total 

REVENUES 
Federal sources $ $ 17,546 $ 71,819 $ 89,365 
State sources 493,558 244,424 737,982 

Local sources 
Fees for services 249,898 249,898 
Interest 21,317 21,317 

Total revenues 493,558 533,185 71,819 1,098,562 

0, 
EXPENDITURES '" 

Salaries 351,179 151,865 503,044 
Benefits 70,141 17,981 88,122 
Purchased services 65,915 53,738 71,819 191,472 
Supplies and materials 6,323 37,118 43,441 
Capital expenditures 54,725 54,725 

Payments to other governments 145,437 145,437 

Total expenditures 493,558 460,864 71,819 1,026,241 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 72,321 72,321 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,972,905 1,972,905 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ $ 2,045,226 $ $ 2,045,226 

BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTmS REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 SCHEDULE 12 
REGIONAL LEARNING ACADEMY 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Regional Safe General State RLAGeneral 
Schools Aid and Lunch State Aid - ARRA Total 

REVENUES 
Federal sources $ $ 17,546 $ 71,819 $ 89,365 
State sources 493,558 244,424 737,982 

Local sources 
Fees for services 249,898 249,898 
Interest 21,317 21,317 

Total revenues 493,558 533,185 71,819 1,098,562 

'" EXPENDITURES Lv 

Salaries 351,179 151,865 503,044 

Benefits 70,141 17,981 88,122 

Purchased services 65,915 53,738 71,819 191,472 

Supplies and materials 6,323 37,118 43,441 

Capital expenditures 54,725 54,725 

Payments to other governments 145,437 145,437 

Total expenditures 493,558 460,864 71,819 1,026,241 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 72,321 72,321 

FUND BALANCES. BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,972,905 1,972,905 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ $ 2,045,226 $ $ 2,045,226 
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346,500 
351,179 

(4,679) 

69,813 
70,141 

(328) 

71,000 
65,915 

5,085 

6,245 
6,323 

(78) 

493,558 
493,558 

$ 
$ 

$ 

BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 SCHEDULE 13 
REGIONAL LEARNING ACADEMY 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED .JUNE 30, 2009 

REVENUES 
State sources 

EXPENDITURES 
Salaries 
Benefits 
Purchased services 
Supplies and materials 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 

63 

Regional Safe Schoolll 
Variance 
Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

$ 493,558 $ 493,558 ...:.$"--___ _ 

346,500 351,179 (4,679) 
69,813 70,141 (328) 
71,000 65,915 5,085 

6,245 6,323 (78) 
493,558 493,558 

$ $ 

$ 



BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 SCHEDULE 14 
KIDS FUND 
COMBlNlNGSCHEDULEOFACCOUNTS 
JUNE 3D, 2009 

Technology 
for Success 

Standards Title I - School (Formerly 
Aligned Titlell- Improvement Learning 

Classroom Other State Teacher Quality . and Technology Principal 
Initiative Programs Leadership Accountability Center) Mentoring Total 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents (overdrafts) $ 58,751 $ 56,161 $ (6,076) $ 639,286 $ (36,200) $ (10,190) $ 701,732 
Due from other funds 74,000 36,200 110,200 
Due from other governmental agencies 46,086 66,988 25,510 138,584 

0\ 
TOTAL ASSETS 58,751 176,247 60,912 664,796 (10,190) 950,516 

""" 
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 31,272 43,645 1,582 256,627 333,126 

Due to other governmental agencies 132,602 59,293 408,169 600,064 

Total liabilities 31,272 176,247 60,875 664,796 933,190 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 

Unreserved 27,479 37 (10,190) 17,326 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) $ 58,751 $ 176,247 $ 60,912 $ 664,796 $ $ (10,190) $ 950,516 

BOONE/WINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 SCHEDULE 14 
KIDS FUND 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACCOUNTS 
JUNE 30, 2009 

Technology 
{or Success 

Standards Title I - School (Formerly 
Aligned Title IT· Improvement Learning 

Classroom Other State Teacher Quality . and Technology Principal 
Initiative Programs Leadership Accountability Center) Mentoring Total 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents (overdrafts) $ 58,751 $ 56,161 $ (6,076) $ 639,286 $ (36,200) $ (10,190) $ 701,732 
Due from other funds 74,000 36,200 110,200 
Due from other governmental agencies 46,086 66,9&8 25,510 138,584 

0, 
TOTAL ASSETS 58,751 176.247 60,912 664,796 (10,190) 950,516 

-l'-

LIABlLITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 31,272 43,645 1,582 256,627 333,126 
Due to other governmental agencies 132,602 59,293 408,169 600,064 

Totalliabili1;es 31,272 176,247 60,875 664,796 933,190 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 

Unreserved 27,479 37 (10,190) 17,326 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) $ 58,751 $ 176,247 $ 60,912 $ 664,796 S $ (10,190) $ 950,516 



BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 SCHEDULE 15 
KIDS FUND 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES 1N FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Technology 
for Snccess 

Standards Title I - School (Formerly 
Aligned Title 11- Improvement Learning 

Classroom Other State Teacher Quality - and Technology Principal 
Initiative Programs Leadership Accountability Center) Mentoring Total 

REVENUES 
Federal sources $ 89,250 $ $ 262,537 $ [,661,432 $ $ $ 2,013,219 
State sources 359,086 139,783 498,869 
Local sources 

Intergovernmental 36,950 36,950 
Tota[ revenues 89,250 359,086 262,537_ 1,661.432 139,783 36,950 2,549,038 

a, 
U> 

EXPENDITURES 
Salaries 29,148 228,451 105,045 362,644 
Benefits 5,456 47,562 23,587 76,605 
Purchased services 78,174 78,573 25,027 536,571 6,111 47,140 771,596 
Supplies and materials 7,246 9,084 2,625 56,060 5,040 80,055 
Capital expenditures 8,242 8,242 
Payments to other governments 20,000 236,825 234,885 784,546 1,276,256 

Total expenditures 105,420 359,086 262,537 1,661,432 139,783 47,140 2,575,398 

DEFICmNCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (16,170) (10,190) (26,360) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGlNNING OF YEAR 43,649 37 43,686 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR $ 27,479 $ $ 37 $ $ $ (10,190) $ 17,326 

BOONElWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 SCHEDULE 15 
KIDS FUND 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Technology 
for Success 

Standards Title I - School (Formerly 
Aligned TitleR- Improvement Learning 

Classroom Other State Teacher Quality - and Technology Principal 
Initiative Programs Leadership Accountability Center) Mentoring Total 

REVENUES 
Federal sources $ 89,250 $ $ 262,537 $ 1,661,432 $ $ $ 2,013,219 
State sources 359,086 139,783 498,869 
Local sources 

Intergovernmental 36,950 36,950 
Total revenues 89,250 359,086 262,537 1,661,432 139,783 36,950 2,549,038 

c-. 
v. 

EXPENDITURES 
Salaries 29,148 228,451 105,045 362,644 

Benefils 5,456 47,562 23,587 76,605 
Purchased services 18,174 78,573 25,027 536,571 6,111 47,140 171,596 

Supplies and materials 7,246 9,084 2,625 56,060 5,040 80,055 

Capital expenditures 8,242 8,242 

Payments to other governments 20,000 236,825 734,885 784,546 1,276,256 

Total expenditures 105,420 359,086 262,537 1,661,432 139,783 47,140 ?,575,398 

DEFICmNCY OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (16,170) (10,190) (26,360) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 43,649 37 43,686 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR $ 77,479 $ $ 37 $ $ $ (10,190) $ 17,326 
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BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
KIDS FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Other State Programs 
Variance 
Favorable 

Budget Actual (!!nfsvorable) 
REVENUES 

Federal sources $ $ $ 

State sources 366,593 359,086 (7,507) 

Total revenues 366,593 359,086 (7,507) 

EXPENDITURES 
Salaries 32,000 29,148 2,852 

Benefits 9,000 5,456 3,544 

Purchased services 76,800 78,573 (1,773) 

Supplies and materials 7,593 9,084 (1,491) 

Capital expenditures 
Payments to other governments 241,200 236,825 4,375 

Total expenditures 366,593 359,086 7,507 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ $ 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 

$ 

$ 

SCHEDULE 16 

Title I - School Improvement and 
Title II - Teacber Qunli!r - Leadershi(! Accountabili!r 

Variance Variance 
Favorable Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (!!nfnvorable) 

262,537 $ 262,537 $ $ 1,751,0\3 $ 1,661,432 $ (89,581) 

------

262,537 262,537 1,751,0\3 1,661,432 (89,581) 

197,100 228,451 (31,351) 
45,700 47,562 (1,862) 

25,000 25,027 (27) 590,000 536,571 53,429 
2,537 2,625 (88) 53,873 56,060 (2,187) 

10,000 8,242 1,758 
235,000 234,885 115 854.340 784,546 69,794 
262,537 262,537 1,751,0\3 1,661,432 89,581 

$ $ $ 

37 

$ 37 $ 

'" '" 

BOONE/WINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCA nON NO.4 
KIDS FUND 
BUDGETARV COMPARISON SCHEDULES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Other State Programs 
Variaoce 
Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable} 
REVENUES 

F ederul sources $ $ $ 

Slate sources 366.593 359.086 (7.507) 

Total revenues 366.593 359.086 (7.507) 

EXPENDITURES 

Salaries 32.000 29.148 2.852 
Benefits 9.000 5,456 3.544 
Purchased services 76,800 78,573 (1,773) 
Supplies God materials 7.593 9,084 (1,491) 

Capital expenditures 
Payments to other govcrnmcnlS 241,200 236.825 4.375 

T uta! expenditures 366,593 359,086 7,507 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES $ S 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF VEAR 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR 

$ 

$ 

SCHEDULE 16 

Title I ~ SCDm" Improvement and 
Title II - Tcncber Qu.li~ - Lelldenbie AeeountJIbili!I 

Variance Variance 
Favorable: FavDrable 

Budget Actual llinfavorable} Budget Actual (!!DfBVOTllbh:) 

262,537 $ 262,537 $ $ 1.751.013 $ 1.661,432 $ (89,581) 

262.537 262,537 1,751,013 1.661.432 (89,581) 

197.100 228,451 (31.351) 
45,700 47.562 (1,862) 

25.000 25.027 (27) 590.000 536.571 53,429 
2.537 2.625 (88) 53.873 56.060 (2.187) 

10.000 8.242 1,758 
235.000 234.885 115 854,340 784.546 69.794 
262,537 262.537 1.751,013 1,661,432 89,581 

$ 

$ 
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BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
KIDS FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

REVENUES 
Federal sources 
State sources 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Salaries 
Benefits 
Purchased services 
Supplies and materials 
Capital expenditures 
Payments to other governments 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR 

$ 

$ 

Technology for Success 
{Formcrl,r Learning TecbnologI Center~ 

Variance 
Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable} 

$ $ 

139,783 139,783 

139,783 139,783 

105,038 105,045 (7) 
22,872 23,587 (715) 

7,673 6, III 1,562 
4,200 5,040 (840) 

139,783 139,783 

$ 

$ 

Total 

Budget Actual 

$ 2,013,550 $ 1,923,969 
506,376 498,869 

2,519,926 2,422,838 

334,138 362,644 
77,572 76,605 

699,473 646,282 
68,203 72,809 
10,000 8,242 

1,330,540 1,256,256 

2,519,926 2,422,838 

$ 

37 

$ 37 

SCHEDULE 16 
(CONTINUED) 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavornble} 

$ (89,581) 
(7,507) 

(97,088) 

(28,506) 
967 

53,191 

(4,606) 
1,758 

74,284 

97,088 

$ 

BOONElWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
KIDS FUND 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

REVENUES 
Federal source.. .. 
State sources 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Suiories 
Benefits 
Purchased services 
Supplies and materials 
Capital expenditures 

Payments to other governments 
Tolal expenditures 

EXCESS 01<' REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR 

$ 

Tec1mology for Success 
{!ormerlJ:' Learning Tecbnologr Center! 

Variance 
Favorable 

Budget Actual .iUnlavorable) 

$ $ 
139,783 139,783 

139,133 139,783 

105,038 105,045 (7) 

22,872 23,587 (715) 

7,673 6,111 1,562 

4,200 5,040 (840) 

139,783 139,783 

Total 

BUdget Adolll 

$ 2,013,550 $ 1,923,969 

506,376 498,869 

2,519,926 2,422,838 

334,138 362,644 

77,572 76,605 

699,473 646,282 

68,203 72,809 

10,000 8,242 

1,330,540 1,256,256 

2,519,926 :2,422,838 

37 

SCHEDULE 16 
(CONTll'iUED) 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ (89,581) 

(7,507) 

(97,088) 

(28,506) 

967 
53,191 

(4,606) 

1,758 
74,284 

97,QB8 
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BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30, 2009 

General 
Education Bus Driver 

SCHEDULE 17 

Edncational 
Service Center 

Development Training Supervisory No.1 Institnte Total 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 84,946 $ 7,750 $ 1,857 $ 138,942 $ 176,490 $ 409,985 
Due from other governmental agencies 1,010 412 1,422 

TOTAL ASSETS 85,956 8,162 1,857 138,942 176,490 411,407 

FUND BALANCES 

Unreserved $ 85,956 $ 8,162 $ 1,857 $ 138,942 $ 176,490 $ 411,407 
= = 

0\ 
co 

BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE 01<' EDUCATION NO.4 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30, 2009 

General 
Education BnsDriver 

SCHEDULE 17 

Educational 
Service Center 

Development Training Supervisory No.1 Institute Total 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 84,946 $ 7,750 $ 1,857 $ 138,942 $ 176,490 $ 409,985 
Due from other governmental agencies 1,010 412 1,422 

TOTAL ASSETS 85,956 8,162 1,857 138,942 176,490 411,407 

FUND BALANCES 

Unreserved $ 85,956 $ 8,162 $ 1,857 =$=====13=,,8=,9=42= $ 176,490 $ 411,407 



BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTms REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 SCHEDULE 18 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
COMBlNlNG STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES L'I FUND BALANCES 
FOR TIm YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

General Educatioual 
Educatiou Bus Driver Service Center 

Development Training Supervisory No.1 Institute Total 

REVENUES 
State sources $ $ 2,036 $ 2,000 $ - $ $ 4.036 
Local sources 

Licenses and permits 52,614 52,614 
Fees for services 71,112 4,436 70 75,618 
Interest 829 82 35 1,448 2,724 5,118 

Total revenues 71,941 6,554 2,105 1,448 55,338 137,386 

a, EXPENDITURES 
'D 

Salaries 31,542 31,542 
Purchased services 28,978 6,702 2,144 64,035 101,859 
Supplies and materials ',030 883 2,880 5,793 

Total expenditures 62,550 7,585 2,144 66,915 139,194 

EXCESS (DEFlCillNCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 9,391 (1,031) (39) 1,448 (11,577) (1,808) 

OTImR FINANCING USES 
Transfer out (1,630) (1,630) 

EXCESS (DEFlCmNcy) OF REVENUES AND 
OTImR FINANCING USES OVER EXPENDITURES 9,391 (1,031) (39) (182) (11,577) (3,438) 

FUND BALANCES, BEG1NNlNG OF YEAR 76,565 9,193 1,896 139,124 188,067 414,845 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 85,956 $ 8,162 $ 1,857 $ 138,942 $ 176,490 $ 411,407 

BOONElWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 SCHEDULE 18 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FONDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES L'I FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

General Edncational 
Edncation Bus Driver Service Center 

Development Trailling Supervisory No.1 Institute Totu) 

REVENUES 
State sources $ $ 2,036 $ 2,000 $ $ $ 4,036 
Local sources 

Licenses and permits 52,614 52,614 
Fees for services 71,112 4,436 70 75,618 
Interest 829 82 35 1,448 2,724 5,118 

Total revenues 71,941 6,554 2,105 1,448 55,338 137,386 

0\ EXPENDITURES ..0 

Salaries 31,542 31,542 
Purchased services 28,978 6,702 2,144 64,035 101,859 
Supplies and materials 2,030 883 2,880 5,793 

Total expenditures 62,550 7,585 2,144 66,915 139,194 

EXCESS (DEFICIENcy) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 9,391 (1,031) (39) 1,448 (11 ,577) (1,808) 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Transfer out (1,630) (1,630) 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND 
OTHER FINANCING USES OVER EXPENDITURES 9,391 (1,031) (39) (182) (11,577) (3,438) 

FOND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 76,565 9,193 1,896 139,124 188,067 414,845 

FOND BALANCES, END OF YEAR $ 85,956 $ 8,162 $ 1,857 $ 138,942 $ 176,490 S 41 
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BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 
JUNE 30, 2009 

Distributive 
Audio Visual 

Co-op 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 70 $ 19,044 $ 

LIABILITIES 

Due to other governmental agencies $ 70 $ 19,044 $ 
= 

Career 
Educatioual 
Associates of 

North Central 
DIinois 

907,595 $ 

907,595 $ 

SCHEDULE 19 

Payroll Total 

136,581 $ 1,063,290 

136,581 $ 1,063,290 

BOONElWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 
JUNE 30, 2009 

Distributive 
Audio Visual 

Co-op 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 70 $ 19,044 $ 

LIABILITIES 

Due to other governmental agencies $ 70 $ 19,044 $ 

Career 
Educational 
Associates or 

North Centrol 
DUnois 

907,595 $ 

907,595 $ 

SCHEDULE 19 

Payroll Total 

136,581 $ 1,063,290 

136,58] $ 1,063,290 
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N
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E
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B
alan

ce 
B

alan
ce 

Ju
n

e 30, 2008 
A

dditions 
D

ednctions 
Ju

n
e 30, 2009 

D
IS

T
R

IB
U

T
IV

E
 

A
S

S
E

T
S

 

C
ash and cash equivalents 

$ 
70 

$ 
5,794,175 

$ 
5,794,175 

$ 
70 

L
IA

B
IL

IT
IE

S 

D
ue to other governm

ental agencies 
$ 

70 
$ 

5,794,175 
$ 

5,794,175 
$ 

70 

A
U

D
IO

 V
IS

U
A

L
 C

O
-O

P
 

A
S

S
E

T
S

 

C
ash and cash equivalents 

$ 
12,372 

$ 
8,806 

$ 
2,134 

$ 
19,044 

L
IA

B
IL

IT
IE

S 

D
ue to other governm

ental agencies 
$ 

12,372 
$ 

8,806 
$ 

2,134 
$ 

19,044 

C
A
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E

E
R

 E
D
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L

 A
SSO
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 C
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T
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C
ash and cash equivalents 

$ 
1,009,332 

$ 
1,611,829 

$ 
1,713,566 

$ 
907,595 

L
IA

B
IL

IT
IE

S 

D
ue to other governm

ental agencies 
$ 

1,009,332 
$ 

1,611,829 
$ 

1,713,566 
$ 

907,595 

P
A

Y
R

O
L

L
 

A
S

S
E

T
S

 

C
ash and cash equivalents 

$ 
40,242 

$ 
3,144,738 

$ 
3,048,399 

$ 
136,581 

L
IA

B
IL

IT
IE

S
 

D
ue to other governm

ental agencies 
$ 

40,242 
$ 

3,144,738 
$ 

3,048,399 
$ 

136,581 

T
O

T
A

L
 A
S

S
E

T
S

 

C
ash and cash equivalents 

$ 
1,062,016 

$ 10,559,548 
$ 10,558,274 

$ 
1,063,290 

L
IA

B
IL

IT
IE

S
 

D
ue to other governm

ental agencies 
$ 

1,062,016 
$ 10,559,548 

$10,558,274 
$ 

1,063,290 

71 

BOONE/WINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO. 4 SCHEDULE 20 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES -

ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Balance Balance 
June 30, 2008 Additions Deductions June 30, 2009 

DISTRIBUTIVE 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 70 $ 5,794,175 $ 5,794,175 $ 70 

LIABILITIES 

Due to other governmental agencies $ 70 $ 5,794,175 $ 5,794,175 $ 70 

AUDIO VISUAL CO-OP 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ P,372 $ 8,806 $ 2,134 $ 19,044 

LIABILITIES 

Due to other governmental agencies $ 12,372 $ 8,806 $ 2,134 $ 19,044 

CAREER EDUCATIONAL ASSOCIATES 
OF NORTll CENTRAL ILLINOIS 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,009,332 $ 1,611,829 $ 1,713,566 $ 907,595 

LIABILITIES 

Due to other governmental agencies $ 1,009,332 $ 1,611,829 $ 1,713,566 $ 907,595 

PAYROLL 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 40,242 $ 3,144,738 $ 3,048,399 $ 136,581 

LIABILITIES 

Due to other governmental agencies $ 40,242 $ 3,144,738 $ 3,048,399 $ 136,581 

TOTAL 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,062,016 $ 10,559,548 $10,558,274 $ 1,063,290 

LIABILITIES 

Due to other governmental agencies $ 1,062,016 $ 10,559,548 $ 10,558,274 $ 1,063,290 

71 
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BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
SCHEDULE OF DISBURSEMENTS TO SCHOOL DISTRICT TREASURERS AND OTHERS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Regional 
Learning 

KIDS CEANCI Acadcm! 

General State Aid $ $ $ 242.936 
General State Aid - ARRA 71.819 
ROE School Bus Driver training 
Regional Safe Schools 287,908 
Truants Alternative program 
ROE/ISC Operations 259,000 
Supervisory expense 

Title I - School1mprovement and Accountability 1,604,238 
Title II - Teacher Quality - Leadership 195,549 
Career and Technical Education Improvement (CTEI) 685,437 
Agriculture Education 20,963 
Technology for Success (Fonnerly Learning 

Technology Center) 139,783 
Other Stale programs 239,000 
State Free Lunch and Breakfast 974 
School Breakfast Incentive 73 
School Breakfast program 7,274 
Nalional School Lunch program 13,862 
V.E. Perkins ~ Title lIe - Secondary Education 688,146 
Summer Food Service program 
Miscellaneous programs 

$ 2,437,570 $1,394,546 $ 624,846 

Regional 
Learning 

Center 

$ 237.922 
70.337 

103,253 

$ 411,512 

SCHEDULE 21 

Regional Regional ROENo.4 
Alternative Attendance Rock Valley Regional School Bus 

School Coo~erative College Sueerintendent Training Total 

$ 495.621 $ $ $ $ $ 976,479 
146,520 288,676 

2,036 2,036 
287,908 

226,335 329,588 
259,000 

2,000 2,000 
1,604,238 

195,549 
685,437 

20,963 

139,783 
239,000 

974 
73 

7,274 
13,862 

688,146 
6,105 6,105 

47,084 47,084 

$ 642,141 $ 273,419 $ 6,105 $ 2,000 $ 2,036 $5,794,175 

-J 
N 

BOONEIWINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
SCHEDULE OF DISBURSEMENTS TO SCHOOL DISTRICT TREASURERS AND OTHERS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Regional 
Learning 

KIDS CEANCI Aeademx 

General Slate Aid $ $ $ 242,936 

General Stale Aid - ARRA 71.819 
ROE Scbool Bus Driver training 

Regional Sufe Schools 287,908 

Truants Alternative program 
ROEtISC Operations 259,000 

Supervisory expense 

Title I ~ Sehoollmprovement and Accountability 1,604,238 

Title 1I ~ Tcucher Quality ~ Lcndership 195,549 

Career nnd Technical Education Improvement (CTEr) 685.437 

Agriculture Education 20,963 

Technology for Success (Formerly Leaming 
Technology Center) ]39,7&3 

Other Stale progrnms 239,000 

Stale Free Lunch and Breakfast 974 

School Breakfast lncenlive 73 

Schoo! Breakfast program 7,274 

National School Lunch progr.lm 13,862 

V.E. Perkins - Title lIe - Secondary Education 688,146 

Summer Food Service program 
Miscellaneous programs 

$ 2,437,570 $1,394,546 $ 624,846 

Regional 
Learning 

Center 

S 237,922 

70,337 

103,253 

$ 411,;12 

SCHEDULE 21 

Regional Regional ROE No.4 
Alternative Attendance Roek Valley Regional School Dus 

Sehool Coop~rative College SUE:crintendent Training Total 

$ 495,621 $ $ $ $ S 976,479 
146,520 28&,676 

2,036 2,036 

287,908 
226,335 329,588 

259,000 

2,000 2,000 

1,604,238 

195,549 

685,437 

20,963 

139,783 

239,000 

974 

73 
7,274 

]3,862 

688.146 
6,105 6.lD5 

$ 642,141 $ 273,419 $ 6,105 $ 2,000 S 2,036 $5,794,175 
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BOONEIWTh'NEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCATION NO.4 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

SCHEDULEll 

Federal GrantotlPass· Through Grantor 
PrograrnJGrant Title 

CFDA Pass· Through I FY 2009 
Number Contract Number Expenditures 

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

Title 1 Grants to Local Educational Agencies 
Passed.Through lIlinois State Board of Education 

Title 1 - Schoo/Improvement and AccOlmiability 
Title 1- Schoo/Improvement and Accountability 

Passed· Through Clark, Coles, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, 
Moultrie and Shelby Counties Regional Omee of Education No. 11 

Standards Aligned Classroom Initiative 

Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 
Passed· Through Illinois State Board of Education 

Tille II • Teacher Quality Leadership Gl'al1l 

(1'.1) 84.01OA 
(1'.1) 84.010A 

(1'.1) 84.010A 

84.367A 

State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF). Education State Grants, Recovery Act 
(Education Stabilization Fund) 

Passed·Through Illinois State Board of Education 
ARRA • General Siale Aid 
A RR.J • General Siale Aid 
ARM· General Siale Aid 

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICUL'TIJ1ill 

School Breakfast Program 
Passed-Through Illinois State Board of Education 

School Break/ast Progl'a", 

National School Lunch Program 
Passed· Through Illinois State Board of Education 

National Schoal Lunch Program 

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

Workforce Investment Act (W1A) Youth Activities 
Passed· Through Rock River Training Corporation 

Worlforce Investment Act (W/A) 

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

(1'.1) Program was audited as major program. 

84.394A 
84.394A 
84.394A 

10.553 

10.555 

17.259 

2008-4331·85 $ 31,684 
1,629,748 2009·4331·SS 

2009·4331-00 

2009-4935·SS 

2009-4850·92 
2009·4850·93 
2009-4850·95 

89,250 
1,750,682 

262,537 

70,337 
71,819 

146,520 
288,676 

$ 2,301,895 

2009·4220·00 S 5,904 

2009-4210·00 11,642 

$ 17,546 

2009·206 $ 34,770 

$ 34,770 

$ 2,354,211 

The accompanying notes are an integral part afthis schedule. 
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N
ote 1. R

eporting E
ntity B

asis o
f P

resentation an
d

 A
ccounting 

T
he accom

panying Schedule o
f E

xpenditures o
f Federal A

w
ards includes the federal grant 

activity o
f B

oone/W
innebago C

ounties R
egional O

ffice o
f E

ducation N
o

.4
 and is prepared 

on the m
odified accrual basis o

f accounting. 
T

he inform
ation in tillS schedule is presented in

 
accordance 

w
ith 

the 
requirem

ents 
o

f O
M

B
 

C
ircular 

A
-133, 

A
udits 

o
f States, 

L
ocal 

G
ovel'11m

ents, 
and N

on-P
rofit O

rganizations. 
T

herefore, som
e am

ounts presented in tillS 
schedule m

ay differ from
 

am
ounts presented in, 

or used in the preparation o
f the basic 

financial statem
ents. 

N
ote 2. S

U
brecipients 

N
ot A

pplicable. 

N
ote 3. D

escription o
f F

ederaI P
ro

g
ram

 A
udited as a M

ajo
r P

ro
g

ram
 

T
itle I -

School Im
provem

ent and A
ccountability provides support and guidance to school 

districts through tllis com
plex school im

provem
ent process so tIlat teaching and learning are 

im
proved every year. 

T
he Illinois State B

oard o
f E

ducation Q
uality A

ssurance P
rocess 

consists o
f an external visit to audit each school every few

 years and an internal review
 that 

each school m
ust conduct annually. 

Standards A
ligned C

lassroom
 Initiative supports team

s that develop curriculum
 aligned 

w
ith the Illinois A

cadem
ic Standards. 

N
ote 4. 

N
on-C

ash A
ssistance 

N
ot A

pplicable. 

N
ote s. 

A
m

ount o
fIn

su
ran

ce 

N
ot A

pplicable. 

N
ote 6. L

oans o
r L

o
an

 G
uarantees O

utstanding 

N
ot A

pplicable. 
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BOONE/WINNEBAGO COUNTIES REGIONAL OFFICE OF EDUCA nON NO.4 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 

Note 1. Reporting Entity Basis of Presentation and Accounting 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant 
activity of Boone/Winnebago Counties Regional Office of Education No.4 and is prepared 
on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The infonnation in this schedule is presented in 
accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States. Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this 
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the basic 
financial statements. 

Note 2. Subreeipients 

Not Applicable. 

Note 3. Description of Federal Program Audited as a Major Program 

Title I - School Improvement and Accountabilitv provides support and guidance to school 
districts through this complex school improvement process so that teaching and learning are 
improved every year. The Illinois State Board of Education Quality Assurance Process 
consists of an external visit to audit each school every few years and an internal review that 
each school must conduct annually. 

Standards Aligned Classroom Initiative supports teams that develop curricull1l11 aligned 
with the Illinois Academic Standards. 

Note 4. Non-Cash Assistance 

Not Applicable. 

Note 5. Amount ofInsuranee 

Not Applicable. 

Note 6. Loans or Loan Guarantees Outstanding 

Not Applicable. 
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